
10011405

1IfIu
4t1

1h



CC

C1
CC CI CCC

CC CC

1CC
CC

CC

CC CC
CC CC CC CC

CC

CC CC
CC

CC CCC



IISUUIIIIIUIIIUiIIIU4II1

f4

k4



Dear Shareholder

By any standard Magellan had successful year in 2009 whether one considers

financial metrics growth in our businesses or the vitally important human element

of what we do Revenue and earnings were up over the prior year we produced new

sales and strong results across all of our businesses and we managed expenses effec

tively We enhanced our already-strong balance sheet and continued to demonstrate

our commitment to returning capital to shareholders

We played crucial role by virtue of the breadth and depth of our specialty health

care expertise in addressing some of the most pressing issues in health care today

And of equal or perhaps greater significance is the positive impact that Magellan

continues to have in the lives of millions of individuals who are dealing with complex

health issues

Six years ago we began the strategic transformation that has created todays

Magellan At that time we developed comprehensive multi-year plan to achieve

financial strength retain customers and leverage our platform for growth through

product development and diversification We set out to grow and diversify our

business by building on our core strengths to become an even more valuable
partner

to health care payors Having expanded beyond behavioral health into radiology

specialty pharmacy oncology and Medicaid administration we have made
great

progress in diversification and will continue to do so while also efficiently and

cost-effectively integrating our new businesses and products And on the strength

of the positive clinical and financial results we deliver we are now solidifying our

role as the nations leading specialty health care management company

An unwavering commitment to clinical excellence has been key to achieving

that leadership distinction Magellan first and foremost is clinical company

company dedicated to doing whats right for the patient We help improve individuals

health and well-being while providing innovative strategies to help our customers

health plans governments and employers address current and emerging challenges

and responsibly manage costs so that health care becomes more affordable

Underpinning this strong clinical orientation is an industry-leading scalable

operational capability encompassing call center management claims payment and

state-of-the-art information technology coupled with
strong

balance sheet and

underwriting expertise
These critical elements clinical excellence operational

and administrative expertise leveraging technology and financial strength form

the common platform upon which we manage specialty health care This platform

provides the essential infrastructure to support our work today and is the foundation

on which we continue to advance specialty health care management

Today Magellan is unique in having expertise across many disciplines affording

us the opportunity to take the management of specialty health care to an important

MageHan Heath Services
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Medicaid Administration

2009 ACCOMPLiSHMENTS

Retained 96 percent of existing

business

Established account

relationships with two

new states

Earned URAC accreditation

for health care utilization

management programs

Developed innovative programs

to help improve therapy

compliance among patients

being treated for Hepatitis

Launched pilot program to

ensure more appropriate use of

psychotropic drugs for children

Generated 99 percent provider

adoption of newly launched

web-based programs for

exchange of diagnostic and

treatment information

Successfully integrated First

Health Services capturing cost

efficiencies while leveraging

Magellans core strengths to

improve clinical quality and

customer service

The newest addition to Magellans porrlolio of
specaity

health care disciplines is

Medicaid Administration segment we entered in July of 2009 with our acquisition

of First Health Services Corporation his husiness helps state governments manage

publicly funded health care programs primarily in the pharmacy arena that provide

access to high-quality clinically appropriate care in cost-effective manner An

important aspecr of our approach is rhe
nurturing

of stakeholder relationships within

the health care corn muniry to support
collaborative approach to serving some of

society most at-risk individuals

This organization has supported states in the management of Medicaid programs

for nearly 40 years
It has contracts in 25 states and the District of Columbia and serves

17 million covered individuals approximately 36
percent

of all Medicaid recipients

Its service offerings currently include

Pharmacy benefits administration including point-of-sale pharmacy claims

processing
clinical services such as care coordination and management preferred

drug list development manufacturer rebate contracting and administration

and clinical and business analytics

Health care management programs designed to improve quality of care and

optimize costs in fee-for-service Med caid populations arid

Fiscal
agent

services involving the design implementation and operation of

state Medicaid Management Information Systems

With its many long-term contracts and
strong relationships with state Medicaid

administrators this htisiness helps cement our already robust platform for growth in

Medicaid and other sratc-spotisored programs This takes on heightened importance

and significance as stares continue to look for strategies to confront economic

pressures
and as the nations leadership considers potential expansion of Medicaid

to cover the uninsured

Lntering 2010 our focus for this business is on leveraging Magellans strengths

in clinical management and systems development to enhance the value that out

pharmacy benefit administration prodticts deliver to our i\4edicaid customers helping

stare leaders manage their programs to deliver timely effective medication therapy

to their m.emhers as effi.cien.riy and cost-effectively as possible are identifying

opportunities for exstng customers to mana.ge
their Med.icaid spend.ing m.ore closely

i.nrroducing programs thit
target

rh.e coats a.nd utilization of new cii.sses within

traditiona.l pha.rmaceutieai rh.erapy Ou.r focus in 2010 also inelu.des introd.ucing

combined programs tailored speeifica.lly Cr the .Medicaid market that mal.sa.ge

spr..riding related to specialty pharmacy radiology arid be.havioral health medications

as we.li 1.5 ex.pans i.nto rh.e Medicaid managed care marketplace
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Va EM ErbjtuxTM Al XTM These are just ot the Hernando BoHva

end supportive medications mixed and CORE pharmacy technician

punded at COREs pharmacy Astona NewYo

Each day some 300 400 patient specfic medications

are prepared here ensunng the quality appropriateness

and afety ofthese specialty pharmaceuticals As

key part of COREs comprehensive oncology manage

men program the compounding pharmacy employs

combination of the most advanced technology wth an

expe enced team of oncology trained pharmacsts to

ensure the best possthle outcomes for patients and our

health plan customers

Theres an enthusiastc drive for quahty and $JP
pw flencethatyoujustdontfind anywhe Ourfocus AdP

On the patient and on doing everythng we can to achieve

th nght clinical outcome and to dnve our business

Atthe end ofthe day cant magine anythng mo

varding than that Danny Suigh RPh Director of $j

Phamacy Operations ICORE
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Specialty Pharmacy Management

iNew drugs in the mar.ketpiace broader ind.ications fdr the.m a.nd increasing demand by

an aeing popu.laton conttnue to drive up costs associated with specia.iry pharmaceuric.a.l.s

pn..nsariiv injectable drugs used to treat conditions suc.h as cancer multiple sc.leros.is

r.heurnatoid arth.riti.s and immune deficienci.es

icuthc hIt cOal Spru ii sin ununt him net hr sg

health care payors d.rug manufacturers provde.rs patjeKts
and harmacie.s toge.ther

to ensuns appropriate prescrihi.n.g and administrat.ion o.f specialty injectable drugs This

ic ion or hr uP drug in piopr do nJ Krqt iloog rn supp it

for pa.tients in understarsd.ing a.nd complying with th.e..ir drug the.rapies help responsibly

manage costs in one o.f the fitstestagrowing areas of lr.iealth care spending

Our services have historically focused on working on behalf of health plans to

niioirnize specialty drug costs by maxiusizi.ng .formuiary compliance a.nd optirni. zftig

nsanu.fhctu.rers drug c.ont.ra.cts its well as consultir s.suth .lseairh
piatis 0.0 rei.mbursr merit

Sri ic ioi di
pi

outside oi ruP idinon uh urn ic h5 ncn oieo ut

deve.iope.d po.rtfoho of prefer ted clrttg contracts with tna.nufa.cturers based first and

foremost on clinical efhcacy but also taking iOtO bonside.ration comparatIve costs .in cases

Put iso ipL
Ii or ills ours lent di

rks is ulablc 00 ii in uR ii her

share witbits each th.erapeu.tic c.kss we have created powerfu.i approach for health plans

to
osanage

costs without compromising quality care or creating
harri.ers for patie.nts

Build.in.g on years of oncology management experience in 2009 we implemented

comprehensive oncology mana.gemnent program lhrough this prtd.uct uoiuue

in the mar.kempiace we assist he.alth plans in addressinu the cost arid quality of ca.ncer

care by ensuring that patIents receive appropriate gu.IKeiirirubased treatmetrt Feattrres

include care management backed by the nationally recoq.nizerl experts
of our orictdrigy

advisory com.mittee strate.gies to facilitate rational pnicitig
Or oncology rlrugs using

chnically accepted stand.ards and mnechan.isn.s to pienent costly clainss errors

.As the population ages cancer treatment will become an even more significant fa.cror

in the delivery of afford.able health clime in the US a.nd river the next several
years

oncology nianagennen.t expected to hece.me an .importa.nt part
of spe.cialty oharena.cv

mnaoagemc ors overa.ll business hOe are rising Stir oncology model to create ad.ditiona.i

mana.gemerit programn.s
fer other .high-c.ost highureod clisea.se states Th.e first of the.se

will
support

the treatment of autoim.mune disord.ers such its rh.eumatoid arthritis Croh.ns

d.isease atid
psorusln

Todays p.ipelirle of new drugs favors infused a. nd ft je.ctahle drrrgs .A.s hlock.bustet

oral dru.gs stich as Lipinor
lose te.tit protectIon over th.e next several

years specialty

phamm.aceuricals wIll be.come a.n increasingiy etnter portion of total plsarmacetiticel

spci ding Or suco tc th it tilt oo in win rb trend ill in gi iri

densao.d by all heal.th care purchasers inciud.fng health plans and public sector payors

2009 ACCOMPLiSHMENTS

Implemented our comprehensive

oncology and medical injectable

management program in

plans covering approximately

million lives

Successful pilots of new

management programs in other

disease states including

hemophilia rheumatoid arthritis

and Crohns disease to be

implemented in 2010

Renewed or extended all

manufacturer contracts on behalf

of health plans

Achieved 50 percent web

utilization for prior authorization

in oncology nianagement

Increased segment profit

21 percent over 2008

Achieved strong results in

formulary optimization programs



Radiology Benefits Management

2009 ACCOMPLiSHMENTS

Achieved ongoing effective

management of care cost

and quality

Implemented multiple markets

for the new radiology contract

with Coventry including both

advanced imaging and cardiac

management

Implemented

CardiacConnections product

with several health plan customers

Developed

OncologyConnections product

Expanded patient safety

initiatives to include our

RadZone for Kidsh web site

designed to support pediatric

imaging education

Sold more than $185 million

of annualized risk business

including our first risk managed

Medicaid health plan account

Increased segment profit

41 percent over 2008

.Ivlsge.llans radoitgy benefits m.anagernent subsid.iary NIA Nationa.1 .imagi.ng Associates

manage.s costs and safeguards th quality of
.im.aging outcomes Ar consumers of health

plans and public sector payors Advanced imaging technology offers si.gnifichnt benefits

to patients when used cor.recmly However as many as onmothird of theses crv.ices

such as MRI CT and PET -- are either inappropriate or do not contribute to t.he

p.hvsicians mlagnois or posit we outcome for the pat.ie.nt

NJA pioneered the rad.iology benefits management field 15 years a.go
a.nd today with

1C5 million me.mhers is one of the leaders in the .ii dustry in cre.ating custo.mi.zed

solutions to i.mptove
th.e quality safer 1d affordability of .h.igluccst high growth and

hig.hrisk radiologic services The company provides comprehensive array of technology

techniques a.nd resources inc.lud.ing proprietary physician-developed algorithms and

physiciaii.-to-plsysic.ian
consultations designed to ensure th.ar procedures are .nsedica.ll

is id ipomoot ipi trIes mh tt meet ru
fl

Ii ik gio

criteria and sophisticated claims editing and payment capabilities

NTe also have taken an inch st.r -le.ad
tlg position on educar.ing patients about imaging

se.rvice.s sO they can be infor.n-ied consumers ard active participants
in thei.r own health

care By providing- comprehensive web-based educational content high-touch member

outreach activities and comnpre.hensive library of edocatio.nal resources to help

individu.ais und.erstand imaging procedures and assess risks and lrwnefits we he.lp

pro.mote diul.ogue and shared d.ecisiowmaki.ng he.cween patients
a.nd their physicians

This consume.r-centered approach aiso Isan integral part
of 0-ut most recent roduem

innovations focuse.d on the quality and affordability of treatment ffir h.e.art disease and

cancer two imreas of partcmrlar concern to he.alth care payors

Card.iacConnectione hel.ps define the mos efficient path to the diagnosis and

manageme.nt of cardiovascular co.nditions Our approach
includes

mnanage.me.nt
of

tL
11

uni of pu uat nciudmny con its xi phi en di ithmt

ization nuclear tress resting a.nd echocardiography with the goal of reducing

radiation
exposure

and cath.eter-reia.ted complications by promoting the use of the

most efifictive least itivasve testing

OncologyConnectionO .is de.signecl to help 1ors saffguard the clinica.i efficac.y

arid consistency of radiation rherapy component of tteatme.nm for 60 percent of

turn Am
nipi

ouu em ha ipp1 im dust
pi tel mAin vs nut

al.gonith.ms along with data analysis and medical expertise to promote mh.c smut

effdctive and efficient rad.iatio.n treatment plan .Addirionally OruologyConnecfkriC

mrriiqmiely ie.verages our hehavioral health expermi.se by incorporating persomml coaches

m.o stip port
the patient and can be htmridkd with ICOREs oncology drug mana.ge.me.nt

plogmxitn to ge.ne.rate ael.ditionai value for our customers and their members

.As we look ahead to 2110 a.nd beyond we anti
.i.pate

contnue.d
press me on health

pl.atls

.Medicare and Ied.icaid
payors

to amlmlress cost and
qtir dry issues respomssibiy arid compre

hensively This sta..nds mm drive ad.mlirionai interest in otir strategie.s and solmrmio ru amid ave

will co.ntinue to foctis on ni.aovao.on i.n ad.ciressi.ng ctirerent and
e.me.rglng

a.teas of concern
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Public Sector Behavioral Health

Macilans work supporting publicly funded be.havtora.l healtb programs .has c.Iearly

set th.e standard lAr the field Mdt.h nearly two million consumers served and strong

focu.s on community pa.rrnership quality care and mnovatioo as we.il as the princin.les

o.f recvery and resilie.ncy lagellan is an industry leader in .helping state and local

governmen.ts provide behaviora.i health care and rehabilitation service.s to vulnerable

i.ndividuals in fisca.liy respo.nsih.Ie .fa.shion gAith goe.rnment enmities cootinui.ng

to struggle to provide needed social se.rvices in d.tfhc.ult economIc etvi.ro.nmnenr

Magella.ns cre.ativity and expertise bring even greame.r
value.

71n appropriate m.reatmnent and suoporr are available and accessible c.hildrcn

adults and mM ir famnii..ies who rely on publicly fAnd.ed behavioral health and buma.n

services can live and work successfully in their comrnu.nities despite the c.halle.nges

01 mental illness and substance abuse Ma.geilan has helped its customers Inot rmiy

improve bum tram form public men.ma.l health systems by fbcusing on individualized

care and fd.rnily involvement safea..n effmctii-c community-based aiternattves to

tradition.ai psychi.arni.c hospitalization and resid.entiai trc.amrnent arid inntvamive

approaches to using public fund.s to achieve ineani.ngful outcomes for consumers

In
del.iveri..ng

these i.mproved outcome.s we have beers a.ble to simultaneously address

both budgetary
a.nd political pressures.

daMllan mak.es leadership position pronioti.ng
evid.ence-haseci fractice

the us of mreat.mcnts id services bar have been .shown through researc.h to ie.ld

posItIve
outcor.tes for i.nd.ividuals and cost-effective solutions ftr governrnents

A.n

ex-a..rnple
of such practices

used i.dageiia.n programs aron..nd t.be country iclude

fsmi tian out mi nov caminc ott md is pIn tpp ott to Ipiog uanpic

with serious me.nmai ilin.ess avoid tirinecessar bospita.lization. .Ma1.1ella.mi
a.lso

employs mvid.ence- based practices no divert ch.ild.reri from resid en.rial are using

conimuniny-ba.secl alternatives

commlmmen.t to corisume.r fa.mil and provtd.cr involvemne.nm not only in

trea.nmenr but also in program des ign imple.me.nmatio.n a.nd governance is h.all

rita it of Magellans public se.ctor hehmvicra.l health business From cortsumer and

iovider advisory gmotips to the companys land.mark shared overna.nce structu.re in

Maricopa Coun.ty .4ageilaris approach h.elps create an envimonnient of collahora.mion

a.nd collective investment

.Fbis orientation toward smak.ehold.er ia voivemenn also creates opportunities
for

progna.m parmicipa.nms to play signi.hca.nr
role themse.ives i.n advoca.mirig

fAr onbe.rs wit.h

behavioral health issues and helping t.liem lea.d p.modu.cmivc lives i.n the comm.unity

A.s an examp.le Mageliams values pee.r support rograms rha.m train mnenmal health

consumers no work as an integral pa.rm of clients treatment ream and i.nregrames

mh.ese initiatives into all of our programs \Ff also
smipport

the d.evelopnae.nm
o.f youth

involvemn.enin organizations
such as iCY .LiF.E in .Ma.ricopa County Ai.iz.o.na th.at

are designed to give pa.rt.iciparlms new purpose
and d.ire.ction svbile helping achieve

mite o-t.eiall goals
of the ublic me.nmai health

syst.e.mn

2009 ACCOMPUSHMENTS

Received national attention

for our comprehensive suicide

prevention initiatives as best

practice model

Achieved significant progress in

transforming system of care in

Maricopa County including the

transition of direct care centers

to community-based providers

Applied evidence-based

treatments to encourage

community-based care as

an alternative to residential

treatment for children

Implemented EnhanceMedA

pharmacology best practice

management system with

significant improvement in

quality of prescriptions

Provided peer specialist training

on whole-health approaches to

care to promote better physical

and mental health for those with

serious mental illness

Selected as finalist for the

Council of State Governments

National Innovation Award for

MY LIFE program

Awarded first of two optional

extensions for Maricopa County

through 8/31/11

Awarded contract for Iowa

through 6/30/12 with optional

one-year extensions



CommercialBehavioral Health

2009 ACCOMPLiSHMENTS

Demonstrated positive clinical

outcomes and medical cost

savings from Medical-Behavioral

integration efforts with health

plan partners

Implemented Magellans Autism

Connectionss program in eight

Health Plans and two Employer

accounts

Awarded expansion of national

WellCare relationship

Conducted more than 2900

critical incident stress

management CISM sessions in

response to traumatic events

Measured health care outcomes

indicate 75 percent improvement

in outpatient members emotional

health and percent reduction

in missed work

Received award from RAE

Systems for supervisor training

on recognizing the signs of

post-traumatic stress disorder

for employees deployed in the

Middle East

Secured two-year extension of

largest commercial customer

contract as well as five-year

renewal of another significant

customer contract

With
greater awareness of the .nte.r play of rnedjcal and behavioral he.a.lt.h issue.s

legislated cha
nges

in benefit requirements
re.la.red to autism and rne.ntal health

parity a.nd increasing stress and demands on employexs a.nd employees mailagj.ng

hea.lth a.nd we..llne.ss is .rnore comolex today th.an eve.r

Bebavjoral he.alth rn.a.nage.ment
traditjonafl focused o.n to coral l..ea.lt.h and

substance a.buse disorde.rs as i.ndependent Ol.nes ses io.ay effect.tve
.nas..nage.rne.nt

demands aware.ness of and integrated strategies to add.ress n.ot only primary .rnental

health issues hut also the po.tenrially significant behavioral aspe.cts of chro.nic illnesse.s

st.ieh as h.e.art disease diabetes and kidney d.isease

lvl.agellan hr.sa lo.ng
track re.cord of working with

payors to s.nsure that members

have access to behavioral health care progra.ms
t..hat not only support

Leclividual

welhheing hut also help health plans
and em.pioye.rs offer comprehensive arsd cosu

effhccivehea.lth he nefits ivtmith integrated prog.ra.ms emp.loying proactive otttreach

on.going assessments and coordinated interventions and i.nclivi.d.ualized coaching

.Magellan helps people better man.age
their rnedica.l conditio.o.s and stay on track

with theintreatnse.nt regimens resulting i.n better clinical outcomr.s a.nd lower costs

Greatc le.gislative attention to health care issues at both the state a.od fed.eral

levels i.ric.luding mandated coverage
for auds.m specttu.m

disorders and
parity

legislation has cmea.re.d additional opportu.nt1es
Ar Magellan as payors

look for

assistanc.e in ad.apting to new requirements

T.heMagella.n Autism ConnectionM program la.unched in 2009 offers

comprehensive approac.h that combines care coord.inarion quality management

and fhrn..il support to ad.d.reas the growing .need Ar treatment of autism spectrum

disord.ers i.n children By providing ccess to specially developed network of

autumn e.xpcrts and enhanced coord.iriation ac.ross sultiple disciplines couple.d with

much.needed suppo.rt for parents
oth.er carerake.rs and fismily tnemhe.rs Magellan

he.lps improve quality of life Ar kids And we help enstire that pare..nts h.a.ve the skills

and resources riot only to support
their families hut also to he productive at work

.nd in their communities

.A lonAtime supporter
of rh.e notion of

parity
in

coverage
of behavio.ral h.ealth

conditions Magellan is playing an important consultative .role as payors
health

plans a.nd employers --- contemplate the need to rewrite benefit plans to comp.l.y
w.irh

new regulations MAth deca.dc of experience in behavioral health ma.nage.merlr

benefit a1an design and d.ara analytics Magellan experts arc uniquely positioned

to assist paytts in understanding how best to meet the le.rre.r and spirit of the parity

law while also
continuIng to provide afford.ahle he.alrh care to rh.eir consriru.enrs
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PART

Forward-Looking and Cautionary Statements

This Form 10-K includes forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the

Securities Act of 1933 as amended the Securities Act and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 as amended the Exchange Act Although the Company as defined below believes

that its plans intentions and expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are reasonable

it can give no assurance that such plans intentions or expectations will be achieved Prospective

investors are cautioned that any such forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future

performance and involve risks and uncertainties and that actual results may differ materially from

those contemplated by such forward-looking statements Important factors currently known to

management that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in forward-looking

statements are set forth under the heading Risk Factors in Item 1A and elsewhere in this Form 10-K

When used in this Form 10-K the words estimate anticipate expect believe should and

similar expressions are intended to be forward- looking statements

Item Business

Magellan Health Services Inc Magellan was incorporated in 1969 under the laws of the State

of Delaware Magellans executive offices are located at 55 Nod Road Avon Connecticut 06001 and

its telephone number at that location is 860 507-1900 Reference in this report to the Company
includes Magellan its majority owned subsidiaries and all variable interest entities VIEs for which

Magellan is the primary beneficiary

Business Overview

The Company is engaged in the specialty managed healthcare business Through 2005 the

Company predominantly operated in the managed behavioral healthcare business During 2006 the

Company expanded into radiology benefits management and specialty pharmaceutical management as

result of certain acquisitions The Company recently expanded into Medicaid administration as result

of its July 31 2009 acquisition of certain equity interests and assets from Coventry Health Care Inc

Coventry as discussed below inAcquisition of First Health Services The Company provides

services to health plans insurance companies employers labor unions and various governmental

agencies The Companys business is divided into the following six segments based on the services it

provides and/or the customers that it serves as described below

Managed Behavioral Healthcare

Two of the Companys segments are in the managed behavioral healthcare business This line of

business generally reflects the Companys coordination and management of the delivery of behavioral

healthcare treatment services that are provided through its contracted network of third-party treatment

providers which includes psychiatrists psychologists other behavioral health professionals psychiatric

hospitals general medical facilities with psychiatric beds residential treatment centers and other

treatment facilities The treatment services provided through the Companys provider network include

outpatient programs such as counseling or therapy intermediate care programs such as intensive

outpatient programs and partial hospitalization services inpatient treatment and crisis intervention

services The Company generally does not directly provide or own any provider of treatment services

except as related to the Companys contract to provide managed behavioral healthcare services to

Medicaid recipients and other beneficiaries of the Maricopa County Regional Behavioral Health

Authority the Maricopa Contract Under the Maricopa Contract effective August 31 2007 the

Company was required to assume the operations of twenty-four behavioral health direct care facilities

for transitional period and to divest itself of these facilities over two year period During March

2009 the Company began the operation of two additional behavioral health direct care facilities In



2008 and 2009 the Company entered into agreements to transition all behavioral health direct care

facilities over various dates All of the direct care facilities have been transitioned as of December 31
2009

The Company provides its management services primarily through risk-based products where

the Company assumes all or substantial portion of the responsibility for the cost of providing

treatment services in exchange for fixed per member per month fee ii administrative services only

ASO products where the Company provides services such as utilization review claims

administration and/or provider network management but does not assume responsibility for the cost of

the treatment services and iii employee assistance programs EAPs where the Company provides

short-term outpatient behavioral counseling services

The managed behavioral healthcare business is managed based on the services provided and/or the

customers served through the following two segments

Commercial The Managed Behavioral Healthcare Commercial segment Commercial
generally reflects managed behavioral healthcare services and EAP services provided under contracts

with health plans and insurance companies for some or all of their commercial Medicaid and Medicare

members as well as with employers including corporations and governmental agencies and labor

unions Commercials contracts encompass risk-based ASO and EAP arrangements As of

December 31 2009 Commercials covered lives were 4.1 million 13.6 million and 20.3 million for

risk-based EAP and ASO products respectively For the year ended December 31 2009 Commercials

revenue was $421.0 million $103.1 million and $126.0 million for risk-based EAP and ASO products

respectively

Public Sector The Managed Behavioral Healthcare Public Sector segment Public Sector

generally reflects services provided to Medicaid recipients under contracts with state and local

governmental agencies Public Sector contracts encompass either risk-based or ASO arrangements As

of December 31 2009 Public Sectors covered lives were 1.6 million and 0.3 million for risk-based and

ASO products respectively For the year ended December 31 2009 Public Sectors revenue was

$1.4 billion and $6.2 million for risk- based and ASO products respectively

Radiology Benefits Management

The Radiology Benefits Management segment Radiology Benefits Management generally

reflects the management of the delivery of diagnostic imaging services to ensure that such services are

clinically appropriate and cost effective The Companys radiology benefits management services

currently are provided under contracts with health plans and insurance companies for some or all of

their commercial Medicaid and Medicare members The Company also contracts with state and local

governmental agencies for the provision of such services to Medicaid recipients The Company offers its

radiology benefits management services through ASO contracts where the Company provides services

such as utilization review and claims administration but does not assume responsibility for the cost of

the imaging services and through risk-based contracts where the Company assumes all or substantial

portion of the responsibility for the cost of providing diagnostic imaging services As of December 31

2009 covered lives for Radiology Benefits Management were 3.4 million and 14.1 million for risk-based

and ASO products respectively For the
year ended December 31 2009 revenue for Radiology

Benefits Management was $254.6 million and $50.7 million for risk-based and ASO products

respectively

Specialty Pharmaceutical Management

The Specialty Pharmaceutical Management segment Specialty Pharmaceutical Management
generally reflects the management of specialty drugs used in the treatment of cancer multiple sclerosis

hemophilia infertility rheumatoid arthritis chronic forms of hepatitis and other diseases Specialty

pharmaceutical drugs represent high-cost injectible infused oral or inhaled drugs often with sensitive



handling or storage needs Patients receiving these drugs require greater amounts of clinical and

financial support than those taking more traditional agents The Companys specialty pharmaceutical

management services are provided under contracts with health plans insurance companies and

governmental agencies for some or all of their commercial Medicare and Medicaid members The

Companys specialty pharmaceutical services include contracting and formulary optimization on

behalf of health plans and pharmaceutical manufacturers ii dispensing specialty pharmaceutical drugs

on behalf of health plans iii providing strategic consulting services to health plans and

pharmaceutical manufacturers and iv providing oncology management services to health plans and

state Medicaid programs The Companys Specialty Pharmaceutical Management segment had contracts

with 40 health plans and several pharmaceutical manufacturers and state Medicaid programs as of

December 31 2009

Medicaid Administration

The Medicaid Administration segment Medicaid Administration generally reflects integrated

clinical management services provided to the public sector to manage Medicaid pharmacy mental

health and long-term care programs The Companys Medicaid Administration services include the

management of pharmacy benefits administration PBA medical management information services

and fiscal agent services FAS and health care management services HCM Medicaid

Administration management services are provided under contracts with states to Medicaid and other

state sponsored program recipients Medicaid Administrations contracts encompass Fee-For-Service

FFS arrangements

Corporate and Other

This segment of the Company is comprised primarily of operational support functions such as sales

and marketing and information technology as well as corporate support functions such as executive

finance human resources and legal

Acquisition of National Imaging Associates

On January 31 2006 the Company acquired all of the outstanding stock of National Imaging

Associates Inc NIA privately held radiology benefits management RBM firm for

approximately $121 million in cash after giving effect to cash acquired in the transaction and NIA

became wholly-owned subsidiary The Company reports the results of operations of NIA in the

Radiology Benefits Management segment

Acquisition of ICORE Healthcare LLC

On July 31 2006 the Company acquired all of the outstanding units of membership interest of

ICORE Healthcare LLC ICORE specialty pharmaceutical management company and ICORE

became wholly-owned subsidiary The Company reports the results of operations of ICORE in the

Specialty Pharmaceutical Management segment

The Company paid or agreed to pay to the previous unitholders of ICORE all of whom were

members of ICOREs management team $161 million of cash at closing ii $24 million of cash

that was used by the unitholders of ICORE to purchase Magellan restricted stock with such restricted

stock vesting over three years provided the unitholders did not earlier terminate their employment with

Magellan iii $25 million plus accrued interest the Deferred Payment subject to any indemnity

claims Magellan may have had under the purchase agreement iv the amount of positive working

capital that existed at ICORE on the closing date the Working Capital Payments which was

$18.2 million of which $17.8 million was paid during 2007 with the remainder paid in January 2008 and

potential earn-out of up to $75 million the Earn-Out provided the unitholders did not earlier

terminate their employment with the Company prior to the payment of the Earn-Out The $161 million



of cash paid at closing the $25 million Deferred Payment and $18.2 million of Working Capital

Payments were recorded as purchase price The $24 million of restricted stock was recognized as stock

compensation expense over the three year vesting period The $24 million in restricted stock was issued

in transaction pursuant to which the unitholders of ICORE at closing applied $24 million of the

purchase price as cash consideration for their purchase of restricted shares of the Companys common
stock The unitholders subscribed to an aggregate of 543879 restricted shares of the Companys
common stock on basis proportional to each unitholders economic interest in ICORE at purchase

price of $44.13 per share which was the average of the closing prices of the Companys common stock

on NASDAQ for the twenty trading days immediately preceding the closing The Deferred Payment

was paid in December 2008 The Earn-Out included up to $25 million based on earnings for the

18 month period ended December 31 2007 and ii up to $50 million based on earnings in 2008 The

Earn-Out provisions were not met and as result the Company did not pay any additional purchase

consideration

Acquisition of First Health Services

Pursuant to the June 2009 Purchase Agreement the Purchase Agreement with Coventry on

July 31 2009 the Company acquired the Acquisition all of the outstanding equity interests of

Coventrys direct and indirect subsidiaries First Health Services Corporation FHS FHC Inc

FHC and Provider Synergies LLC together with FHS and FHC First Health Services and

certain assets of Coventry which are related to the operation of the business conducted by First Health

Services First Health Services provides pharmacy benefits management and other services to Medicaid

programs As consideration for the Acquisition the Company paid $115.4 million in cash excluding

cash acquired and including payment of $7.4 million for excess working capital with such amount

being subject to final adjustments as provided in the Purchase Agreement The Company funded the

Acquisition with cash on hand

The Company reports the results of operations of First Health Services as separate segment

entitled Medicaid Administration

For further discussion see Note 3Acquisitions to the consolidated financial statements set

forth elsewhere herein

Industry

According to the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services CMS U.S healthcare spending

was projected to have increased 5.7 percent to $2.5 trillion in 2009 representing more than 17 percent

of the gross domestic product With the uncertain economic environment rising healthcare costs

increased fiscal pressures on federal and state governments and discussions on potential healthcare

reform healthcare spending will continue to be one of the greatest pressing issues for the American

public and the government agencies The rapidly evolving clinical and technological environment

demands the expertise of specialized healthcare management services to provide both high-quality and

affordable care

Through 2005 the Company predominantly operated in the managed behavioral healthcare

industry Since 2005 the Company has diversified into the areas of radiology benefits management

specialty pharmaceutical management and Medicaid administration The Company has transformed

itself into diversified specialty managed healthcare company by entering various healthcare cost and

care management areas that represent meaningful portion of the healthcare dollar and that are

growing at disproportionately higher rate than other areas of healthcare The Company defines areas

of healthcare that can be carved out for specialty healthcare management to be areas where

The management and cost of care are separable from other areas of healthcare management



The Company can provide value to its customers resulting from managing care beyond what

such customers can achieve on their own

The value that the Company provides to its customers is measurable

Business Strategy

The Company is engaged in the specialty managed healthcare business It currently provides

managed behavioral healthcare services radiology benefit management services specialty

pharmaceutical management services and Medicaid administration The Companys strategy is to

expand its participation in the healthcare management services market through the expansion of its

existing businesses and diversification into new specialties and services The Company believes that its

clients would prefer to consolidate outsourced vendors and that as vendor offering multiple

outsourced products it will have competitive advantage in the market The Company seeks to grow

its specialty managed healthcare business through the following initiatives

Expanding the managed behavioral healthcare business The Company has operated in both the

commercial and public sectors of managed behavioral healthcare by ensuring the delivery of quality

outcomes and appropriate care through its unique behavioral healthcare expertise
in managing clinical

care provider networks claims and customer service The Company focuses on continually developing

and providing innovative and cost effective solutions to its customers Through its commercial

behavioral segment the Company seeks to provide superior outsourced alternative to its health plan

and employer customers The Company has expanded its product offerings in response to legislative

changes affecting mental health parity and autism Through its public sector segment the Company

seeks to help state and local governments deal with their fiscal
pressures resulting from increasing

Medicaid enrollment and rising healthcare costs The Company intends to continue marketing both its

risk-based and ASO products as well as new products to its existing customer base and new customers

and to cross-sell its behavioral product portfolio to its other specialty segments customer base

Expanding the radiology benefits management services business Since the Companys acquisition
of

NIA in 2006 the Company has continued its focus on delivering innovative and clinically appropriate

radiology management programs that create value for its clients through the reduction in the number

of inappropriate radiology services and by ensuring the delivery of appropriate services through quality

providers NIA seeks to distinguish itself in the marketplace through focus on clinical excellence

provider partnerships product and service innovation and consumerism Since the acquisition of NIA
the Company has expanded NIAs original product offerings into risk-based products and continues to

expand its product portfolio with customer-focused solutions in cardiac management radiation oncology

therapy management and non-advanced imaging management The Company intends to continue

marketing both its risk-based products and recently developed products to current ASO customers as

well as new RBM customers through cross-selling to its other specialty segments customer base and

broadening its focus to new market segments

Expanding the specialty pharmaceutical management business Since the Companys acquisition of

ICORE in 2006 the Company has continued to focus on the expansion of its unique service model of

providing contracting and formulary optimization services specialty pharmaceutical dispensing services

and strategic solutions consulting ICOREs growth strategy is to leverage Magellans operational

platform software development and claims processing expertise to develop specialty pharmaceutical

management products that drive savings for its customers The Company recently expanded its product

portfolio to include an oncology management product The Company continues to cross-sell ICOREs

product portfolio to its other specialty segments customer base

Expanding the Medicaid administration business As previously discussed the Company entered the

Medicaid administration business through its acquisition
of First Health Services on July 31 2009 The

Company believes it can leverage its operational platform and expertise to expand and enhance First



Health Services product offering The Company intends to cross-sell First Health Services products to

its current managed behavioral healthcare radiology benefits management and specialty

pharmaceutical management customer base

Expanding product penetration in new or growing markets The Company seeks to expand its

existing products and services in new and/or growing markets For example in recent years the

Medicaid market has increased its use of specialty managed healthcare services With Medicaid

experience in managed behavioral healthcare radiology benefits management specialty pharmaceutical

management and Medicaid administration the Company believes it is positioned to grow its

membership and revenues in the Medicaid market over the long term as result of its proven expertise

in managing these services

Continued selective diversification of business lines The Company actively evaluates opportunities

to enter other significant high trend specialty healthcare businesses that would leverage its expertise

and core competencies and/or that could draw on its existing customer relationships

Customer Contracts

The Companys contracts with customers typically have terms of one to three years and in certain

cases contain renewal provisions at the customers option for successive terms of between one and

two years unless terminated earlier Substantially all of these contracts may be immediately

terminated with cause and many of the Companys contracts are terminable without cause by the

customer or the Company either upon the giving of requisite notice and the
passage

of specified

period of time typically between 60 and 180 days or upon the occurrence of other specified events In

addition the Companys contracts with federal state and local governmental agencies generally are

conditioned on legislative appropriations These contracts generally can be terminated or modified by

the customer if such appropriations are not made The Companys contracts for managed behavioral

healthcare and radiology benefits management services generally provide for payment of per member

per month fee to the Company See Risk FactorsRisk-Based Products and Reliance on

Customer Contracts

The Companys contracts with the State of Tennessees TennCare program TennCare and the

Companys Maricopa Contract generated net revenues that exceeded in the aggregate ten percent of

net revenues for the consolidated Company for the year ended December 31 2008 The Maricopa

Contract generated net revenues that exceeded in the aggregate ten percent of net revenues for the

consolidated Company for the year ended December 31 2009 The Company also has significant

concentration of business from contracts with subsidiaries of WellPoint Inc WellPoint and with

various counties in the State of Pennsylvania the Pennsylvania Counties which are part of the

Pennsylvania Medicaid program See further discussion related to these significant customers in Risk
FactorsReliance on Customer Contracts In addition see Risk FactorsDependence on

Government Spending for discussion of risks to the Company related to government contracts

Provider Network

Except for certain services which were provided under the Maricopa Contract see Business
Business Overview the Companys managed behavioral healthcare services and EAP treatment

services are provided by contracted network of third-party providers including psychiatrists

psychologists other behavioral health professionals psychiatric hospitals general medical facilities with

psychiatric beds residential treatment centers and other treatment facilities The number and type of

providers in particular area depend upon customer preference site geographic concentration and

demographic composition of the beneficiary population in that area The Companys managed
behavioral healthcare network consists of approximately 72000 behavioral healthcare providers

including facility locations providing various levels of care nationwide The Companys network

providers are almost exclusively independent contractors located throughout the local areas in which



the Companys customers beneficiary populations
reside Outpatient network providers work out of

their own offices although the Companys personnel are available to assist them with consultation and

other needs

Non-facility network providers include both individual practitioners as well as individuals who are

members of group practices or other licensed centers or programs Non-facility network providers

typically execute standard contracts with the Company under which they are generally paid on

fee-for-service basis

Third-party
network facilities include inpatient psychiatric

and substance abuse hospitals intensive

outpatient facilities partial hospitalization facilities community health centers and other community-

based facilities rehabilitative and support facilities and other intermediate care and alternative care

facilities or programs This variety of facilities enables the Company to offer patients full continuum

of care and to refer patients to the most appropriate facility or program within that continuum

Typically the Company contracts with facilities on per diem or fee-for-service basis and in some

limited cases on case rate or capitated
basis The contracts between the Company and inpatient

and other facilities typically are for one-year terms and are terminable by the Company or the facility

upon 30 to 120 days notice

Historically the Companys radiology benefits management services were provided by network of

third-party providers that were contracted by the customers of the Company to provide such services to

the customers members or enrollees To support
its offering of risk-based arrangements the Company

has developed and continues to expand proprietary
network of providers directly through the use of

its internal networking resources and indirectly through network contracting company Network

providers include diagnostic imaging centers radiology departments of hospitals that provide advanced

imaging services on an outpatient basis and individual physicians or physician groups that own

advanced imaging equipment and specialize in certain specific areas of care The Company contracts

with these providers on fee-for-service basis

Joint Ventures

Prior to April 11 2006 Premier Behavioral Systems of Tennessee LLC Premier was joint

venture in which the Company owned 50 percent interest On April 11 2006 the Company

purchased the other 50 percent interest in Premier for $1.5 million so that Premier is now wholly-

owned subsidiary of the Company Premier was formed to manage behavioral healthcare benefits for

certain portion of TennCare In addition the Company contracted with Premier to provide certain

services to the joint venture

As of December 31 2005 the Company owned 37.5 percent interest in Royal Health Care LLC

Royal Royal was managed services organization that received management fees for the provision

of administrative marketing management and support services to seven managed care organizations

Royal did not provide any services to the Company The Company accounted for its investment in

Royal using the equity
method Effective February 2006 the Company sold its Royal ownership

interest back to Royal in exchange for cash proceeds of $20.5 million

Competition

The Companys business is highly competitive The Company competes with other healthcare

organizations as well as with insurance companies including health maintenance organizations

HMO5 preferred provider organizations PPOs third-party administrators TPAs
independent practitioner associations IPAs multi-disciplinary medical groups pharmacy benefit

managers PBM5 healthcare information technology solutions and other specialty healthcare and

managed care companies Many of the Companys competitors particularly certain insurance

companies HMOs technology companies and PBMs are significantly larger and have greater financial

marketing and other resources than the Company and some of the Companys competitors provide



broader range of services The Company may also encounter competition in the future from new
market entrants In addition some of the Companys customers that are managed care companies may
seek to provide specialty managed healthcare services directly to their subscribers rather than by

contracting with the Company for such services Because of these factors the Company does not expect
to be able to rely to significant degree on price increases to achieve revenue growth and expects to

continue experiencing pricing pressures

Insurance

The Company maintains program of insurance coverage for broad range of risks in its business
The Company has renewed its general professional and managed care liability insurance policies with

unaffiliated insurers for one-year period from June 17 2009 to June 17 2010 The general liability

policies are written on an occurrence basis subject to $0.05 million per claim un-aggregated
self-insured retention The professional liability and managed care errors and omissions liability policies

are written on claims-made basis subject to $1.0 million per claim $10.0 million per class action

claim un-aggregated self-insured retention for managed care liability and $0.05 million per claim

un-aggregated self-insured retention for professional liability

The Company maintains separate general and professional liability insurance policies with an

unaffiliated insurer for its Specialty Pharmaceutical Management business The Specialty

Pharmaceutical Management insurance policies have one-year term for the period June 17 2009 to

June 17 2010 The general liability policies are written on an occurrence basis subject to

$0.05 million per claim un-aggregated self-insured retention The professional liability policy is written

on claims-made basis subject to $0.05 million per claim un-aggregated self-insured retention

The Company maintains
separate professional liability insurance policies with unaffiliated insurers

for its Maricopa Contract business relating to the behavioral health direct care facilities The Maricopa
Contract professional liability insurance policies effective dates are from September 2008 to

September 2009 The Company purchased five-year extended reporting period for the professional

liability policies effective September 2009 for the period September 2009 to September 2014
subject to $0.5 million per claim un-aggregated self-insured retention The professional liability

policies are written on claims-made basis

The Company is
responsible for claims within its self-insured retentions and for portions of claims

reported after the expiration date of the policies if they are not renewed or if policy limits are

exceeded The Company also purchases excess liability coverage in an amount that management
believes to be reasonable for the size and profile of the organization See Risk FactorsProfessional

Liability and Other Insurance for discussion of the risks associated with the Companys insurance

coverage

Regulation

General The specialty managed healthcare industry is subject to extensive and evolving state and

federal regulation The Company is subject to certain state laws and regulations including those

governing the licensing of insurance companies HMOs PPOs TPAs pharmacies and companies

engaged in utilization review and specialty pharmaceutical management In addition the Company is

subject to regulations concerning the licensing of healthcare professionals including restrictions on

business corporations from providing controlling or exercising excessive influence over healthcare

services through the direct employment of physicians psychiatrists or in certain states psychologists
and other healthcare professionals These laws and regulations vary considerably among states and the

Company may be subject to different types of laws and regulations depending on the specific regulatory

approach adopted by each state to regulate the managed care and specialty pharmacy businesses and

the
provision of healthcare treatment services In addition the Company is subject to certain federal

laws as result of the role it assumes in connection with managing its customers employee benefit

10



plans The regulatory
scheme generally applicable to the Companys operations

is described in this

section

The Company believes its operations are structured to comply in all material respects with

applicable laws and regulations and that it has received all licenses and approvals that are material to

the operation
of its business However regulation of the specialty managed healthcare industry is

constantly evolving with new legislative enactments and regulatory
initiatives at the state and federal

levels being implemented on regular basis Consequently it is possible that court or regulatory

agency may take position under existing or future laws or regulations or as result of change in

the interpretation thereof that such laws or regulations apply to the Company in different manner

than the Company believes such laws or regulations apply Moreover any such position may require

significant
alterations to the Companys business operations

in order to comply with such laws or

regulations or interpretations thereof Expansion of the Companys business to cover additional

geographic areas to serve different types
of customers to provide new services or to commence new

operations
could also subject the Company to additional licensure requirements and/or regulation

Failure to comply with applicable regulatory requirements could have material adverse affect on the

Company

Licenses Certain regulatory agencies having jurisdiction over the Company possess discretionary

powers when issuing or renewing licenses or granting approval of proposed actions such as mergers

change in ownership transfer or assignment of licenses and certain intra-corporate transactions One or

multiple agencies may require as condition of such license or approval that the Company cease or

modify certain of its operations or modify the way it operates in order to comply with applicable

regulatory requirements or policies In addition the time necessary to obtain license or approval

varies from state to state and difficulties in obtaining necessary license or approval may result in

delays in the Companys plans to expand operations
in particular state and in some cases lost

business opportunities In recent years in response to governmental agency inquiries or discussions with

regulators the Company has determined to seek licensing for its managed behavioral healthcare and

radiology benefits management business as single service HMO TPA or utilization review agent in

one or more jurisdictions The Company has also sought and obtained utilization review licenses in

some states for its pharmaceutical management business Compliance activities mandated changes in

the Companys operations delays in the expansion of the Companys business or lost business

opportunities as result of regulatory requirements or policies could have material adverse effect on

the Company As discussed below in the section entitled Regulations Affecting the Companys

Pharmacies the Company is subject to certain state licensure requirements in relation to its specialty

pharmaceutical management business
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Insurance HMO and PPO Activities To the extent that the Company operates or is deemed to

operate in some states as an insurance company HMO PPO or similar entity it may be required to

comply with certain laws and regulations that among other things may require the Company to

maintain certain types of assets and minimum levels of deposits capital surplus reserves or net worth
In many states entities that assume risk under contracts with licensed insurance companies or HMOs
have not been considered by state regulators to be conducting an insurance or HMO business As
result the Company has not sought licenses as either an insurer or HMO in certain states The
National Association of Insurance Commissioners the NAIC has undertaken comprehensive
review of the regulatory status of entities arranging for the provision of healthcare services through
network of providers that like the Company may assume risk for the cost and quality of healthcare

services but that are not currently licensed as an HMO or similar entity As result of this review the

NAIC developed health organizations risk-based capital formula designed specifically for managed
care organizations that establishes minimum amount of capital necessary for managed care

organization to support its overall operations allowing consideration for the organizations size and risk

profile The NAIC also adopted model regulation in the area of health plan standards which could
be adopted by individual states in whole or in part and could result in the Company being required to

meet additional or new standards in connection with its existing operations Certain states for example
have adopted regulations based on the NAIC initiative and as result the Company has been subject

to certain minimum capital requirements in those states Certain other states such as Maryland Texas
New York and New Jersey have also adopted their own regulatory initiatives that subject entities such

as certain of the Companys subsidiaries to regulation under state insurance laws This includes but is

not limited to requiring adherence to specific financial solvency standards State insurance laws and

regulations may limit the Companys ability to pay dividends make certain investments and repay
certain indebtedness Being licensed as an insurance company HMO or similar entity could also subject
the Company to regulations governing reporting and disclosure mandated benefits rate setting and

other traditional insurance regulatory requirements PPO regulations to which the Company may be

subject may require the Company to register with state authority and provide information concerning
its operations particularly relating to provider and payor contracting The imposition of such

requirements could increase the Companys cost of doing business and could delay the Companys
conduct or expansion of its business in some areas The licensing process under state insurance laws

can be lengthy and unless the applicable state regulatory agency allows the Company to continue to

operate while the licensing process is ongoing the Company could experience material adverse effect

on its operating results and financial condition while its license application is pending In addition
failure to obtain and maintain required licenses typically also constitutes an event of default under the

Companys contracts with its customers The loss of business from one or more of the Companys
major customers as result of such an event of default or otherwise could have material adverse

effect on the Company

Regulators may impose operational restrictions on entities granted licenses to operate as insurance

companies or HMOs For example the California Department of Managed Health Care has imposed
certain restrictions on the ability of the Companys California subsidiaries to fund the Companys
operations in other states to guarantee or co-sign for the Companys financial obligations or to pledge
or hypothecate the stock of these subsidiaries and on the Companys ability to make certain operational

changes with respect to these subsidiaries In addition regulators of certain of the Companys
subsidiaries may exercise certain discretionary rights under regulations including without limitation

increasing its supervision of such entities requiring additional restricted cash or other security

Utilization Review and Third-Party Administrator Activities Numerous states in which the Company
does business have adopted regulations governing entities engaging in utilization review and TPA
activities Utilization review regulations typically impose requirements with respect to the qualifications
of personnel reviewing proposed treatment timeliness and notice of the review of proposed treatment

and other matters TPA regulations typically impose requirements regarding claims processing and
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payments and the handling of customer funds Utilization review and TPA regulations may increase the

Companys cost of doing business in the event that compliance requires the Company to retain

additional personnel to meet the regulatory requirements and to take other required actions and make

necessary filings Although compliance with utilization review regulations has not had material

adverse effect on the Company there can be no assurance that specific regulations adopted in the

future would not have such result particularly since the nature scope and specific requirements of

such provisions vary considerably among states that have adopted regulations of this type

Numerous states require the licensing or certification of entities performing utilization review or

TPA activities however certain federal courts have held that such licensing requirements are

preempted by the Employment Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 as amended ERISA
ERISA preempts state laws that mandate employee benefit structures or their administration as well as

those that provide alternative enforcement mechanisms The Company believes that its TPA activities

performed for its self-insured employee benefit plan customers are exempt from otherwise applicable

state licensing or registration requirements based upon federal preemption under ERISA and have

relied on this general principle in determining not to seek licenses for certain of the Companys

activities in some states Existing case law is not uniform on the applicability of ERISA preemption

with respect to state regulation of utilization review or TPA activities There can be no assurance that

additional licenses will not be required
with respect to utilization review or TPA activities in certain

states

Licensing of Healthcare Professionals
The provision of healthcare treatment services by physicians

psychiatrists psychologists and other providers
is subject to state regulation with respect to the licensing

of healthcare professionals The Company believes that the healthcare professionals who provide

healthcare treatment on behalf of or under contracts with the Company and the case managers and

other personnel of the health services business are in compliance with the applicable state licensing

requirements and current interpretations thereof However there can be no assurance that changes in

such state licensing requirements or interpretations
thereof will not adversely affect the Companys

existing operations or limit expansion With respect to the Companys crisis intervention program

additional licensing of clinicians who provide telephonic assessment or stabilization services to

individuals who are calling from out-of-state may be required if such assessment or stabilization services

are deemed by regulatory agencies to be treatment provided in the state of such individuals residence

The Company believes that any such additional licenses could be obtained

Prohibition on Fee Splitting and Corporate Practice of Professions The laws of some states limit the

ability of business corporation to directly provide control or exercise excessive influence over

healthcare services through the direct employment of physicians psychiatrists psychologists or other

healthcare professionals who are providing direct clinical services In addition the laws of some states

prohibit physicians psychiatrists psychologists or other healthcare professionals from splitting fees with

other persons or entities These laws and their interpretations vary
from state to state and enforcement

by the courts and regulatory authorities may vary from state to state and may change over time The

Company believes that its operations as currently conducted are in material compliance with the

applicable laws However there can be no assurance that the Companys existing operations and its

contractual arrangements with physicians psychiatrists psychologists and other healthcare professionals

will not be successfully challenged under state laws prohibiting fee splitting or the practice of

profession by an unlicensed entity or that the enforceability of such contractual arrangements will not

be limited The Company believes that it could if necessary restructure its operations to comply with

changes in the interpretation or enforcement of such laws and regulations and that such restructuring

would not have material adverse effect on its operations

Direct Contracting with Licensed Insurers Regulators in several states in which the Company does

business have adopted policies that require HMOs or in some instances insurance companies to
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contract directly with licensed healthcare providers entities or provider groups such as IPAs for the

provision of treatment services rather than with unlicensed intermediary companies In such states the

Companys customary model of contracting directly is modified so that for example the IPAs rather
than the Company contract directly with the HMO or insurance company as appropriate for the

provision of treatment services

HIPAA The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 HIPAA requires the

Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services HHS to adopt standards relating to

the transmission privacy and security of health information by healthcare providers and healthcare

plans Confidentiality and patient privacy requirements are particularly strict in the Companys
behavioral managed care business In connection with HIPAA the Company initially commissioned

dedicated HIPAA project management office to achieve compliance within the required timeframes

Oversight responsibilities for HIPAA compliance is now being handled by the Companys Corporate

Compliance Department The Company believes it is currently in compliance with the provisions of

HIPAA

The Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act HITECH Act
passed as part of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009

represents significant

expansion of the HIPAA privacy and security laws The HITECH Act provisions contain multiple

effective dates The Company believes it is
currently in compliance with those provisions of the

HITECH Act and associated regulations that are currently in effect and will be in compliance with

those portions of the law and regulations that become effective in the future Regulations interpreting
this new law have yet to be promulgated The Company believes that it can comply with changes in

these laws and regulations however there can be no assurance that compliance with such laws and

regulations would not have material adverse effect on its operations

Other Significant Privacy Regulation The privacy regulation under HIPAA generally does not

preempt state law except under the following limited circumstances the privacy rights afforded

under state law are contrary to those provided by HIPAA so that compliance with both standards is not

possible and ii HIPAAs privacy protections are more stringent than the state law in question Because

many states have privacy laws that either provide more stringent privacy protections than those imposed

by HIPAA or laws that can be followed in addition to HIPAA the Company must address privacy
issues under HIPAA and state law as well While the Company has always been required to follow state

privacy laws the Company now has had to review these state laws against HIPAA to determine

whether it must comply with standards established by both HIPAA and state law In addition HIPAA
has created an increased awareness of the issues surrounding privacy which may generate more state

regulatory scrutiny in this area

Federal Anti-Remuneration/Fraud and Abuse Laws The federal healthcare Anti-Kickback Statute

the Anti-Kickback Statute prohibits among other things an entity from paying or receiving subject

to certain exceptions and safe harbors any remuneration directly or indirectly to induce the referral

of individuals covered by federally funded health care programs or the purchase or the arranging for

or recommending of the purchase of items or services for which payment may be made in whole or in

part under Medicare Medicaid TRICARE or other federally funded health care programs Sanctions

for violating the Anti-Kickback Statute may include imprisonment criminal and civil fines and exclusion

from participation in the federally funded health care programs The Anti-Kickback Statute has been

interpreted broadly by courts the Office of Inspector General OIG within the U.S Department of

Health Human Services DHHS and other administrative bodies It also is crime under the

Public Contractor Anti-Kickback Statute for any person to knowingly and willfully offer or provide any
remuneration to prime contractor to the United States including contractor servicing federally
funded health programs in order to obtain favorable treatment in subcontract Violators of this law

also may be subject to civil monetary penalties There have been series of substantial civil and
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criminal investigations and settlements at the state and federal level by pharmacy benefit managers

over the last several years in connection with alleged kickback schemes The Company believes that it is

in compliance with the legal requirements imposed by such anti-remuneration laws and regulations

however there can be no assurance that the Company will not be subject to scrutiny or challenge

under such laws or regulations
and that any such challenge would not have material adverse effect on

the Companys business results of operations financial condition or cash flows

Federal Statutes Prohibiting False Claims The Federal Civil False Claims Act imposes civil

penalties for knowingly making or causing to be made false claims with respect to governmental

programs such as Medicare and Medicaid for services not rendered or for misrepresenting actual

services rendered in order to obtain higher reimbursement Private individuals may bring qui tam or

whistle blower suits against providers under the Federal Civil False Claims Act which authorizes the

payment of portion of any recovery
to the individual bringing suit few federal district courts

recently have interpreted the Federal Civil False Claims Act as applying to claims for reimbursement

that violate the Anti-Kickback Statute under certain circumstances The Federal Civil False Claims Act

generally provides for the imposition of civil penalties and for treble damages resulting in the

possibility of substantial financial penalties for small billing errors Criminal provisions that are similar

to the Federal Civil False Claims Act provide that corporation may be fined if it is convicted of

presenting to any federal agency claim or making statement that it knows to be false fictitious or

fraudulent Even in situations where the Company does not directly provide services to beneficiaries of

federally funded health programs and accordingly does not directly submit claims to the federal

government it is possible that the Company could nevertheless become involved in situation where

false claim issues are raised based on allegations that it caused or assisted government contractor in

making false claim

The Company is subject to certain provisions of the Deficit Reduction Act of 2005 the Act
The Act requires

entities that receive $5 million or more in annual Medicaid payments to establish

written policies that provide detailed information about the Federal Civil False Claims Act and the

remedies thereunder as well as any state laws pertaining to civil or criminal penalties for false claims

and statements the whistleblower protections
afforded under such laws and the role of such laws in

preventing and detecting fraud waste and abuse The written policies are to be disseminated to all

employees contractors and agents
which or who on behalf of the entity furnishes or otherwise

authorizes the furnishing of Medicaid health care items or services performs billing or coding

functions or is involved in the monitoring of health care provided by the entity In addition any such

entity that has an employee handbook must include specific discussion of the federal and state false

claims laws the rights of an employee to be protected as whistle blower and the entitys policies and

procedures for detecting and preventing fraud waste and abuse The Company does not believe that it

is in violation of the Federal Civil False Claims Act or its criminal counterparts and the Company has

corporate compliance and ethics program policies and procedures and internal controls in place to

help maintain an organizational culture of honesty and integrity

State Anti-Remuneration/False Claims Law Several states have laws and/or regulations similar to

the federal anti-remuneration and Federal False Claims Act described above Sanctions for violating

these state anti-remuneration and false claims laws may include injunction imprisonment criminal and

civil fines and exclusion from participation in the state Medicaid programs The Company believes that

it is in substantial compliance with the legal requirements imposed by such anti-remuneration laws and

regulations However there can be no assurance that the Company will not be subject to scrutiny or

challenge under such laws or regulations and that any such challenge would not have material

adverse effect on the Companys business results of operations financial condition or cash flows

ERJSA Certain of the Companys services are subject to the provisions of ERISA ERISA

governs certain aspects
of the relationship between employer-sponsored healthcare benefit plans and
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certain providers of services to such plans through series of complex laws and regulations that are

subject to periodic interpretation by the Internal Revenue Service IRS and the U.S Department of

Labor In some circumstances and under certain customer contracts the Company may be expressly

named as fiduciary under ERISA or be deemed to have assumed duties that make it an ERISA
fiduciary and thus be required to carry out its operations in manner that complies with ERISA in all

material respects The Company believes that it is in material compliance with ERISA and that such

compliance does not currently have material adverse effect on its operations however there can be

no assurance that continuing ERISA compliance efforts or any future changes to ERISA will not have

material adverse effect on the Company

Regulation of Customers Regulations imposed upon the Companys customers include among
other things benefits mandated by statute exclusions from coverage prohibited by statute procedures

governing the payment and processing of claims record keeping and reporting requirements

requirements for and payment rates applicable to coverage of Medicaid and Medicare beneficiaries

provider contracting and enrollee rights and confidentiality requirements Although the Company
believes that such regulations do not at present materially impair its operations there can be no

assurance that such indirect regulation will not have material adverse effect on the Company in the

future

In October 2008 the United States Congress passed the Paul Wellstone and Pete Dominici Mental

Health Parity Act of 2008 MHPAEA establishing parity in financial requirements e.g co-pays

deductibles etc and treatment limitations e.g limits on the number of
visits between mental health

and substance abuse benefits and medical/surgical benefits for health plan members This new law does

not require coverage for mental health or substance abuse disorders but if coverage is provided it must
be provided at parity No specific disorders are mandated for coverage health plans are able to define

mental health and substance abuse to determine what they are going to cover State mandated benefits

laws are not preempted The law applies to ERISA plans Medicaid managed care plans and State

Childrens Health Insurance Program SCHIP plans There is an exemption for small employers On
February 2010 the Department of the Treasury the Department of Labor and the Department of

Health and Human Services issued Interim Final Rules interpreting the MHPAEA No assurance can

be given that such legislation will not have material adverse effect on the Company However the

Companys risk contracts do allow for repricing to occur effective the same date that any legislation

becomes effective if that legislation is projected to have material affect on cost of care

Medicare Part Laws and Regulations The Medicare
Prescription Drug Improvement and

Modernization Act of 2003 MMA established voluntary outpatient prescription drug benefit for

Medicare enrollees on an insured basis through Prescription Drug Plans PDPs and by Medicare

Advantage Plans Part Activities in various regions across the United States The MMA has been

amended subsequently by several statutes most notably the Medicare Improvements for Patients and

Providers Act of 2008 or MIPPA and the federal Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services

CMS have issued significant interpretive regulations and guidance regarding the Medicare Part

drug benefit program Among other things PDPs and Medicare Advantage Plans are subject to

requirements intended to deter fraud waste and abuse and are monitored strictly by the federal CMS
and its contracted Medicare Drug Integrity Contractors MEDICs to ensure that Part program
funds are not spent inappropriately

The Company is neither PDP nor Medicare Advantage Plan however the Company contracts

with PDPs and Medicare Advantage Plans Part Plans to provide various services In the

Companys capacity as subcontractor with certain Part Plan clients the Company is
indirectly

subject to certain federal rules regulations and sub-regulatory guidance pertaining to the operation of

Medicare Part If CMS or health plan customer determines that the Company has not performed

satisfactorily as subcontractor CMS or the health plan customer may require the Company to cease

its Part activities or responsibilities under the subcontract While the Company believes that it
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provides satisfactory levels of service under its respective subcontracts the Company can give no

assurances that CMS or Part Plan will not terminate the Companys business relationships insofar

as they pertain to Medicare Part

CMS requires PDPs and Medicare Advantage Plans to report 100% of all price concessions

received for PBM services The applicable CMS guidance suggests that best practices would require

PDPs and Medicare Advantage Plans to contractually require the right to audit their PBMs as well as

require 100% transparency as to manufacturer rebates paid for drugs provided under the sponsors

plan including the portion of such rebates retained by the PBM as part of the price concession for the

PBMs services Additionally CMS requires Part Plan sponsors to ensure through their contractual

arrangements with first tier downstream and related entities which would include PBMs that CMS

has access to such entities books and records pertaining to services performed in connection with

Part The CMS regulations also suggests that Part Plan
sponsors

should contractually require their

first tier downstream and related entities to comply with certain elements of the sponsors compliance

program The Company has not experienced and does not anticipate that such disclosure and auditing

requirements to the extent required by Medicare plan partners will have materially adverse effect on

the Companys specialty pharmacy business

CMS also requires that Part plan sponsors beginning in 2010 calculate beneficiary cost sharing

based upon the price ultimately received by the pharmacy or other dispensing provider rather than

upon the price paid by the plan Such calculation could potentially result in lower pharmacy claims

reimbursement by Part plan sponsors In addition CMS requires that any profit realized or loss

incurred by PBM through price negotiations with pharmacies or manufacturers be included as

administrative costs to the plan rather than being factored into drug costs for reimbursement purposes

FDA Regulation The U.S Food and Drug Administration FDA generally has authority to

regulate drug promotional activities that are performed by or on behalf of drug manufacturer The

Companys business includes the provision
of educational seminars for prescribers and other of the

Companys customers on behalf of manufacturer clients and thus may be subject to the federal laws

applicable to the promotion of prescription drugs There can be no assurance that the FDA will not

attempt to assert jurisdiction over certain aspects
of the Companys specialty pharmacy business in the

future and although the Company is not controlled directly or indirectly by any drug manufacturer the

impact of future FDA regulation could materially adversely affect the Companys specialty pharmacy

business results of operations financial condition or cash flows

State Comprehensive PBM Regulation States continue to introduce broad legislation to regulate

pharmacy benefits management activities Some of this legislation could encompass certain of the

activities of the specialty pharmacy business of the Company In particular some legislation seeks to

impose fiduciary duties or disclosure obligations on entities that provide certain types
of pharmacy

management services Both Maine and the District of Columbia have enacted statutes designed to

impose certain fiduciary obligations on entities providing PBM services In 2008 Maryland

implemented comprehensive PBM registration legislation Other states including Mississippi Louisiana

Connecticut and Tennessee have recently enacted laws regulating various pharmacy benefit

management activities and similar legislation is pending in several more states Such laws generally

require certain financial disclosures Such state laws do not appear to be having material adverse

effect on the Companys specialty pharmacy business However the Company can give no assurance

that these and other states will not enact legislation with more adverse consequences in the near future

nor can the Company be certain that future regulations or interpretations of existing laws will not

adversely affect its specialty pharmacy business

State Legislation Affecting
Plan or Benefit Design Some states have enacted legislation that

prohibits certain types of managed care plan sponsors from implementing certain restrictive formulary

and network design features and many states have legislation regulating various aspects of managed
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care plans including provisions relating to pharmacy benefits Other states mandate coverage of certain

benefits or conditions and require health plan coverage of specific drugs if deemed medically necessary

by the prescribing physician Such legislation does not generally apply to the Company directly but may
apply to certain clients of the Company such as HMOs and health insurers

Legislation Affecting Drug Prices Specialty pharmaceutical manufacturers generally report various

price metrics to the federal government including average sales price ASP average
manufacturer price AMP and best price BP The Company does not calculate these price

metrics but the Company notes that the ASF AMP and BP methodologies may create incentives for

some drug manufacturers to reduce the levels of discounts or rebates available to purchasers including

the Company or their clients with respect to specialty drugs Any changes in the guidance affecting

pharmaceutical manufacturer price metric calculations could materially adversely affect the Companys
business

Additionally most of the Companys dispensing contracts with its customers use average
wholesale price AWP as benchmark for establishing pricing As part of settlements in the

consolidated cases of New England Carpenters Health Benefit Fund et al First Data Bank et al
Civil Action No 105-CV-11148-PBS Mass and District Council 37 Health and Security Plan et al

Medi-Span division of Wolters Kluwer Health Inc Civil Action No 07-10988-PBS Mass
First Data Bank and Medi-Span two of several companies that report data on prescription drug prices

have agreed to reduce the wholesale
average cost WAC to AWP mark up of certain pharmaceutical

products The reduction in WAC to AWP mark up has the effect of reducing the AWR This settlement

has not had material adverse affect on the Companys results of operations

Regulations Affecting the Companys Pharmacies The Company owns two pharmacies that provide

services to certain of the Companys health plan customers The activities undertaken by the Companys
pharmacies subject the pharmacies to state and federal statutes and regulations governing among other

things the licensure and operation of mail order and non-resident pharmacies repackaging of drug

products stocking of prescription drug products and dispensing of prescription drug products including

controlled substances The Companys pharmacy facilities are located in Florida and New York and are

duly licensed to conduct business in those states Many states however require out-of-state mail order

pharmacies to register with or be licensed by the state board of pharmacy or similar governing body
when pharmaceuticals are delivered by mail into the state and some states require that an out-of-state

pharmacy employ pharmacist that is licensed in the state into which pharmaceuticals are shipped The

Company holds mail order and non-resident pharmacy licenses where required

Regulation of Controlled Substances The Companys pharmacies must register with the United

States Drug Enforcement Administration the DEA and individual state controlled substance

authorities in order to dispense controlled substances Federal law requires the Company to comply
with the DEAs security recordkeeping inventory control and labeling standards in order to dispense

controlled substances State controlled substance law requires registration and compliance with state

pharmacy licensure registration or permit standards promulgated by the state pharmacy licensing

authority

Some of the state regulatory requirements described above may be preempted in whole or in
part

by ERISA which provides for comprehensive federal regulation of employee benefit plans However
the scope of ERISA preemption is uncertain and is subject to conflicting court rulings As result the

Company could be subject to overlapping federal and state regulatory requirements in respect of

certain of its operations and may need to implement compliance programs that satisfy multiple

regulatory regimes

Other Regulation of Healthcare Providers The Companys business is affected indirectly by

regulations imposed upon healthcare providers Regulations imposed upon healthcare providers include
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but are not limited to provisions relating to the conduct of and ethical considerations involved in the

practice of psychiatry psychology social work and related behavioral healthcare professions radiology

pharmacy accreditation government healthcare program participation requirements reimbursements

for patient services Medicare and Medicaid fraud and abuse and in certain cases the common law

duty to warn others of danger or to prevent patient self-injury Changes in these regulatory

requirements applicable to healthcare providers
could impact the Companys business methods and

practices and there can be no assurances that the impact would not be adverse and material

Federal Regulations affecting Procurement The Company also provides services to various state

Medicaid programs Services procurement is governed in part by federal regulations because the federal

government provides substantial amount of funding for the services The Companys state customers

risk loss of federal funding if the Company is not in compliance with federal regulations
The

Companys non-compliance may also lead to unanticipated negative financial consequences including

corrective action plans or contract default risks The Company believes the Company is in substantial

compliance with various federal regulations
and in compliance with contract provisions relating to the

services provided by commercial organization

Other Proposed Legislation In the last five years legislation has periodically been introduced at

the state and federal levels providing for new healthcare regulatory programs and materially revising

existing healthcare regulatory programs including without limitation legislation to carve out certain

classes from generic substitution Recently some states including Massachusetts Connecticut and

California have enacted or considered legislation regarding various forms of mandatory or universal

health insurance coverage Such legislation could include both federal and state bills affecting Medicaid

programs which may be pending in or recently passed by state legislatures and which are not yet

available for review and analysis Such legislation could also include proposals for national health

insurance or state-based mandatory universal health insurance coverage and other forms of federal and

state regulation of health insurance and healthcare delivery In states in which such new state

legislation has been enacted there has been no material adverse impact on the Company However the

Company at this time is unable to predict whether there may be any effect positive or negative on its

business as result of any such future legislation

Health Care Reform There is currently discussion about the potential for health care reform both

at state and national levels The proposals for reform include the government assuming larger role in

the health care system or restructuring of Medicare or Medicaid programs One of the items

discussed has been reducing payments to private health plans offering Medicare Advantage Depending

on the outcome of these potential reductions there is the possibility that membership and earnings

derived from these plans may decrease The Company cannot speculate on the outcome of any such

reform how it may impact the Companys business and when it may become effective Therefore at

this time the Company is unable to predict whether there will be any effect positive or adverse on its

business as result of any such healthcare reform

Employees of the Registrant

At December 31 2009 the Company had approximately 5200 full-time and part-time employees

The Company believes it has satisfactory relations with its employees

History

Magellan was incorporated in 1969 under the laws of the State of Delaware The Company is

engaged in the specialty managed healthcare business As previously discussed through 2005 the

Company predominantly operated in the managed behavioral healthcare business During 2006 the

Company expanded into radiology benefits management through the Companys acquisition of NIA and

into specialty pharmaceutical management as result of the Companys acquisition of ICORE The
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Company recently expanded into Medicaid administration as result of its July 31 2009 acquisition of

First Health Services

Available Information

The Company makes its annual reports on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 10-Q current

reports on Form 8-K amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13a or

15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Section 16 filings available free of charge on the

Companys website at wwwmagellanhealth.com as soon as practicable after the Company has

electronically filed such material with or furnished it to the Securities and Exchange Commission

SEC The information on the Companys website is not part of or incorporated by reference in this

report on Form 10-K

Item 1A Risk Factors

Reliance on Customer ContractsThe Companys inability to renew extend or replace expiring or

terminated contracts could adversely affect the Companys liquidity profitability and financial

condition

Substantially all of the Companys net revenue is derived from contracts that may be terminated

immediately with cause and many including some of the Companys most significant contracts are

terminable without cause by the customer upon notice and the passage of specified period of time

typically between 60 and 180 days or upon the occurrence of certain other specified events The

Companys ten largest customers accounted for 73.0 percent and 68.7 percent of the Companys net

revenue in the years ended December 31 2008 and 2009 respectively Loss of all of these contracts or

customers would and loss of any one of these contracts or customers could materially reduce the

Companys net revenue and have material adverse effect on the Companys liquidity profitability and

financial condition

Significant Customers

Consolidated Company

The Companys contracts with TennCare and the Companys Maricopa Contract generated net

revenues that exceeded in the aggregate ten percent of net revenues for the consolidated Company for

the year ended December 31 2008 The Maricopa Contract generated net revenues that exceeded in

the aggregate ten percent of net revenues for the consolidated Company for the year ended

December 31 2009 The Company also has significant concentration of business from contracts with

subsidiaries of WellPoint and with the Pennsylvania Counties

Pursuant to the Maricopa Contract the Company provides behavioral healthcare management and

other related services to approximately 714000 members in Maricopa County Arizona Under the

Maricopa Contract the Company is responsible for providing covered behavioral health services to

persons eligible under Title XIX Medicaid and Title XXI State Childrens Health Insurance

Program of the Social Security Act non-Title XIX and non-Title XIX eligible children and adults with

serious mental illness and to certain non-Title XIX and non-Title XXI adults with behavioral health

or substance abuse disorders The Maricopa Contract began on September 2007 and extends through

August 31 2011 unless sooner terminated by the parties The State of Arizona has the right to

terminate the Maricopa Contract for cause as defined upon ten days notice with an opportunity to

cure and without cause immediately upon notice from the State The Maricopa Contract generated net

revenues of $621.6 million and $725.0 million for the
years

ended December 31 2008 and 2009

respectively
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The TennCare program is divided into three regions and through March 31 2007 the Companys

TennCare contracts encompassed all of the TennCare membership for all three regions As of April

2007 substantially all of the membership in the Middle Grand Region was re-assigned to managed care

companies in accordance with contract awards by TennCare pursuant to its request for proposals for

the management of the integrated delivery of behavioral and physical medical care to the region

Substantially all of the membership in the West Grand and East Grand Regions was similarly

re-assigned to managed care companies in accordance with contract awards by TennCare effective

November 2008 and January 2009 respectively The Company continued to manage behavioral

healthcare services for children enrolled in TennCare Select High statewide as well as for certain

out-of-state TennCare members pursuant to contracts that extended through August 31 2009 at which

time the contracts terminated The Company recorded net revenues of $282.4 million and $36.8 million

for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2009 respectively from its TennCare contracts

Total net revenues from the Companys contracts with WellPoint were $186.7 million and

$170.4 million during the years ended December 31 2008 and 2009 respectively including radiology

benefits management revenue of $162.5 million and $155.9 million respectively

In July 2007 WellPoint acquired radiology benefits management company and has expressed its

intent to in-source all of its radiology benefits management contracts when such contracts expire The

Company had several radiology benefits management contracts with WellPoint including one that

converted from an ASO arrangement to risk arrangement effective July 2007 Such risk contract

has term through December 31 2010 and cannot be terminated early except for cause as defined in

the agreement The Companys other radiology benefits management ASO contracts with WellPoint had

$11.4 million of net revenues for the year ended December 31 2008 and these ASO contracts

terminated at various dates in 2008

Net revenues from the Pennsylvania Counties in the aggregate totaled $288.1 million and

$315.5 million for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2009 respectively

By Segment

Two customers generated greater than ten percent of Commercial net revenues for the years ended

December 31 2008 and 2009 The first customer has contract that extends through December 31

2012 and generated net revenues of $217.0 million and $235.0 million for the years ended

December 31 2008 and 2009 respectively The second customer has contract that extends through

June 30 2014 and generated net revenues of $90.8 million and $85.8 million for the years ended

December 31 2008 and 2009 respectively

Net revenues from the Maricopa Contract and TennCare were each greater than ten percent of the

net revenues for the Public Sector segment for the year ended December 31 2008 In addition to the

Maricopa Contract one customer generated net revenues greater than ten percent of net revenues for

the Public Sector segment for the
year

ended December 31 2009 This customer generated net

revenues of $140.5 million and $147.7 million for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2009

respectively This customer contract extends through June 30 2012 with options for the customer to

extend the term of the contract for three one year
terms

In addition to WellPoint one other customer generated greater than ten percent of the net

revenues for the Radiology Benefits Management segment for the years
ended December 31 2008 and

2009 This customer has contract that extends through May 31 2011 and generated net revenues of

$96.4 million and $80.4 million for the
years

ended December 31 2008 and 2009 respectively

Included in the Companys Specialty Pharmaceutical Management segment are five customers that

each exceeded ten percent of the net revenues for this segment during the year ended December 31

2008 Four of such customers generated $71.9 million $49.5 million $28.0 million and $26.8 million of
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net revenues during the year ended December 31 2008 The other contract generated net revenues of

$27.1 million for the
year ended December 31 2008 and this contract terminated December 31 2008

For the
year

ended December 31 2009 four customers each exceeded ten percent of the net revenues

for this segment Such customers generated $85.7 million $49.7 million $43.9 million and $30.9 million

of net revenues during the
year ended December 31 2009 The previously mentioned contract that

terminated as of December 31 2008 generated net revenues for run-off activity of $7.4 million for the

year ended December 31 2009

For the period from August 2009 through December 31 2009 four customers each exceeded ten

percent of the net revenues for the Medicaid Administration segment Three of such customers

generated $11.4 million $10.5 million and $9.0 million of net revenues for this segment The other
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terminate June 30 2010 unless terminated earlier by the customer

Integration of Companies Acquired by MagellanThe Companys profitability could be adversely

affected if the integration of companies acquired by Magellan is not completed in timely and

effective manner

One of the Companys growth strategies is to make strategic acquisitions which are complementary

to its existing operations After Magellan closes on an acquisition it must integrate the acquired

company into Magellans policies procedures and systems Failure to effectively integrate an acquired

business could result in excessive costs being incurred delay in obtaining targeted synergies

decreased customer performance which could result in contract penalties and/or terminations

increased employee turnover and lost sales opportunities

Changes in the Medical Managed Care Carve-Out IndustryCertain changes in the business practices

of this industry could negatively impact the Companys resources profitability and results of

operations

Substantially all of the Companys Commercial Radiology Benefits Management and Specialty

Pharmaceutical Management segments net revenues are derived from customers in the medical

managed care industry including managed care companies health insurers and other health plans

Some types of changes in this industrys business practices could negatively impact the Company For

example if the Companys managed care customers seek to provide services directly to their

subscribers instead of contracting with the Company for such services the Company could be adversely

affected In this regard certain of the Companys major customers in the past have not renewed all or

part of their contracts with the Company and instead provided managed behavioral healthcare services

directly to their subscribers Other of the Companys customers that are managed care companies could

also seek to provide services directly to their subscribers rather than by contracting with the Company
for such services In addition the Company has significant number of contracts with Blue Cross Blue

Shield plans and other regional health plans Consolidation of the healthcare industry through

acquisitions and mergers could potentially result in the loss of contracts for the Company Any of these

changes could reduce the Companys net revenue and adversely affect the Companys profitability and

financial condition

Changes in the Contracting Model for Medicaid ContractsCertain changes in the contracting model

used by states for managed healthcare services contracts relating to Medicaid lives could negatively

impact the Companys resources profitability and results of operations

Substantially all of the Companys Public Sector segment net revenue is derived from direct

contracts that it has with state or county governments for the provision of services to Medicaid

enrollees In addition to TennCare discussed above certain other states have recently contracted with

managed care companies to manage both the behavioral and physical medical care of its Medicaid
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enrollees If other governmental entities change the method for contracting for Medicaid business to

fully integrated model the Company will attempt to subcontract with the managed care organizations

to provide behavioral healthcare management for such Medicaid business however there is no

assurance that the Company would be able to secure such arrangements Accordingly if such change

in the contracting model were to occur it is possible that the Company could lose current contracted

revenues as well as be unable to bid on potential new business opportunities thus negatively impacting

the Companys profitability
and financial condition

Risk-Based ProductsBecause the Company provides services at fixed fee if the Company is unable

to accurately predict and control healthcare costs the Companys profitability could decline

The Company derives its net revenue primarily from arrangements under which the Company

assumes responsibility for costs of treatment in exchange for fixed fee The Company refers to such

arrangements as risk-based contracts or risk-based products which include EAP services These

arrangements provided 84.2 percent and 80.8
percent

of the Companys net revenue in the years ended

December 31 2008 and 2009 respectively

Profitability of the Companys risk contracts could be reduced if the Company is unable to

accurately estimate the rate of service utilization by members or the cost of such services when the

Company prices its services The Companys assumptions of utilization and costs when the Company

prices its services may not ultimately reflect actual utilization rates and costs many aspects of which are

beyond the Companys control If the cost of services provided to members under contract together

with the administrative costs exceeds the aggregate fees received by the Company under such contract

the Company will incur loss on the contract

The Companys profitability could also be reduced if the Company is required to make

adjustments to estimates made in reporting historical financial results regarding cost of care reflected

in the Companys financial statements as medical claims payable Medical claims payable includes

reserves for incurred but not reported IBNR claims which are claims for covered services rendered

by the Companys providers which have not yet been submitted to the Company for payment The

Company estimates and reserves for IBNR claims based on past claims payment experience including

the average interval between the date services are rendered and the date the claims are received and

between the date services are rendered and the date claims are paid enrollment data utilization

statistics adjudication decisions authorized healthcare services and other factors This data is

incorporated into contract-specific reserve models The estimates for submitted claims and IBNR claims

are made on an accrual basis and adjusted in future periods as required If such risk-based RBM

products are not correctly underwritten the Companys profitability and financial condition could be

adversely affected

Factors that affect the Companys ability to price the Companys services or accurately make

estimates of IBNR claims and other expenses for which the Company creates reserves may include

differences between the Companys assumptions and actual results arising from among other things

changes in the delivery system

changes in utilization patterns

changes in the number of members seeking treatment

unforeseen fluctuations in claims backlogs

unforeseen increases in the costs of the services

the occurrence of catastrophes

regulatory changes and
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changes in benefit plan design

Some of these factors could impact the ability of the Company to manage and control the medical

costs to the extent assumed in the pricing of its services

If the Companys membership in risk-based business continues to grow which is major focus of

the Companys strategy the Companys exposure to potential losses from risk-based products will also

increase

Fluctuation in Operating ResultsThe Company experiences fluctuations in quarterly operating

results and as consequence the Company may fail to meet or exceed market expectations which

could cause the Companys stock price to decline

The Companys quarterly operating results have varied in the past and may fluctuate significantly

in the future due to seasonal and other factors including

changes in utilization levels by enrolled members of the Companys risk-based contracts

including seasonal utilization patterns for example members generally tend to seek services less

during the third and fourth quarters of the year than in the first and second quarters of the

year

performance-based contractual adjustments to net revenue reflecting utilization results or other

performance measures

changes in estimates for contractual adjustments under commercial contracts

retrospective membership adjustments

the timing of implementation of new contracts and enrollment changes and

changes in estimates regarding medical costs and IBNR claims

These factors may affect the Companys quarterly and annual net revenue expenses and

profitability in the future and accordingly the Company may fail to meet market expectations which

could cause the Companys stock price to decline

Dependence on Government SpendingThe Company can be adversely affected by changes in federal

state and local healthcare policies programs funding and enrollments

All of the Companys Public Sector and Medicaid Administration segment net revenue and

portion of the Companys net revenue in the Companys other three operating segments are derived

directly or indirectly from governmental agencies including state Medicaid programs Contract rates

vary from state to state are subject to periodic negotiation and may limit the Companys ability to

maintain or increase rates The Company is unable to predict the impact on the Companys operations

of future regulations or legislation affecting Medicaid programs or the healthcare industry in general

and future regulations or legislation may have material adverse effect on the Company Moreover

any reduction in government spending for such programs could also have material adverse effect on

the Company See Reliance on Customer Contracts In addition the Companys contracts with

federal state and local governmental agencies under both direct contract and subcontract

arrangements generally are conditioned upon financial appropriations by one or more governmental

agencies especially in the case of state Medicaid programs These contracts generally can be

terminated or modified by the customer if such appropriations are not made The Company faces

increased risks in this regard as state budgets have come under increasing pressure
due to the recent

economic downturn Finally some of the Companys contracts with federal state and local

governmental agencies under both direct contract and subcontract arrangements require the Company
to perform additional services if federal state or local laws or regulations imposed after the contract is
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signed so require in exchange for additional compensation to be negotiated by the parties in good

faith Government and other third-party payors generally seek to impose lower contract rates and to

renegotiate reduced contract rates with service providers in trend toward cost control

Restrictive Covenants in the Companys Debt InstrumentsRestrictions imposed by the Companys

debt agreements limit the Companys operating and financial flexibility These restrictions may

adversely affect the Companys ability to finance the Companys future operations or capital needs or

engage in other business activities that may be in the Companys interest

On April 30 2008 the Company entered into credit facility with Deutsche Bank AG and

Citigroup Global Markets Inc that provided for $100.0 million Revolving Loan Commitment for the

issuance of letters of credit for the account of the Company with sublimit of up to $30.0 million for

revolving loans the 2008 Credit Facility On April 29 2009 the Company entered into an

amendment to the 2008 Credit Facility with Deutsche Bank AG Citibank N.A and Bank of America

N.A that provides for an $80.0 million Revolving Loan Commitment for the issuance of letters of

credit for the account of the Company with sublimit of up to $30.0 million for revolving loans the
2009 Credit Facility which contains number of covenants These covenants limit Company

managements discretion in operating the Companys business by restricting or limiting the Companys

ability among other things to

incur or guarantee additional indebtedness or issue preferred or redeemable stock

pay dividends and make other distributions

repurchase equity interests

make certain advances investments and loans

enter into sale and leaseback transactions

create liens

sell and otherwise dispose of assets

acquire or merge or consolidate with another company and

enter into some types of transactions with affiliates

These restrictions could adversely affect the Companys ability to finance future operations or

capital needs or engage in other business activities that may be in the Companys interest The 2009

Credit Facility also requires the Company to comply with specified financial ratios and tests Failure to

do so unless waived by the lenders under the 2009 Credit Facility pursuant to its terms would result

in an event of default under the 2009 Credit Facility The 2009 Credit Facility is guaranteed by most of

the Companys subsidiaries and is secured by most of the Companys assets and the Companys

subsidiaries assets

Required Assurances of Financial ResourcesThe Companys liquidity financial condition prospects

and profitability can be adversely affected by present or future state regulations and contractual

requirements that the Company provide financial assurance of the Companys ability to meet the

Companys obligations

Some of the Companys contracts and certain state regulations require the Company or certain of

the Companys subsidiaries to maintain specified cash reserves or letters of credit and/or to maintain

certain minimum tangible net equity in certain of the Companys subsidiaries as assurance that the

Company has financial resources to meet the Companys contractual obligations Many of these state

regulations also restrict the investment activity of certain of the Companys subsidiaries Some state

regulations also restrict the ability of certain of the Companys subsidiaries to pay dividends to
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Magellan Additional state regulations could be promulgated that would increase the cash or other

security the Company would be required to maintain In addition the Companys customers may

require additional restricted cash or other security with respect to the Companys obligations under the

Companys contracts including the Companys obligation to pay IBNR claims and other medical claims

not yet processed and paid In addition certain of the Companys contracts and state regulations limit

the profits that the Company may earn on risk-based business The Companys liquidity financial

condition prospects and profitability could be adversely affected by the effects of such regulations and

contractual provisions See Note 2Summaryof Significant Accounting PoliciesRestricted Assets

to the consolidated financial statements set forth elsewhere herein for discussion of the Companys

restricted assets

CompetitionThe competitive environment in the specialty managed healthcare industry may limit the

Companys ability to maintain or increase the Companys rates which would limit or adversely affect

the Companys profitability and any failure in the Companys ability to respond adequately may

adversely affect the Companys ability to maintain contracts or obtain new contracts

The Companys business is highly competitive The Company competes with other healthcare

organizations as well as with insurance companies including HMOs PPOs TPAs IPAs multi

disciplinary medical groups PBMs specialty pharmacy companies radiology benefits management

companies and other specialty healthcare and managed care companies Many of the Companys

competitors particularly certain insurance companies HMOs and PBMs are significantly larger and

have greater financial marketing and other resources than the Company which can create downward

pressure on prices through economies of scale The entrance or expansion of these larger companies in

the specialty managed healthcare industry including the Companys customers who have in-sourced or

who may choose to in-source healthcare services could increase the competitive pressures
the

Company faces and could limit the Companys ability to maintain or increase the Companys rates If

this happens the Companys profitability could be adversely affected In addition if the Company does

not adequately respond to these competitive pressures it could cause the Company to not be able to

maintain its current contracts or to not be able to obtain new contracts

Possible Impact of Healthcare ReformPotential healthcare reform can significantly reduce the

Companys revenues or profitability

The U.S Congress and certain state legislatures are considering legislation that among other

things would limit healthcare plans and methods of operations limit employers and healthcare plans

ability to define medical necessity permit employers and healthcare plans to be sued in state courts for

coverage determinations provide universal health insurance at the state level provide for minimum

medical loss ratios and otherwise affect health care insurance and managed care It is uncertain

whether the Company could recoup through higher revenues or other measures the increased costs of

federal or state mandated benefits or other increased costs caused by such legislation or similar

legislation Other federal or state changes in law regarding managed care or universal health insurance

coverage could also have adverse consequences for the Companys business The Company cannot

predict the effect of this legislation or other legislation that may be adopted by Congress or by the

states and such legislation if implemented could have an adverse effect on the Company

In October 2008 the United States Congress passed legislation establishing parity in financial

requirements e.g co-pays deductibles etc and treatment limitations e.g limits on the number of

visits between mental health and substance abuse benefits and medical/surgical benefits for members

This new law does not require coverage for mental health or substance abuse disorders but if coverage

is provided it must be provided at parity No specific disorders are mandated for coverage health plans

are able to define mental health and substance abuse to determine what they are going to cover State

mandated benefits laws are not preempted The law applies to ERISA plans Medicaid managed care
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plans and SCHIP plans There is an exemption for small employers Interim final regulations were

issued on February 2010 No assurance can be given that such legislation will not have material

adverse effect on the Company However the Companys commercial risk behavioral contracts

generally allow for re-pricing to occur in the event that any legislation becomes effective if that

legislation or regulation results in material affect on cost of care

There is currently discussion about the potential for health care reform both at state and national

levels The proposals for reform include the government assuming larger role in the health care

system or restructuring of Medicare or Medicaid programs One of the items discussed has been

reducing payments to private health plans offering Medicare Advantage Depending on the outcome of

these potential reductions there is the possibility that membership and earnings derived from these

plans may decrease The Company cannot speculate on the outcome of any such reform how it may

impact the Companys business and when it may become effective Therefore at this time the

Company is unable to predict whether there will be any effect positive or adverse on its business as

result of any such healthcare reform

Government RegulationThe Company is subject to substantial government regulation and scrutiny

which increase the Companys costs of doing business and could adversely affect the Companys

profitability

The specialty managed healthcare industry and the provision of specialty managed healthcare are

subject to extensive and evolving federal and state regulation Such laws and regulations cover but are

not limited to matters such as licensure accreditation government healthcare program participation

requirements information privacy and security reimbursement for patient services and Medicare and

Medicaid fraud and abuse The Companys specialty pharmaceutical management business is also the

subject of substantial federal and state governmental regulation and scrutiny Government investigations

and allegations have become more frequent concerning possible violations of fraud and abuse and false

claims statutes and regulations by healthcare organizations Violators may be excluded from

participating in government healthcare programs subject to fines or penalties or required to repay

amounts received from the government for previously billed services violation of such laws and

regulations may have material adverse effect on the Company

The Company is subject to certain state laws and regulations and federal laws as result of the

Companys role in management of customers employee benefit plans

Regulatory issues may also affect the Companys operations including but not limited to

additional state licenses that may be required to conduct the Companys businesses including

utilization review and TPA activities

limits imposed by state authorities upon corporations control or excessive influence over

managed healthcare services through the direct employment of physicians psychiatrists

psychologists or other professionals and prohibiting fee splitting

laws that impose financial terms and requirements on the Company due to the Companys

assumption of risk under contracts with licensed insurance companies or HMOs

laws in certain states that impose an obligation to contract with any healthcare provider willing

to meet the terms of the Companys contracts with similar providers

maintaining confidentiality of patient information and

complying with HIPAA
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The imposition of additional licensing and other regulatory requirements may among other things

increase the Companys equity requirements increase the cost of doing business or force significant

changes in the Companys operations to comply with these requirements

The costs associated with compliance with government regulation as discussed above may adversely

affect the Companys financial condition and results of operations

The Company faces additional regulatory risks associated with its Specialty Pharmaceutical

Management segment which could subject it to additional regulatory scrutiny and liability and which

could adversely affect the profitability of the Specialty Pharmaceutical Management segment in the

future

With the Companys acquisition of ICORE additional federal and state regulations became

applicable to the Company Various aspects of the Companys Specialty Pharmaceutical Management

segment are governed by federal and state laws and regulations not previously applicable to the

Company or which may now be applicable in different ways Significant sanctions may be imposed for

violations of these laws and compliance programs are significant operational requirement of the

Companys business There are significant uncertainties involving the application of many of these legal

requirements to the Company Accordingly the Company may be required to incur additional

administrative and compliance expenses in determining the applicable requirements and in adapting its

compliance practices or modifying its business practices in order to satisfy changing interpretations

and regulatory policies In addition there are numerous proposed health care laws and regulations at

the federal and state levels many of which if adopted could adversely affect the Companys business

See Regulation above

Risks Related To Realization of Goodwill and Intangible AssetsThe Companys profitability could be

adversely affected if the value of intangible assets is not fully realized

The Companys total assets at December 31 2009 reflect goodwill of approximately $426.5 million

representing approximately 30.0 percent of total assets The Company completed the Companys annual

impairment analysis of goodwill as of October 2009 noting that no impairment was identified

At December 31 2009 identifiable intangible assets customer lists contracts and provider

networks totaled approximately $64.8 million Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated

useful lives which range from approximately three to eighteen years The amortization periods used

may differ from those used by other entities In addition the Company may be required to shorten the

amortization period for intangible assets in future periods based on changes in the Companys business

There can be no assurance that such goodwill or intangible assets will be realizable

The Company evaluates on regular basis whether for any reason the carrying value of the

Companys intangible assets and other long-lived assets may no longer be completely recoverable in

which case charge to earnings for impairment losses could become necessary When events or

changes in circumstances occur that indicate the carrying amount of long-lived assets may not be

recoverable the Company assesses the recoverability of long-lived assets other than goodwill by

determining whether the carrying value of such intangible assets will be recovered through the future

cash flows expected from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition

Any event or change in circumstances leading to future determination requiring write-off of

significant portion of unamortized intangible assets or goodwill would adversely affect the Companys

profitability
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Claims for Professional LiabilityPending or future actions or claims for professional liability

including any associated judgments settlements legal fees and other costs could require the

Company to make significant cash expenditures and consume significant management time and

resources which could have material adverse effect on the Companys profitability and financial

condition

Management and administration of the delivery of specialty managed healthcare the operation of

specialty pharmacies and specialty pharmacy drug dispensing and the direct provision of healthcare

treatment services such as the services that the Company provided through the direct care clinics

operated under the Maricopa Contract entail significant risks of liability In recent years participants

in the healthcare industry generally as well as the specialty managed healthcare industry have become

subject to an increasing number of lawsuits From time to time the Company is subject to various

actions and claims of professional liability alleging negligence in performing utilization review and other

specialty managed healthcare activities as well as for the acts or omissions of the Companys

employees including employed physicians and other clinicians network providers pharmacists or

others In the normal course of business the Company receives reports relating to deaths and other

serious incidents involving patients whose care is being managed by the Company Such incidents

occasionally give rise to malpractice professional negligence and other related actions and claims

against the Company the Companys employees or the Companys network providers The Company is

also subject to actions and claims for the costs of services for which payment was denied Many of

these actions and claims seek substantial damages and require the Company to incur significant fees

and costs related to the Companys defense and consume significant management time and resources

While the Company maintains professional liability insurance there can be no assurance that future

actions or claims for professional liability including any judgments settlements or costs associated

therewith will not have material adverse effect on the Companys profitability and financial

condition

Professional Liability and Other InsuranceClaims brought against the Company that exceed the

scope of the Companys liability coverage or denial of coverage could materially and adversely affect

the Companys profitability and financial condition

The Company maintains program of insurance coverage against broad range of risks in the

Companys business As part of this program of insurance the Company carries professional liability

insurance subject to certain deductibles and self-insured retentions The Company also is sometimes

required by customer contracts to post surety bonds with respect to the Companys potential liability on

professional responsibility claims that may be asserted in connection with services the Company

provides As of December 31 2009 the Company had approximately $103.5 million of such bonds

outstanding The Companys insurance may not be sufficient to cover any judgments settlements or

costs relating to present or future claims suits or complaints Upon expiration of the Companys
insurance policies sufficient insurance may not be available on favorable terms if at all To the extent

the Companys customers are entitled to indemnification under their contracts with the Company

relating to liabilities they incur arising from the operation of the Companys programs such

indemnification may not be covered under the Companys insurance policies To the extent that certain

actions and claims seek punitive and compensatory damages arising from the Companys alleged

intentional misconduct such damages if awarded may not be covered in whole or in part by the

Companys insurance policies If the Company is unable to secure adequate insurance in the future or

if the insurance the Company carries is not sufficient to cover any judgments settlements or costs

relating to any present or future actions or claims such judgments settlements or costs may have

material adverse effect on the Companys profitability and financial condition If the Company is

unable to obtain needed surety bonds in adequate amounts or make alternative arrangements to satisfy

the requirements for such bonds the Company may no longer be able to operate in those states which

would have material adverse effect on the Company
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Class Action Suits and Other Legal ProceedingsThe Company is subject to class action and other

lawsuits that could result in material liabilities to the Company or cause the Company to incur

material costs to change the Companys operating procedures in ways that increase costs or to comply

with additional regulatory requirements

Managed healthcare companies and PBM companies have been targeted as defendants in national

class action lawsuits regarding their business practices The Company has in the past been subject to

such national class actions as defendants and is also subject to or party to other class actions lawsuits

and legal proceedings in conducting the Companys business In addition certain of the Companys

customers are parties to pending class action lawsuits regarding the customers business practices for

which the customers could seek indemnification from the Company These lawsuits may take
years to

resolve and cause the Company to incur substantial litigation expenses and the outcomes could have

material adverse effect on the Companys profitability and financial condition In addition to potential

damage awards depending upon the outcomes of such cases these lawsuits may cause or force changes

in practices of the Companys industry and may also cause additional regulation of the industry through

new federal or state laws or new applications of existing laws or regulations Such changes could

increase the Companys operating costs

Government InvestigationsThe Company may be subjected to additional regulatory requirements and

to investigations or regulatory action by governmental agencies each of which may have material

adverse effect on the Companys business financial condition and results of operations

From time to time the Company receives notifications from and engages in discussions with

various government agencies concerning the Companys businesses and operations As result of these

contacts with regulators the Company may as appropriate be required to implement changes to the

Companys operations revise the Companys filings with such agencies and/or seek additional licenses

to conduct the Companys business The Companys inability to comply with the various regulatory

requirements may have material adverse effect on the Companys business

In addition the Company may become subject to regulatory investigations relating to the

Companys business which may result in litigation or regulatory action subsequent legal liability or

significant regulatory action against the Company could have material adverse effect on the

Companys business financial condition and results of operations Moreover even if the Company

ultimately prevails in the litigation regulatory action or investigation such litigation regulatory action

or investigation could have material adverse effect on the Companys business financial condition and

results of operations

Investment PortfolioThe value of the Companys investments is influenced by varying economic and

market conditions and decrease in value may result in loss charged to income

The Companys available-for-sale investment securities were $230.4 million and represented

16.0 percent of the Companys total consolidated assets at December 31 2009 These assets are carried

at fair value and the unrealized gains or losses are included in accumulated other comprehensive

income as separate component of shareholders equity unless decline in value is deemed to be

other-than-temporary If decline in value is deemed to be other-than-temporary the cost basis of the

impaired security is written down to fair value and charge is taken through operations The Company

has concluded that all of the Companys unrealized losses are temporary and the Company has the

intent and ability to hold the securities until they recover or mature Therefore the Company has not

recorded any other than temporary impairments

In accordance with applicable accounting standards the Company reviews its investment securities

to determine if declines in fair value below cost are other-than-temporary This review is subjective and

requires high degree of judgment The Company conducts this review on quarterly basis using both

30



quantitative and qualitative factors to determine whether decline in value is other-than-temporary

Such factors considered include the length of time and the extent to which market value has been less

than cost financial condition and near term prospects of the issuer trading activity and marketability of

the security recommendations of investment advisors and forecasts of economic market or industry

trends This review process also entails an evaluation of the Companys ability and intent to hold

individual securities until they mature or full cost can be recovered The current economic environment

and recent volatility of securities markets increase the difficulty of assessing investment impairment and

the same influences tend to increase the risk of potential impairment of these assets The Company
believes it has adequately reviewed its investment securities for impairment and that its investment

securities are carried at fair value However over time the economic and market environment may

provide additional insight regarding the fair value of certain securities which could change the

Companys judgment regarding impairment This could result in realized losses relating to

other-than-temporary declines being charged against future income Given the current market

conditions and the significant judgments involved there is risk that declines in fair value may occur

and material other-than-temporary impairments may be charged to income in future periods resulting

in realized losses

Adverse Economic ConditionsThe state of the national economy and adverse changes in economic

conditions could adversely affect the Companys business and results of operations

The state of the economy has negatively affected state budgets and could adversely affect the

Companys reimbursement from state Medicaid programs in its Medicaid Administration and Public

Sector segments The state of the economy and adverse economic conditions could also adversely affect

the Companys customers in the Commercial Radiology Benefits Management and Specialty

Pharmaceutical Management segments resulting in increased
pressures on the Companys operating

margins In addition the economic conditions may result in decreased membership in the Commercial

Radiology Benefits Management and Specialty Pharmaceutical Management segments thereby

adversely affecting the revenues to the Company from such customers as well as the Companys

operating profitability

Adverse economic conditions in the debt markets may affect the Companys ability to refinance or

the terms of new credit facility upon the maturity of the Companys existing 2009 Credit Facility on

April 28 2010

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item Properties

The Company currently leases approximately 1.3 million square feet of office space comprising

77 offices in 26 states the District of Columbia and Ontario Canada with terms expiring between

February 2010 and August 2015 The Companys principal executive offices are located in Avon

Connecticut which lease expires in September 2012 The Company believes that its current facilities

are suitable for and adequate to support the level of its present operations

Item Legal Proceedings

The management and administration of the delivery of specialty managed healthcare entails

significant risks of liability From time to time the Company is subject to various actions and claims

arising from the acts or omissions of its employees network providers or other parties In the normal

course of business the Company receives
reports relating to deaths and other serious incidents

involving patients whose care is being managed by the Company Such incidents occasionally give rise
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to malpractice professional negligence and other related actions and claims against the Company or its

network providers Many of these actions and claims received by the Company seek substantial

damages and therefore require the Company to incur significant fees and costs related to their defense

The Company is also subject to or party to certain class actions litigation and claims relating to its

operations and business practices In the opinion of management the Company has recorded reserves

that are adequate to cover litigation claims or assessments that have been or may be asserted against

the Company and for which the outcome is probable and reasonably estimable Management believes

that the resolution of such litigation and claims will not have material adverse effect on the

Companys financial condition or results of operations however there can be no assurance in this

regard

Item Submission of Matters to Vote of Security Holders

None
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PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases

of Equity Securities

Since January 2004 shares of the Companys Ordinary Common Stock $0.01 par value per

share Ordinary Common Stock have traded on the NASDAQ Stock Market under the symbol

MGLN For further information regarding the Companys Ordinary Common Stock see Note

Stockholders Equity to the consolidated financial statements set forth elsewhere herein Warrants to

purchase shares of the Companys Ordinary Common Stock have traded on the Over-the-Counter

Bulletin Board OTCBB under the ticker symbol MGLNW since February 2004 The following

tables set forth the high and low closing bid prices of the Companys Ordinary Common Stock as

reported by the NASDAQ Stock Market for the
years

ended December 31 2008 and 2009 as follows

Ordinary
Common Stock

Sales Prices

High Low

2008

First Quarter 47.93 37.80

Second Quarter 41.23 36.10

Third Quarter 44.41 35.18

Fourth Quarter 40.73 30.54

2009

First Quarter 39.19 31.66

Second Quarter 36.98 29.22

Third Quarter 33.18 30.44

Fourth Quarter 41.83 29.63

As of December 31 2009 there were approximately 299 stockholders of record of the Ordinary

Common Stock The stockholders of record data for the Ordinary Common Stock does not reflect

persons whose stock was held on that date by the Depository Trust Company or other intermediaries
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Comparison of Cumulative Total Returns

The SP Managed Health Care Index consists of Aetna Inc CIGNA Corp Coventry Health

Care Inc Humana Inc UnitedHealth Group Inc and WeilPoint Inc

The information set forth above under the Comparison of Cumulative Total Returns does not

constitute soliciting material and should not be deemed filed or incorporated by reference into any other of

the Companyr filings under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 except to the

extent the filing specifically incorporates such information by reference therein

Stock Repurchase

On July 30 2008 the Companys board of directors approved stock repurchase plan which

authorized the Company to purchase up to $200 million of its outstanding common stock through

January 31 2010 Stock repurchases under the program could be executed through open market

The following graph compares the change in the cumulative total return on the Companys

common stock to the change in the cumulative total return on the stocks included in the

Standard Poors 500 Stock Index and the change in the cumulative total return on the stocks

included in the SP Managed Health Care Index assuming an investment of $100 made at the close of

trading on December 312004 and comparing relative values on December 31 2005 2006 2007 2008

and 2009 The Company did not pay any dividends during the period reflected in the graph Note that

the common stock price performance shown below should not be viewed as being indicative of future

performance

Comparison of Cumulative Total Return
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Hi- Magellan Health Services Inc SP 500 Index A-SP 500 Managed Health Care Index

December 31

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Magellan Health Services Inc $100.00 92.07 $126.52 $136.50 $114.64

SP 500 Index 100.00 104.91 121.48 128.16 80.74

SP 500 Managed Health Care Index 100.00 142.70 133.31 154.06 69.26

$119.23

102.11

88.44
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repurchases privately negotiated transactions accelerated share repurchases or other means The board

of directors authorized management to execute stock repurchase transactions under the program from

time to time and in such amounts and via such methods as management deemed appropriate The

stock repurchase program could be limited or terminated at any time without prior notice Pursuant to

this program the Company made open market purchases of 3866505 shares of the Companys

common stock at an aggregate cost of $136.0 million excluding broker commissions during the year

ended December 31 2008 and made open market purchases of 1859959 shares of the Companys

common stock at an average share price of $34.39 per share for an aggregate cost of $64.0 million

excluding broker commissions during the period January 2009 through April 2009 which was the

date that the repurchase program was completed the $200 million authorization having been

exhausted

On July 28 2009 the Companys board of directors approved stock repurchase plan which

authorizes the Company to purchase up to $100 million of its outstanding common stock through

July 28 2011 Stock repurchases under the program may be executed through open market repurchases

privately negotiated transactions accelerated share repurchases or other means The board of directors

authorized management to execute stock repurchase transactions under the program from time to time

and in such amounts and via such methods as management deems appropriate The stock repurchase

program may be limited or terminated at any time without prior notice Pursuant to this program the

Company made open market purchases of 782400 shares of the Companys common stock at an

average price of $32.75 per share for an aggregate cost of $25.6 million excluding broker commissions

during the period from August 17 2009 through December 31 2009

Following is summary of stock repurchases made during the three months ended December 31

2009

Total number Average Total Number of Shares Approximate Dollar Value of

of Shares Price Paid Purchased as Part of Publicly Shares that May Yet Be

Period Purchased per Share2 Announced Plans or Programs Purchased Under the Plan12

October 131 2009 315265 $29.80 315265 $86900

November 130 2009 199258 $34.93 199258 79940

December 131 2009 152602 $36.47 152602 74376

667125 667125 $74376

Excludes amounts that could be used to repurchase shares acquired under the Companys equity

incentive plans to satisfy withholding tax obligations of employees and non-employee directors

upon the vesting of restricted stock units

Excludes broker commissions

During the period from January 2010 through February 25 2010 the Company made additional

open market purchases of 16200 shares at an aggregate cost of $0.6 million excluding broker

commissions

Dividends

The Company did not declare any dividends during either of the years ended December 31 2008

or 2009 The Company is prohibited from paying dividends on the Ordinary Common Stock under the

terms of the 2009 Credit Facility except in limited circumstances See Managements Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of OperationsOutlookLiquidity and Capital

ResourcesRestrictive Covenants in Debt Agreements
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Item Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth selected historical consolidated financial information of the Company
as of and for the years ended December 31 2005 2006 2007 2008 and 2009

Selected consolidated financial information for the years ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009

and as of December 31 2008 and 2009 presented below have been derived from and should be read

in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included elsewhere

herein Selected consolidated financial information for the
years

ended December 31 2005 and 2006

has been derived from the Companys audited consolidated financial statements not included in this

Form 10-K The selected financial data set forth below also should be read in conjunction with

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations appearing

elsewhere herein

MAGELLAN HEALTH SERVICES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

In thousands except per share amounts

Year Ended December 31

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Statement of Operations Data

Net revenue $1808003 $1690270 $2155953 $2625394 $2641814

Cost of care 1204659 1081080 1409103 1830542 1765313

Cost of goods sold 41809 149585 181356 203336

Direct service costs and other operating

expenses1 377533 385478 404003 426627 465710

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries 4350 390
Depreciation and amortization 49088 48862 57524 60810 47268

Interest expense 44005 7292 6386 2846 2424

Interest income 17464 17628 23836 17030 6245
Gain on sale of assets 56367 5148
Special benefits 556

_________ _________ _________ _________

Income from continuing operations before

income taxes 211455 148915 153188 140243 164008

Provision for income taxes 82463 62653 59030 54038 57337

Income from continuing operations 128992 86262 94158 86205 106671

Income from discontinued operations2 1597

Net income 130589 86262 94158 86205 106671

Income per common sharebasic

Income from continuing operations 3.59 2.33 2.42 2.18 3.03

Income from discontinued operations 0.04

Net income 3.63 2.33 2.42 2.18 3.03

Income per common sharediluted

Income from continuing operations 3.42 2.23 2.36 2.16 3.01

Income from discontinued operations 0.04

Net income 3.46 2.23 2.36 2.16 3.01
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December 31

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Balance Sheet Data

Current assets 540777 535574 803092 822420 753588

Current liabilities 311925 321073 375859 373881 369164

Property and equipment net 102898 100255 105735 88436 108219

Total assets 1069486 1207520 1435123 1417564 1441041

Total debt and capital lease obligations 63084 41913 13969 28

Stockholders equity 633077 763567 908232 908073 950492

Includes stock compensation expense of $15.8 million $34.0 million $30.0 million $32.8 million and

$19.8 million in 2005 2006 2007 2008 and 2009 respectively

Net of income taxes

Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

This Form 10-K includes forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Securities Act

and the Exchange Act Although the Company believes that its plans intentions and expectations

reflected in such forward-looking statements are reasonable it can give no assurance that such plans

intentions or expectations will be achieved Prospective investors are cautioned that any such forward

looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve risks and uncertainties and

that actual results may differ materially from those contemplated by such forward-looking statements

Important factors currently known to management that could cause actual results to differ materially

from those in forward-looking statements are set forth under the heading Risk Factors in Item 1A

and elsewhere in this Form 10-K When used in this Form 10-K the words estimate anticipate

expect believe should and similar expressions are intended to be forward-looking statements

Also capitalized or defined terms included in Item have the meanings set forth in Item of this

Form 10-K

Business Overview

The Company is engaged in the specialty managed healthcare business Through 2005 the

Company predominantly operated in the managed behavioral healthcare business During 2006 the

Company expanded into radiology benefits management and specialty pharmaceutical management as

result of certain acquisitions The Company recently expanded into Medicaid administration as result

of its July 31 2009 acquisition of certain equity interests and assets from Coventry as discussed in

Acquisition of First Health Services below The Company provides services to health plans insurance

companies employers labor unions and various governmental agencies The Companys business is

divided into the following six segments based on the services it provides and/or the customers that it

serves as described below

Managed Behavioral Healthcare

Two of the Companys segments are in the managed behavioral healthcare business This line of

business generally reflects the Companys coordination and management of the delivery of behavioral

healthcare treatment services that are provided through its contracted network of third-party treatment

providers which includes psychiatrists psychologists other behavioral health professionals psychiatric

hospitals general medical facilities with psychiatric beds residential treatment centers and other

treatment facilities The treatment services provided through the Companys provider network include

outpatient programs such as counseling or therapy intermediate care programs such as intensive

outpatient programs and partial hospitalization services inpatient treatment and crisis intervention

services The Company generally does not directly provide or own any provider of treatment services

except as related to the Companys contract to provide managed behavioral healthcare services to
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Medicaid recipients and other beneficiaries under the Maricopa Contract Under the Maricopa

Contract effective August 31 2007 the Company was required to assume the operations of twenty-four

behavioral health direct care facilities for transitional period and to divest itself of these facilities over

two year period During March 2009 the Company began the operation of two additional behavioral

health direct care facilities In 2008 and 2009 the Company entered into agreements to transition all

behavioral health direct care facilities over various dates All of the direct care facilities have been

transitioned as of December 31 2009

The Company provides its management services primarily through risk-based products where

the Company assumes all or substantial portion of the responsibility for the cost of providing

treatment services in exchange for fixed per member per month fee ii ASO products where the

Company provides services such as utilization review claims administration and/or provider network

management but does not assume responsibility for the cost of the treatment services and iii EAPs
where the Company provides short-term outpatient behavioral counseling services

The managed behavioral healthcare business is managed based on the services provided and/or the

customers served through the following two segments

Commercial The Commercial segment generally reflects managed behavioral healthcare services

and EAP services provided under contracts with health plans and insurance companies for some or all

of their commercial Medicaid and Medicare members as well as with employers including

corporations and governmental agencies and labor unions Commercials contracts encompass

risk-based ASO and EAP arrangements As of December 31 2009 Commercials covered lives were

4.1 million 13.6 million and 20.3 million for risk-based EAP and ASO products respectively For the

year ended December 31 2009 Commercials revenue was $421.0 million $103.1 million and

$126.0 million for risk-based EAP and ASO products respectively

Public Secto The Public Sector segment generally reflects services provided to Medicaid

recipients under contracts with state and local governmental agencies Public Sector contracts

encompass either risk-based or ASO arrangements As of December 31 2009 Public Sectors covered

lives were 1.6 million and 0.3 million for risk-based and ASO products respectively For the
year ended

December 31 2009 Public Sectors revenue was $1.4 billion and $6.2 million for risk-based and ASO
products respectively

Radiology Benefits Management

The Radiology Benefits Management segment generally reflects the management of the delivery of

diagnostic imaging services to ensure that such services are clinically appropriate and cost effective The

Companys radiology benefits management services currently are provided under contracts with health

plans and insurance companies for some or all of their commercial Medicaid and Medicare members

The Company also contracts with state and local governmental agencies for the provision of such

services to Medicaid recipients The Company offers its radiology benefits management services

through ASO contracts where the Company provides services such as utilization review and claims

administration but does not assume responsibility for the cost of the imaging services and through

risk-based contracts where the Company assumes all or substantial portion of the responsibility for

the cost of providing diagnostic imaging services As of December 31 2009 covered lives for Radiology

Benefits Management were 3.4 million and 14.1 million for risk-based and ASO products respectively

For the year ended December 31 2009 revenue for Radiology Benefits Management was

$254.6 million and $50.7 million for risk-based and ASO products respectively

Specialty Pharmaceutical Management

The Specialty Pharmaceutical Management segment generally reflects the management of specialty

drugs used in the treatment of cancer multiple sclerosis hemophilia infertility rheumatoid arthritis
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chronic forms of hepatitis and other diseases Specialty pharmaceutical drugs represent high-cost

injectible infused oral or inhaled drugs often with sensitive handling or storage needs Patients

receiving these drugs require greater amounts of clinical and financial support than those taking more

traditional agents The Companys specialty pharmaceutical management services are provided under

contracts with health plans insurance companies and governmental agencies for some or all of their

commercial Medicare and Medicaid members The Companys specialty pharmaceutical services

include contracting and formulary optimization on behalf of health plans and pharmaceutical

manufacturers ii dispensing specialty pharmaceutical drugs on behalf of health plans iii providing

strategic consulting services to health plans and pharmaceutical manufacturers and iv providing

oncology management services to health plans and state Medicaid programs The Companys Specialty

Pharmaceutical Management segment had contracts with 40 health plans and several pharmaceutical

manufacturers and state Medicaid programs as of December 31 2009

Medicaid Administration

The Medicaid Administration segment generally reflects integrated clinical management services

provided to the public sector to manage Medicaid pharmacy mental health and long-term care

programs The Companys Medicaid Administration services include the management of pharmacy

benefits administration medical management information services and fiscal agent services and health

care management services Medicaid Administration management services are provided under contracts

with states to Medicaid and other state sponsored program recipients Medicaid Administrations

contracts encompass FFS arrangements

Corporate and Other

This segment of the Company is comprised primarily of operational support functions such as sales

and marketing and information technology as well as corporate support functions such as executive

finance human resources and legal

Acquisition of National Imaging Associates

On January 31 2006 the Company acquired all of the outstanding stock of NIA for approximately

$121 million in cash after giving effect to cash acquired in the transaction and NIA became wholly-

owned subsidiary The Company reports the results of operations of NIA in the Radiology Benefits

Management segment

Acquisition of ICORE Healthcare LLC

On July 31 2006 the Company acquired all of the outstanding units of membership interest of

ICORE and ICORE became wholly-owned subsidiary The Company reports the results of operations

of ICORE in the Specialty Pharmaceutical Management segment

The Company paid or agreed to pay to the previous unitholders of ICORE all of whom were

members of ICOREs management team $161 million of cash at closing ii $24 million of cash

that was used by the unitholders of ICORE to purchase Magellan restricted stock with such restricted

stock vesting over three years provided the unitholders did not earlier terminate their employment with

Magellan iii $25 million plus accrued interest the Deferred Payment subject to any indemnity

claims Magellan may have had under the purchase agreement iv the amount of positive working

capital that existed at ICORE on the closing date the Working Capital Payments which was

$18.2 million of which $17.8 million was paid during 2007 with the remainder paid
in January 2008 and

potential earn-out of up to $75 million the Earn-Out provided the unitholders did not earlier

terminate their employment with the Company prior to the payment of the Earn-Out The $161 million

of cash paid at closing the $25 million Deferred Payment and $18.2 million of Working Capital
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Payments were recorded as purchase price The $24 million of restricted stock was recognized as stock

compensation expense over the three
year vesting period The $24 million in restricted stock was issued

in transaction pursuant to which the unitholders of ICORE at closing applied $24 million of the

purchase price as cash consideration for their purchase of restricted shares of the Companys common
stock The unitholders subscribed to an aggregate of 543879 restricted shares of the Companys
common stock on basis proportional to each unitholders economic interest in ICORE at purchase

price of $44.13 per share which was the average of the closing prices of the Companys common stock

on NASDAQ for the twenty trading days immediately preceding the closing The Deferred Payment

was paid in December 2008 The Earn-Out included up to $25 million based on earnings for the

18 month period ended December 31 2007 and ii up to $50 million based on earnings in 2008 The

Earn-Out provisions were not met and as result the Company did not pay any additional purchase

consideration

Acquisition of First Health Services

Pursuant to the June 2009 Purchase Agreement the Purchase Agreement with Coventry on

July 31 2009 the Company acquired the Acquisition all of the outstanding equity interests of

Coventrys direct and indirect subsidiaries First Health Services Corporation FHS FHC Inc

FHC and Provider Synergies LLC together with FHS and FHC First Health Services and

certain assets of Coventry which are related to the operation of the business conducted by First Health

Services First Health Services provides pharmacy benefits management and other services to Medicaid

programs As consideration for the Acquisition the Company paid $115.4 million in cash excluding

cash acquired and including payment of $7.4 million for excess working capital with such amount

being subject to final adjustments as provided in the Purchase Agreement The Company funded the

Acquisition with cash on hand The Company reports the results of operations of First Health Services

as separate segment entitled Medicaid Administration

Stock Compensation

At December 31 2008 and 2009 the Company had equity-based employee incentive plans which

are described more fully in Note 6Stockholders Equity to the consolidated financial statements set

forth elsewhere herein The Company recorded stock compensation expense of $32.8 million and

$19.8 million for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2009 The Company recognizes substantially

all of these compensation costs on straight-line basis over the requisite service period which is

generally the vesting term of three years

The Company estimates the fair value of substantially all stock options using the Black-Scholes

Merton option pricing model that employs certain factors including expected volatility of stock price

expected life of the option risk-free interest rate and expected dividend yield For the
years ended

December 31 2008 and 2009 such volatility was based on the historical volatility of the Companys
stock price

The expected term of the option is based on historical employee stock option exercise behavior

and the vesting terms of the respective option Risk-free interest rates are based on the U.S Treasury

yield in effect at the time of grant
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The Company recognizes compensation expense for only the portion of options restricted stock or

restricted stock units that are expected to vest Therefore estimated forfeiture rates are derived from

historical employee termination behavior The Companys estimated forfeiture rates for the years ended

December 31 2007 2008 and 2009 are two percent eight percent and five percent respectively If the

actual number of forfeitures differs from those estimated additional adjustments to compensation

expense may be required
in future periods If vesting of an award is conditioned upon the achievement

of performance goals compensation expense during the performance period is estimated using the

most probable outcome of the performance goals and adjusted as the expected outcome changes

Managed Care Revenue

Managed care revenue inclusive of revenue from the Companys risk EAP and ASO contracts is

recognized over the applicable coverage period on per member basis for covered members The

Company is paid per member fee for all enrolled members and this fee is recorded as revenue in the

month in which members are entitled to service The Company adjusts its revenue for retroactive

membership terminations additions and other changes when such adjustments are identified with the

exception of retroactivity that can be reasonably estimated Any fees paid prior to the month of service

are recorded as deferred revenue Managed care revenues approximated $1.9 billion $2.2 billion and

$2.2 billion for the years ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009 respectively

Fee-For-Service and Cost-Plus Contracts

The Company has certain FFS contracts including cost-plus contracts with customers under which

the Company recognizes revenue as services are performed and as costs are incurred Revenues from

these contracts approximated $33.3 million $36.1 million and $104.4 million for the years ended

December 31 2007 2008 and 2009 respectively

Block Grant Revenues

The Maricopa Contract is partially funded by federal state and county block grant money which

represents annual appropriations The Company recognizes revenue from block grant activity ratably

over the period to which the block grant funding applies Block grant revenues were approximately

$40.6 million $120.0 million and $106.6 million for the
years

ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009

respectively

Dispensing Revenue

The Company recognizes dispensing revenue which includes the co-payments received from

members of the health plans
the Company serves when the specialty pharmaceutical drugs are shipped

At the time of shipment the earnings process
is complete the obligation of the Companys customer to

pay for the specialty pharmaceutical drugs is fixed and due to the nature of the product the member

may neither return the specialty pharmaceutical drugs nor receive refund Revenues from the

dispensing of specialty pharmaceutical drugs on behalf of health plans were $160.6 million

$195.6 million and $221.6 million for the
years

ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009 respectively

Performance-Based Revenue

The Company has the ability to earn performance-based revenue under certain risk and non-risk

contracts Performance-based revenue generally is based on either the ability of the Company to

manage care for its clients below specified targets or on other operating metrics For each such

contract the Company estimates and records performance-based revenue after considering the relevant

contractual terms and the data available for the performance-based revenue calculation Pro-rata

performance-based revenue is recognized on an interim basis pursuant to the rights and obligations of
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each party upon termination of the contracts Performance-based revenues were $10.4 million

$13.4 million and $7.6 million for the
years ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009 respectively

Cost of Care Medical Claims Payable and Other Medical Liabilities

Cost of care is recognized in the period in which members receive managed healthcare services In

addition to actual benefits paid cost of care in period also includes the impact of accruals for

estimates of medical claims payable Medical claims payable represents the liability for healthcare

claims reported but not yet paid and claims incurred but not yet reported IBNR related to the

Companys managed healthcare businesses

Such liabilities are determined by employing actuarial methods that are commonly used by health

insurance actuaries and that meet actuarial standards of practice

The IBNR portion of medical claims payable is estimated based on past claims payment

experience for member groups enrollment data utilization statistics authorized healthcare services and

other factors This data is incorporated into contract-specific actuarial reserve models and is further

analyzed to create completion factors that represent the average percentage of total incurred claims

that have been paid through given date after being incurred Factors that affect estimated completion
factors include benefit changes enrollment changes shifts in product mix seasonality influences

provider reimbursement changes changes in claims inventory levels the speed of claims processing and

changes in paid claim levels Completion factors are applied to claims paid through the financial

statement date to estimate the ultimate claim expense incurred for the current period Actuarial

estimates of claim liabilities are then determined by subtracting the actual paid claims from the

estimate of the ultimate incurred claims For the most recent incurred months generally the most

recent two months the percentage of claims paid for claims incurred in those months is generally low
This makes the completion factor methodology less reliable for such months Therefore incurred

claims for any month with completion factor that is less than 70 percent are generally not projected

from historical completion and payment patterns rather they are projected by estimating claims

expense based on recent monthly estimated cost incurred per member per month times membership
taking into account seasonality influences benefit changes and health care trend levels collectively

considered to be trend factors

Medical claims payable balances are continually monitored and reviewed If it is determined that

the Companys assumptions in estimating such liabilities are significantly different than actual results

the Companys income statement and financial position could be impacted in future periods

Adjustments of prior period estimates may result in additional cost of care or reduction of cost of

care in the period an adjustment is made Further due to the considerable variability of health care

costs adjustments to claim liabilities occur each period and are sometimes significant as compared to

the net income recorded in that period Prior period development is recognized immediately upon the

actuarys judgment that portion of the prior period liability is no longer needed or that additional
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liability should have been accrued The following table presents the components of the change in

medical claims payable for the years ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009 in thousands

2007 2008 2009

Claims payable and IBNR beginning of

period 156079 185349 184422

Cost of care

Current year 1416700 1836425 1771213

Prior years 7597 5883 5900

Total cost of care 1409103 1830542 1765313

Claim payments and transfers to other

medical liabilities1

Current year
1248549 1676975 1624626

Prior years
131284 154494 156258

Total claim payments and transfers to

other medical liabilities 1379833 1831469 1780884

Claims payable and IBNR end of period 185349 184422 168851

Withhold receivables end of period2 22683 28562 25182

Medical claims payable end of period 162666 155860 143669

For any given period portion of unpaid medical claims payable could be covered by

reinvestment liability discussed below and may not impact the Companys statement of

operations for such periods

Medical claims payable is offset by customer withholds from capitation payments in

situations in which the customer has the contractual requirement to pay providers for

care incurred

Actuarial standards of practice require that the claim liabilities be adequate under moderately

adverse circumstances Adverse circumstances are situations in which the actual claims experience could

be higher than the otherwise estimated value of such claims In many situations the claims paid

amount experienced will be less than the estimate that satisfies the actuarial standards of practice

Care trend factors and completion factors can have significant impact on the medical claims

payable liability The following example provides the estimated impact to the Companys December 31
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2009 unpaid medical claims payable liability assuming hypothetical changes in care trend factors and

completion factors

Care frend Factor1 Completion Factor2

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase

frend Factor Medical Claims Payable Completion Factor Medical Claims Payable

in thousands in thousands

3% $20000 3% $310002% 13000 2% 205001% 6000 1% 10000
1% 6000 1% 10000

2% 13000 2% 20500
3% 20000 3% 31000

Approximately 70 percent of IBNR dollars is based on care trend factors

Assumes change in the care trend factor for any month that completion factor is not

used to estimate incurred claims which is generally any month that is less than

70 percent complete

Assumes change in the completion factor for any month for which completion factors

are used to estimate IBNR which is generally any month that is 70 percent or more

complete

Due to the existence of risk
sharing provisions in certain customer contracts change in the

estimate for medical claims payable does not necessarily result in an equivalent impact on cost of care

The Company believes that the amount of medical claims payable is adequate to cover its ultimate

liability for unpaid claims as of December 31 2009 however actual claims payments may differ from

established estimates

Other medical liabilities consist primarily of reinvestment payables under certain managed
behavioral healthcare contracts with Medicaid customers and profit share payables under certain

risk-based contracts Under contract with reinvestment features if the cost of care is less than certain

minimum amounts specified in the contract usually as percentage of revenue the Company is

required to reinvest such difference in behavioral healthcare programs when and as specified by the

customer or to pay the difference to the customer for their use in funding such programs Under
contract with profit share provisions if the cost of care is below certain specified levels the Company
will share the cost savings with the customer at the percentages set forth in the contract

Long-lived Assets

Long-lived assets including property and equipment and intangible assets to be held and used are

currently reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the

carrying amount should be addressed pursuant to Accounting Standards Codification ASC
360-10-20 Pursuant to this guidance impairment is determined by comparing the carrying value of

these long-lived assets to managements best estimate of the future undiscounted cash flows expected to

result from the use of the assets and their eventual disposition The cash flow projections used to make
this assessment are consistent with the cash flow projections that management uses internally in making

key decisions In the event an impairment exists loss is recognized based on the amount by which the

carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset which is generally determined by using quoted market

prices or the discounted present value of expected future cash flows
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Goodwill

The Company is required to test its goodwill for impairment on at least an annual basis The

Company has selected October as the date of its annual impairment test The goodwill impairment

test is two-step process
that requires management to make judgments in determining what

assumptions to use in the calculation The first step
of the

process
consists of estimating the fair value

of each reporting unit that has been allocated goodwill based on various valuation techniques with the

primary technique being discounted cash flow analysis which requires the input of various

assumptions with respect to revenues operating margins growth rates and discount rates The

estimated fair value for each reporting unit is compared to the carrying value of the reporting unit

which includes the allocated goodwill If the estimated fair value is less than the carrying value

second step is performed to compute the amount of the impairment by determining an implied fair

value of goodwill The determination of reporting units implied fair value of goodwill requires the

Company to allocate the estimated fair value of the reporting unit to the assets and liabilities of the

reporting unit Any unallocated fair value represents
the implied fair value of goodwill which is

compared to its corresponding carrying value

The fair value of the Health Plan reporting unit component of the Commercial segment was

determined using discounted cash flow method This method involves estimating the present
value of

estimated future cash flows utilizing risk adjusted discount rate Key assumptions for this method

include cash flow projections terminal growth rates and discount rates

The fair value of the Radiology Benefits Management reporting unit was determined using

discounted cash flow merger and acquisition and public company methods Key assumptions for the

discounted cash flow method are consistent with those described above Key assumptions for the

merger and acquisition method include actual operating results and appropriate revenue and earnings

before interest taxes depreciation and amortization EBITDA multiples Key assumptions for the

public company method include actual operating results projected operating results and appropriate

EBITDA earnings before interest and taxes EBIT and debt free net income multiples The

weighting applied to the fair values determined using the discounted cash flow merger and acquisition

and public company methods to determine an overall fair value for Radiology Benefits Management

was 60 percent 20 percent and 20 percent respectively

The fair value of the Specialty Pharmaceutical Management reporting
unit was determined using

discounted cash flow merger and acquisition and public company methods Key assumptions for all of

these methods are consistent with those described above Equal weighting was applied to the fair values

determined using the discounted cash flow merger and acquisition and public company methods to

determine an overall fair value for Specialty Pharmaceutical Management

The fair value of the Medicaid Administration reporting unit was determined using discounted

cash flow method as of the Companys acquisition of First Health Services using assumptions consistent

with those described above Given that the acquisition of First Health Services occurred two months

prior to the date of the annual impairment test and since there have been no significant changes in the

business assumptions for First Health Services the Company did not obtain an additional valuation for

purposes of the goodwill impairment test

As result of the first step of the 2009 annual goodwill impairment analysis the fair value of each

reporting unit with allocated goodwill exceeded its carrying value Therefore the second step was not

necessary However 65 percent decline in fair value of the Health Plan reporting unit 19 percent

decline in fair value of Radiology Benefits Management or 34 percent decline in fair value of

Specialty Pharmaceutical Management would have caused the carrying values for these reporting units

to be in excess of fair values which would require the second step to be performed The second step

could have resulted in an impairment loss for goodwill
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The balance of goodwill has been allocated to the Companys reporting units as follows in
thousands

December 31

2008 2009

Health Plan $120485 $120485

Radiology Benefits Management 104549 104549

Specialty Pharmaceutical Management 142291 142291
Medicaid Administration 59146

Total $367325 $426471

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2009

are reflected in the table below in thousands

2008 2009

Balance as of beginning of period $367872 $367325

Adjustment due to changes in valuation allowances1 219

Adjustment for tax contingency reversals1 766
Acquisition of First Health Services 59146

Balance as of end of period $367325 $426471

Prior to 2009 reversals of both valuation allowances and unrecognized tax benefits were
in most instances recorded as adjustments to goodwill Subsequent to January 2009 all

such reversals will be recorded as reductions to income tax expense and only those

changes occurring during the measurement period subsequent to an acquisition will be

recorded to goodwill

Income Taxes

The Company files consolidated federal income tax return for the Company and its eighty-

percent or more owned subsidiaries and the Company and its subsidiaries file income tax returns in

various states and local jurisdictions

The Company estimates income taxes for each of the jurisdictions in which it operates This

process involves estimating current tax exposures together with assessing temporary differences resulting

from differing treatment of items for tax and book purposes Deferred tax assets and/or liabilities are

determined by multiplying the differences between the financial reporting and tax reporting bases for

assets and liabilities by the enacted tax rates expected to be in effect when such differences are

recovered or settled The Company then assesses the likelihood that the deferred tax assets will be

recovered from the reversal of temporary timing differences and future taxable income and to the

extent the Company cannot conclude that
recovery

is more likely than not it establishes valuation

allowance The effect of change in tax rates on deferred taxes is recognized in income in the period
that includes the enactment date

The Company estimates that it has federal net operating loss carryforwards NOLs as of

December 31 2009 of $54.9 million available to reduce future federal taxable income These estimated

NOLs expire in 2011 through 2020 and are subject to examination and adjustment by the Internal

Revenue Service IRS In addition the Companys utilization of such NOLs is subject to limitation

under Internal Revenue Code Section 382 Section 382 which affects the timing of the use of these

NOLs At this time the Company does not believe these limitations will limit the Companys ability to
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use any federal NOLs before they expire Although the Company has NOLs that may be available to

offset future taxable income the Company may be subject to Federal Alternative Minimum Tax

The Companys valuation allowances against deferred tax assets were $9.4 million and $7.3 million

as of December 31 2008 and 2009 respectively mostly relating to uncertainties regarding the eventual

realization of certain state NOLs and other state deferred tax assets Determination of the amount of

deferred tax assets considered realizable required significant judgment and estimation Changes in these

estimates in the future could materially affect the Companys financial condition and results of

operations

Prior to 2009 in certain instances reversals of both valuation allowances and unrecognized tax

benefits were recorded as adjustments to goodwill All other reversals of these balances were recorded

as reductions to income tax expense Beginning in 2009 only those changes occurring during the

measurement period subsequent to an acquisition will be recorded as adjustments to goodwill All other

reversals of valuation allowances and unrecognized tax benefits will be reflected as reductions to

income tax expense The Companys income tax expense for 2009 was reduced by $2.0 million as

result of this change

The balance of unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31 2008 and 2009 was $129.2 million

and $113.1 million respectively most of which was included in deferred credits and other long-term

liabilities and the remainder reducing deferred tax assets If these unrecognized tax benefits had been

realized as of December 31 2008 and 2009 and had Accounting Standards Codification ASC 805

Business Combinations been effective in 2008 $90.4 million and $88.3 million respectively would

have impacted the effective tax rate

Included in the balance of unrecognized tax benefits recorded at December 31 2008 and 2009

were liabilities of $14.1 million and $1.1 million respectively for tax positions for which the ultimate

deductibility is highly certain but for which there is uncertainty about the timing of such deductibility

Because of the impact of deferred tax accounting other than interest and penalties the deferral of

these deductions to later years would not affect the annual effective tax rate but could result in the

acceleration of cash payments and/or reduction to the NOL carryforwards with respect to the earlier

period

With few exceptions the Company is no longer subject to state or local income tax assessments by

tax authorities for
years

ended prior to December 31 2006 Further the statute of limitations regarding

the assessment of the federal and most state and local income taxes for the year
ended December 31

2006 will expire during 2010 The Company anticipates that up to $3.3 million of unrecognized tax

benefits excluding interest costs recorded as of December 31 2009 could be reversed during 2010 as

result of statute expirations All such reversals net of the related indirect tax benefits would be

reflected as discrete adjustments during the quarter
in which the respective statute expiration occurs

Results of Operations

The Company evaluates performance of its segments based on profit or loss from continuing

operations before stock compensation expense depreciation and amortization interest expense interest

income gain on sale of assets special charges or benefits and income taxes Segment Profit

Management uses Segment Profit information for internal reporting and control purposes and considers

it important in making decisions regarding the allocation of capital and other resources risk assessment

and employee compensation among other matters Intersegment sales and transfers are not significant

See Note 11Business Segment Information to the consolidated financial statements set forth

elsewhere herein The Companys segments are defined above
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The table below summarizes for the periods indicated operating results by business segment

in thousands

Year Ended December 31 2007

Radiology

Public Benefits

Commercial Sector Management

Net revenue

Cost of care

Cost of goods sold

Direct service costs

Other operating expenses

Stock compensation

expense1

Segment profit loss

Year Ended December 31 2008

Net revenue

Cost of care

Cost of goods sold

Direct service costs 154894
Other operating expenses

Stock compensation

expense1
_________

Segment profit loss

$180341 2155953

1409103

149585

286092

117911 117911

228499 2625394

1830542

181356

303913

122714 122714

Year Ended December 31
2009

Radiology Specialty

Public Benefits Pharmaceutical Medicaid

Commercial Sector Management Management Administration

Corporate

and

Other Consolidated

11469 19782

________ __________ ________ ________ _______
$102619 227237

Stock compensation expense is included in direct service costs and other operating expenses however this

amount is excluded from the computation of segment profit since it is managed on consolidated basis

Specialty Corporate
Pharmaceutical and

Management Other Consolidated

784533 $1020839 $170240

392325 902594 114184

163800
149585

51922 48841 21529

2277 1172

230685 67495

1708

8923

8769

17996

Specialty

Pharmaceutical

Management

Radiology

Public Benefits

Commercial Sector Management

649636 $1451923 295336

344761 1278316 207465

16068 29994

$101843 223256

Corporate
and

Other Consolidated

181356

68914 54482 25623

1368 839 1472

$151349 105532 34861

8967

30487

20117 32763

$102597 219632

Net revenue 650139 $1362420 305251 259745

Cost of care 351270 1208451 205592
Cost of goods sold 203336
Direct service costs 152280 67835 51732 24901
Other operating expenses

Stock compensation

expense1

64259

953 690

Segment profit loss $147542 86824

54874

2641814

1765313

203336

351622
114088 114088

1260

49187

5383

36891

27

9412
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The following table reconciles Segment Profit as calculated in the table above to consolidated

income from continuing operations before income taxes for the years ended December 31 2007 2008

and 2009

2007 2008 2009

Segment Profit $223256 $219632 $227237

Stock compensation expense 29994 32763 19782

Depreciation and amortization 57524 60810 47268

Interest expense 6386 2846 2424

Interest income 23836 17030 6245

Income from continuing operations before income taxes $153188 $140243 $164008

Year ended December 31 2009 2009 compared to the year ended December 31 2008 2008

Commercial

Net Revenue

Net revenue related to the Commercial segment increased by 0.1 percent or $0.5 million from 2008

to 2009 The increase in revenue is mainly due to favorable rate changes of $11.7 million increased

membership from existing customers of $8.2 million the favorable impact of contractual settlements in

2009 of $5.7 million revenue from new contracts implemented after or during 2008 of $4.3 million

and other net favorable variances of $1.8 million which increases were partially offset by terminated

contracts of $26.1 million and net favorable retroactive membership adjustments of $5.1 million

recorded in 2008

Cost of Care

Cost of care increased by 1.9 percent or $6.5 million from 2008 to 2009 The increase in cost of

care is primarily due to increased membership from existing customers of $6.8 million and care trends

and other net variances of $29.1 million which increases were partially
offset by terminated contracts

of $17.1 million unfavorable prior period medical claims development recorded in 2008 of $5.1 million

the favorable impact of contractual settlements in 2009 of $2.7 million favorable prior period medical

claims development recorded in 2009 of $2.5 million and favorable prior period medical claims

development for 2008 which was recorded in 2009 of $2.0 million Cost of care as percentage of risk

revenue excluding EAP revenue increased from 76.2 percent in 2008 to 76.4 percent in 2009 mainly

due to unfavorable care trends and business mix

Direct Seriice Costs

Direct service costs decreased by 1.7 percent or $2.6 million from 2008 to 2009 The decrease in

direct service costs is mainly attributable to one-time charge in 2008 of $2.5 million associated with

legal matters Direct service costs decreased as percentage of revenue from 23.8 percent in 2008 to

23.4 percent in 2009 mainly due to business mix

Public Sector

Net Revenue

Net revenue related to Public Sector decreased by 6.2 percent or $89.5 million from 2008 to 2009

This decrease is primarily
due to the net impact of terminated contracts offset by increased

membership from existing customers of $127.6 million which decrease was partially offset by higher
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performance revenue in 2009 for the Maricopa Contract of $16.3 million and net favorable rate and

contract funding changes of $21.8 million

Cost of Care

Cost of care decreased by 5.5
percent or $69.9 million from 2008 to 2009 This decrease is

primarily due to care associated with terminated contracts offset by increased membership from existing

customers of $96.1 million and favorable prior period medical claims development recorded in 2009 of

$2.6 million which decreases were partially offset by care associated with rate changes for contracts

with minimum cost of care requirements of $9.4 million favorable prior period medical claims

development recorded in 2008 of $8.6 million unfavorable medical claims development for 2008 which

was recorded in 2009 of $2.4 million and care trends and other net variances of $8A million Cost of

care increased as percentage of risk revenue from 88.4 percent in 2008 to 89.1 percent in 2009
mainly due to changes in business mix

Direct Service Costs

Direct service costs decreased by 1.6 percent or $1.1 million from 2008 to 2009 The decrease in

direct service costs is primarily due to terminated contracts partially offset by staffing required to

support certain contracts As percentage of revenue direct service costs increased from 4.7 percent in

2008 to 5.0 percent in 2009 mainly due to changes in business mix

Radiology Benefits Management

Net Revenue

Net revenue related to the Radiology Benefits Management segment increased by 3.4 percent or

$9.9 million from 2008 to 2009 This increase is primarily due to new contracts implemented after or
during 2008 of $32.4 million favorable rate changes of $19.5 million favorable retroactive

membership rate and contractual settlements recorded in 2009 of $2.4 million net unfavorable

retroactive membership and rate adjustments recorded in 2008 of $1.6 million and other net favorable

variances of $2.9 million which increases were partially offset by net decreased membership from

existing customers of $39.4 million and terminated contracts of $9.5 million

Cost of Care

Cost of care decreased by 0.9 percent or $1.9 million from 2008 to 2009 This decrease is primarily
due to decreased membership from existing customers of $31.9 million favorable contractual

settlements in 2009 of $4.7 million favorable prior period medical claims development for 2008 which

was recorded in 2009 of $1.0 million and favorable prior period claims development recorded in 2009

of $0.8 million which decreases were partially offset by new contracts implemented after 2008 of

$22.6 million favorable prior period medical claims development recorded in 2008 of $2.1 million and

unfavorable care trends and other net variances of $11.8 million Cost of care decreased as

percentage of risk revenue from 86.7
percent in 2008 to 80.8 percent in 2009 mainly due to favorable

rate changes favorable contractual settlements favorable care development and business mix

Direct Service Costs

Direct service costs decreased 5.0 percent or $2.8 million from 2008 to 2009 This decrease is

primarily attributed to terminated contracts As percentage of revenue direct service costs decreased

from 18.4 percent in 2008 to 16.9 percent in 2009 mainly due to favorable rate changes and favorable

contractual settlements
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Specialty Pharmaceutical Management

Net Revenue

Net revenue related to the Specialty Pharmaceutical Management segment increased 13.7 percent

or $31.2 million from 2008 to 2009 This increase is primarily
due to net increased dispensing activity

from new and existing customers of $26.1 million and increased contracting and formulary optimization

revenue from new and existing customers of $5.1 million including $0.7 million of retroactive

formulary optimization revenue recorded in 2009

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold increased 12.1 percent or $22.0 million from 2008 to 2009 primarily due to net

increased dispensing activity from new and existing customers As percentage of the portion of net

revenue that relates to dispensing revenue cost of goods sold decreased from 92.7 percent in 2008 to

91.8 percent in 2009 mainly due to business mix

Direct Service Costs

Direct service costs decreased by 2.8 percent or $0.7 million from 2008 to 2009 This decrease is

primarily due to the decrease in stock compensation expense partially offset by expenses required to

support the aforementioned increases to revenue As percentage of revenue direct service costs

decreased from 11.2 percent in 2008 to 9.6 percent in 2009 mainly due to decreased stock

compensation expense and increased dispensing revenue

Medicaid Administration

Net Revenue

Net revenue related to Medicaid Administration was $64.3 million for the period from August

2009 through December 31 2009 As discussed above the acquisition
of First Health Services closed on

July 31 2009 and thus 2008 does not include any operating results for this segment of the Company

Direct Service Costs

Direct service costs were $54.9 million for the period from August 2009 thru December 31

2009 As percentage of revenue direct service costs were 85.4 percent
in such period

Corporate and Other

Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses related to the Corporate and Other segment decreased by 7.0 percent or

$8.6 million from 2008 to 2009 The decrease results primarily from expenses incurred in 2008 pursuant

to the provisions of the former Chief Executive Officers employment agreement of $10.1 million

including $5.4 million of stock compensation expense related to the accelerated vesting for certain

equity awards and net one-time expenses incurred in 2008 of $1.7 million which increases were

partially offset by one-time acquisition-related expenses incurred in 2009 of $1.4 million and net other

unfavorable variances of $1.8 million As percentage of total net revenue other operating expenses

decreased from 4.7 percent for 2008 to 4.3 percent for 2009 primarily due to prior year expenses

incurred pursuant to the former Chief Executive Officers employment agreement
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Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense decreased by 22.3 percent or $13.5 million from 2008 to

2009 primarily due to assets that became fully depreciated as of December 31 2008 partially offset by
asset additions after 2008 inclusive of assets related to the acquisition of First Health Services

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased by 14.8 percent or $0.4 million from 2008 to 2009 mainly due to

reductions in outstanding debt balances as result scheduled debt payments

Interest Income

Interest income decreased by 63.3 percent or $10.8 million from 2008 to 2009 mainly due to lower

invested balances and lower yields

Income Taxes

The Companys effective income tax rate was 38.5
percent in 2008 and 35.0 percent in 2009 The

2008 and 2009 effective income tax rates differ from the federal statutory income tax rate primarily due

to state income taxes and permanent differences between book and tax income The Company also

accrues interest related to unrecognized tax benefits in its provision for income taxes The effective

income tax rate in 2009 is lower than 2008 mainly due to more significant reversals in 2009 of valuation

allowances on deferred state taxes and tax contingencies due to closure of statutes of limitation

2008 compared to the year ended December 31 2007 2007
Commercial

Net .Revenue

Net revenue related to the Commercial segment decreased by 17.2 percent or $134.9 million from

2007 to 2008 The decrease in revenue is mainly due to terminated contracts of $193.8 million and net

favorable retroactive membership adjustments of $2.5 million recorded in 2007 which decreases were

partially offset by increased membership from
existing customers of $31.5 million favorable rate

changes of $17.7 million favorable retroactive membership and rate adjustments of $5.1 million

recorded in 2008 revenue from new contracts implemented after or during 2007 of $5.2 million and

other net favorable variances of $1.9 million

Cost of Care

Cost of care decreased by 12.1 percent or $47.6 million from 2007 to 2008 The decrease in cost of

care is primarily due to terminated contracts of $118.9 million which decrease was partially offset by
increased membership from existing customers of $17.0 million favorable prior period medical claims

development recorded in 2007 of $6.7 million unfavorable prior period medical claims development for

2007 which was recorded in 2008 or $5.2 million unfavorable prior period medical claims development
recorded in 2008 of $5.1 million and care trends and other net unfavorable variances of $37.3 million

Cost of care as percentage of risk revenue excluding EAP revenue increased from 68.7 percent in

2007 to 76.2 percent in 2008 mainly due to unfavorable care trends and care development and due to

business mix

Direct Service Costs

Direct service costs decreased by 5.4
percent or $8.9 million from 2007 to 2008 The decrease in

direct service costs is mainly attributable to terminated contracts partially offset by one4ime charge
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in 2008 of $2.5 million associated with legal matters Direct service costs increased as percentage of

revenue from 20.9 percent in 2007 to 23.8 percent in 2008 mainly due to business mix

Public Sector

Net Revenue

Net revenue related to Public Sector increased by 42.2 percent or $431.1 million from 2007 to

2008 This increase is primarily due to revenue from new contracts implemented after or during 2007

of $413.4 million favorable rate changes of $42.4 million and membership increases from existing

customers of $23.0 million which increases were partially offset by net loss of membership in

connection with the West and Middle Grand Regions of TennCare of $45.3 million and other net

unfavorable variances of $2.4 million

Cost of Care

Cost of care increased by 41.6 percent or $375.7 million from 2007 to 2008 This increase is

primarily due to care associated with new contracts implemented after or during 2007 of

$380.1 million care associated with rate changes for contracts that have minimum cost of care

requirements of $24.4 million membership increases from existing customers of $15.6 million favorable

prior period medical claims development which was recorded in 2007 of $0.9 million and care trends

and other net variances of $9.5 million which increases were partially offset by the net loss of

membership in connection with the West and Middle Grand Regions of TennCare of $37.6 million

favorable prior period medical claims development recorded in 2008 of $8.6 million and favorable

medical claims development for 2007 which was recorded in 2008 of $8.6 million Cost of care

decreased as percentage of risk revenue from 88.8 percent
in 2007 to 88.4 percent in 2008 mainly

due to favorable medical claims development and business mix

Direct Service Costs

Direct service costs increased by 32.7 percent or $17.0 million from 2007 to 2008 The increase in

direct service costs is primarily due to costs associated with new business As percentage of revenue

direct service costs decreased from 5.1 percent in 2007 to 4.7 percent in 2008 mainly due to business

mix

Radiology Benefits Management

Net Revenue

Net revenue related to the Radiology Benefits Management segment increased by 73.5 percent or

$125.1 million from 2007 to 2008 This increase is primarily due to the conversion of an ASO contract

to risk contract during 2007 of $75.0 million revenue from new customers implemented after or

during 2007 of $50.7 million favorable rate adjustments of $6.9 million and net increased membership

from existing customers of $1.0 million inclusive of net decrease in risk membership of $4.7 million

which increases were partially offset by terminated contracts of $7.1 million and other net unfavorable

variances of $1.4 million

Cost of Care

Cost of care increased by 81.7 percent or $93.3 million from 2007 to 2008 This increase is

primarily due to the conversion of an ASO contract to risk contract during 2007 of $62.6 million care

associated with new customers implemented after or during 2007 of $39.6 million and other net

increases of $0.3 million which increases were partially offset by net decreased membership from

existing risk customers of $5.0 million favorable prior period claims development recorded in 2008 of
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$2.1 million and favorable claims development for 2007 recorded in 2008 of $2.1 million Cost of care

decreased as percentage of risk revenue from 96.6 percent in 2007 to 86.7 percent in 2008 mainly due

to favorable rate adjustments favorable care development and business mix

Direct Service Costs

Direct service costs increased 11.5 percent or $5.6 million from 2007 to 2008 This increase is

primarily attributed to additional costs incurred to support the new risk contract which was

implemented in June 2007 As percentage of revenue direct service costs decreased from

28.7 percent in 2007 to 18.4 percent in 2008 mainly due to the additional revenue provided by the

risk-based contracts in 2008

Specialty Pharmaceutical Management

Net Revenue

Net revenue related to the Specialty Pharmaceutical Management segment increased 26.7 percent

or $48.2 million from 2007 to 2008 This increase is primarily due to net increased dispensing activity

from new and existing customers of $35.2 million increased contract and formulary optimization

revenue of $12.2 million including $0.5 million of retrospective formulary optimization revenue

recorded in 2008 and other net favorable variances of $0.8 million

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold increased 21.2 percent or $31.8 million from 2007 to 2008 primarily due to net

increased dispensing activity from new and existing customers As percentage of the portion of net

revenue that relates to dispensing revenue cost of goods sold decreased from 92.9 percent in 2007 to

92.7
percent in 2008 mainly due to business mix

Direct Service Costs

Direct service costs increased by 19.0 percent or $4.1 million from 2007 to 2008 This increase is

primarily due to the expenses required to support the aforementioned increases to revenue As

percentage of revenue direct service costs decreased from 11.9
percent in 2007 to 11.2 percent in 2008

mainly due to increased dispensing revenue

Corporate and Other

Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses related to the Corporate and Other segment increased by 4.1 percent or

$4.8 million from 2007 to 2008 The increase results primarily from expenses incurred in 2008 pursuant
to the provisions of the former Chief Executive Officers employment agreement of $10.1 million

which includes $5.4 million of stock compensation expense related to the accelerated vesting for

certain equity awards and net one-time expenses incurred in 2008 of $1.7 million which increases

were partially offset by expenses incurred in 2007 related to bid proposals of $2.5 million and net other

favorable variances of $4.5 million As percentage of total net revenue other operating expenses
decreased from 5.5 percent for 2007 to 4.7

percent for 2008 primarily due to business mix and the

increased revenue from radiology risk contracts and the Maricopa Contract

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense increased by 5.7 percent or $3.3 million from 2007 to 2008
primarily due to asset additions after or during 2007 inclusive of assets related to the Maricopa

County contract partially offset by decrease in amortization expense due to an intangible asset which

became fully amortized in 2007
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Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased by 55.4 percent or $3.5 million from 2007 to 2008 mainly due to

reductions in outstanding debt balances as result of repayment of debt in 2008 and lower interest

rates

Interest Income

Interest income decreased by 28.6 percent or $6.8 million from 2007 to 2008 mainly due to lower

yields

Income Taxes

The Companys effective income tax rate was 38.3 percent in 2007 and 38.5 percent in 2008 The

2007 and 2008 effective income tax rates differ from the federal statutory income tax rate primarily due

to state income taxes and permanent differences between book and tax income The Company also

accrues interest related to unrecognized tax benefits in its provision for income taxes

OutlookResults of Operations

The Companys Segment Profit and net income are subject to significant fluctuations from period

to period These fluctuations may result from variety of factors such as those set forth under

Item 1ARisk Factors as well as variety of other factors including changes in utilization levels

by enrolled members of the Companys risk-based contracts including seasonal utilization patterns

ii contractual adjustments and settlements iii retrospective membership adjustments iv timing of

implementation of new contracts enrollment changes and contract terminations pricing adjustments

upon contract renewals and price competition in general and vi changes in estimates regarding

medical costs and IBNR

portion of the Companys business is subject to rising care costs due to an increase in the

number and frequency of covered members seeking behavioral healthcare or radiology services and

higher costs per inpatient day or outpatient visit for behavioral services and higher costs per scan for

radiology services Many of these factors are beyond the Companys control Future results of

operations will be heavily dependent on managements ability to obtain customer rate increases that are

consistent with care cost increases and/or to reduce operating expenses

In relation to the managed behavioral healthcare business the Company is market leader in

mature market with many viable competitors The Company is continuing its attempts to grow its

business in the managed behavioral healthcare industry through aggressive marketing and development

of new products however due to the maturity of the market the Company believes that the ability to

grow its current business lines may be limited In addition as previously discussed substantially all of

the Companys Commercial segment revenues are derived from Blue Cross Blue Shield health plans

and other managed care companies health insurers and health plans Certain of the managed care

customers of the Company have decided not to renew all or part of their contracts with the Company

and to instead manage the behavioral healthcare services directly for their subscribers

Care Trends The Company expects that the Commercial care trend factor for 2010 will be to

percent the Public Sector care trend factor for 2010 will be to percent and the Radiology

Benefits Management care trend for 2010 will be to 10 percent

Interest Rate Risk Changes in interest rates affect interest income earned Ofl the Companys cash

equivalents and investments as well as interest expense on variable interest rate borrowings under the

Companys 2009 Credit Facility Based on the amount of cash equivalents and investments and the

borrowing levels under the 2009 Credit Facility as of December 31 2009 hypothetical 10 percent

increase or decrease in the interest rate associated with these instruments with all other variables held

constant would not materially affect the Companys future earnings and cash outflows
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Historical.Liquidity and Capital Resources

2009 compared to 2008

Operating Activities The Company reported net cash provided by operating activities of

$268.3 million and $218.6 million for 2008 and 2009 respectively The $49.7 million decrease in

operating cash flows from 2008 to 2009 is primarily attributable to the shift of restricted funds between

cash and investments which results in an operating cash flow change that is directly offset by an

investing cash flow change During 2008 $109.2 million of restricted cash was shifted to restricted

investments as compared to 2009 in which $38.5 million of restricted cash was shifted to restricted

investments resulting in net decrease in operating cash flows between periods of $70.7 million Also

contributing to the decrease in operating cash flows is the decrease in interest income of $10.8 million

from 2008 to 2009 Partially offsetting these items is the
year over year

reduction in the funding of

restricted cash for risk radiology contract of $11.7 million the increase in segment profit of

$7.6 million from 2008 the release of restricted cash in 2009 of $7.1 million associated with contract

that terminated in 2007 and other net favorable items of $5.4 million

During 2009 the Companys restricted cash decreased $32.7 million The change in restricted cash

is attributable to the shift of restricted cash of $38.5 million to restricted investments and the reduction

in restricted cash of $7.1 million associated with contract that terminated in 2007 partially offset by

an increase in restricted cash of $9.5 million associated with the Companys regulated entities and other

net increases of $3.4 million The majority of the increase in restricted cash for the Companys

regulated entities is related to funding to satisfy increased equity requirements

Investing Activities The Company utilized $36.3 million and $33.2 million during 2008 and 2009

respectively for capital expenditures The majority of the capital expenditures for 2008 and 2009 are

related to management information systems and related equipment The Company used net cash of

$176.0 million and $0.8 million for the net purchase of available for sale investments during the 2008

and 2009 respectively

During 2008 the Company made the final working capital payment of $0.4 million related to the

acquisition of ICORE and settled the $25.0 million deferred payment associated with the acquisition of

ICORE During 2009 the Company acquired First Health Services for $115.4 million which is net of

cash acquired as of the close date of $2.0 million

Financing Activities During 2008 the Company had $14.0 million of debt and capital lease

payments paid $136.2 million for the repurchase of Company stock in accordance with its share

buy-back program and had other net financing cash flow uses of $1.3 million In addition the Company
received $12.9 million from the exercise of stock options and warrants and obtained tax benefits of

$7.5 million from the exercise of stock options and vesting of stock awards

During 2009 the Company paid $89.7 million on the repurchase of common stock in accordance

with its share buy-back program and had other net financing cash flow uses of $0.2 million In addition

the Company received $2.6 million from the exercise of stock options and warrants and obtained tax

benefits of $2.9 million from the exercise of stock options and vesting of stock awards

2008 compared to 2007

Operating Activities The Companys net cash provided by operating activities for 2007 and 2008

totaled $194.6 million and $268.3 million respectively The $73.7 million increase in operating cash

flows from 2007 to 2008 is primarily attributable to the shift of restricted cash to restricted investments

which results in an operating cash flow source that is directly offset by an investing cash flow use

During 2008 $108.7 million of restricted cash was shifted to restricted investments as compared to 2007

in which $15.0 million of restricted investments were shifted to restricted cash As such the year over

year impact results in $123.7 million increase in operating cash flows In addition the funding of
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restricted cash associated with the Companys regulated entities in 2008 was $36.1 million lower than

2007 mainly due to the initial funding required for the Maricopa Contract in 2007

Partially offsetting these items is the build-up of receivables and inventory of $20.5 million

associated with the growth experienced in the specialty pharmaceutical management business segment

the reduction from 2007 in the build-up of medical claims payable and other liabilities of $14.8 million

associated with the risk-based radiology contracts and the funding of restricted cash in 2008 of

$13.3 million associated with risk-based radiology contract In addition the Companys operating cash

flows were negatively impacted by the decrease in interest income and segment profit of $6.8 million

and $3.7 million respectively from 2007 to 2008 higher current year payments associated with claims

run-out for terminated contacts with 2007 and 2008 run-out payments of $8.8 million and

$13.9 million respectively and other net unfavorable variances of $21.9 million associated with working

capital changes

During 2008 the Companys restricted cash decreased $60.4 million with $108.7 million of this

decrease attributable to the shift of portion of the Companys restricted cash to restricted

investments Partially offsetting this item is the funding of restricted cash of $13.3 million associated

with risk-based radiology contract the increase in restricted cash of $34.8 million associated with the

Companys regulated entities and other net increases of $0.2 million Of the increase in restricted cash

associated with the Companys regulated entities $30.3 million is offset by changes in other assets and

liabilities primarily medical claims payable and other medical liabilities thus having no impact on

operating cash flows

Investing Activities The Company utilized $47.6 million and $36.3 million during 2007 and 2008

respectively for capital expenditures During 2007 the Company incurred capital expenditures
of

$15.0 million related to the implementation and start-up of the Maricopa County contract with

$7.0 million of this total attributable to fixed assets related to clinics that were purchased from Value

Options During 2008 capital expenditures associated with the Maricopa County contract totaled

$6.5 million

During 2007 the Company received net cash of $0.7 million from the net maturity of

available-for-sale investments with the Company using net cash of $176.0 million during 2008 for the

net purchase of available-for-sale investments The net purchase of investments during 2008 is

primarily attributable to shift of restricted cash of $108.7 million to restricted investments as noted

above In addition the Company purchased short-term investments from the cash generated from its

operations

During 2007 and 2008 the Company made working capital payments of $17.8 million and

$0.4 million respectively related to the acquisition of ICORE with the payment made during 2008

representing the final ICORE working capital payment In addition during 2008 the Company settled

the $25.0 million deferred payment associated with the acquisition of ICORE with the previous

unitholders of ICORE

Financing Activities During 2007 the Company received proceeds of $32.4 million from the

exercise of stock options and warrants and obtained tax benefit of $14.4 million from the exercise of

stock options In addition the Company had $27.9 million of debt and capital lease payments and had

other net financing cash flow uses of $0.2 million

During 2008 the Company made payments of $136.2 million including broker commissions for

the repurchase of Company stock in accordance with its share buy-back program had $14.0 million of

debt and capital lease payments and had other net financing cash flow uses of $1.3 million In addition

the Company received proceeds of $12.9 million from the exercise of stock options and warrants and

obtained tax benefits of $7.5 million from the exercise of stock options and vesting of stock awards
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OutlookLiquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity During 2010 the Company expects to fund its estimated capital expenditures of $38 to

$48 million with cash from operations The Company does not anticipate that it will need to draw on

amounts available under the 2009 Credit Facility for its operations capital needs or debt service in

2010 The Company also currently expects to have adequate liquidity to satisfy its existing financial

commitments over the periods in which they will become due The Company maintains its current

investment strategy of investing in diversified high quality liquid portfolio of investments and

continues to closely monitor the situation in the financial and credit markets The Company estimates

that it has no risk of any material permanent loss on its investment portfolio however there can be no

assurance that the Company will not experience any such losses in the future

The following table sets forth the future financial commitments of the Company as of the

December 31 2009 in thousands

Payments due by period

Less than More than

Contractual Obligations Total year 13 years 35 years years

Operating ieasesi 51281 $21397 $28770 $1114
Purchase cornmitments2 515 515

FIN 48 liabilities3 113100

$164896 $21912 $28770 $1114

Operating lease obligations include estimated future lease payments for both open and closed

offices

Purchase commitments include open purchase orders as of December 31 2009 relating to ongoing

capital expenditure and operational activities

The Company is unable to make reasonably reliable estimate of the period of the cash

settlement with the respective taxing authorities for the $113.1 million balance of its tax

contingency reserves See further discussion in Note 7Income Taxes to the consolidated

financial statements set forth elsewhere herein

In addition to the contractual obligations and commitments discussed above the Company has

variety of other contractual agreements related to acquiring materials and services used in the

Companys operations However the Company does not believe these other agreements contain

material noncancelable commitments

Stock Repurchase On July 30 2008 the Companys board of directors approved stock

repurchase plan which authorized the Company to purchase up to $200 million of its outstanding

common stock through January 31 2010 Stock repurchases under the program could be executed

through open market repurchases privately negotiated transactions accelerated share repurchases or

other means The board of directors authorized management to execute stock repurchase transactions

under the program from time to time and in such amounts and via such methods as management
deemed appropriate The stock repurchase program could be limited or terminated at any time without

prior notice Pursuant to this program the Company made open market purchases of 1859959 shares

of the Companys common stock at an average share price of $34.39 per share for an aggregate cost of

$64.0 million excluding broker commissions during the period January 2009 through April 2009

which was the date that the repurchase program was completed the $200 million authorization having

been exhausted

On July 28 2009 the Companys board of directors approved stock repurchase plan which

authorizes the Company to purchase up to $100 million of its outstanding common stock through

July 28 2011 Stock repurchases under the program may be executed through open market repurchases

privately negotiated transactions accelerated share repurchases or other means The board of directors
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authorized management to execute stock repurchase transactions under the program from time to time

and in such amounts and via such methods as management deems appropriate The stock repurchase

program may be limited or terminated at any time without prior notice Pursuant to this program the

Company made open market purchases of 782400 shares of the Companys common stock at an

average price of $32.75 per share for an aggregate cost of $25.6 million excluding broker commissions

during the period from August 17 2009 through December 31 2009

During the period from January 2010 through February 25 2010 the Company made additional

open market purchases of 16200 shares at an aggregate cost of $0.6 million excluding broker

commissions

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements As of December 31 2009 the Company has no material

off-balance sheet arrangements

2009 Credit Facility On April 29 2009 the Company entered into an amendment to the 2008

Credit Facility with Deutsche Bank AG Citibank N.A and Bank of America N.A that provides for

an $80.0 million Revolving Loan Commitment for the issuance of letters of credit for the account of

the Company with sublimit of up to $30.0 million for revolving loans the 2009 Credit Facility

Borrowings under the 2009 Credit Facility will mature on April 28 2010 The 2009 Credit Facility is

guaranteed by substantially all of the subsidiaries of the Company and is secured by substantially all of

the assets of the Company and the subsidiary guarantors

Under the 2009 Credit Facility the annual interest rate on Revolving Loan borrowings bear

interest at rate equal to in the case of U.S dollar denominated loans the sum of borrowing

margin of 2.25 percent plus the higher of the prime rate or one-half of one percent in excess of the

overnight federal funds rate or ii in the case of Eurodollar denominated loans the sum of

borrowing margin of 3.25 percent plus the Eurodollar rate for the selected interest period The

Company has the option to borrow in U.S dollar denominated loans or Eurodollar denominated loans

at its discretion Letters of Credit issued under the Revolving Loan Commitment bear interest at the

rate of 3.375 percent The commitment commission on the 2009 Credit Facility is 0.625 percent of the

unused Revolving Loan Commitment

Restrictive Covenants in Debt Agreements The 2009 Credit Facility contains covenants that limit

managements discretion in operating the Companys business by restricting or limiting the Companys

ability among other things to

incur or guarantee additional indebtedness or issue preferred or redeemable stock

pay dividends and make other distributions

repurchase equity interests

make certain advances investments and loans

enter into sale and leaseback transactions

create liens

sell and otherwise dispose of assets

acquire or merge or consolidate with another company and

enter into some types of transactions with affiliates

These restrictions could adversely affect the Companys ability to finance future operations or

capital needs or engage in other business activities that may be in the Companys interest

The 2009 Credit Facility also requires the Company to comply with specified financial ratios and

tests Failure to do so unless waived by the lenders under the 2009 Credit Facility pursuant to its

terms would result in an event of default under the 2009 Credit Facility
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Although the 2009 Credit Facility expires on April 28 2010 the Company believes it will be able

to obtain new facility or if not to use cash on hand to fund letters of credit and other liquidity

needs

Net Operating Loss Canyforwards The Company estimates that it has reportable federal NOLs as

of December 31 2009 of approximately $54.9 million available to reduce future federal taxable income

These estimated NOLs expire in 2011 through 2020 and are subject to examination and adjustment by

the IRS In addition the Companys utilization of such NOLs is subject to limitation under Section 382

which affects the timing of the use of these NOLs At this time the Company does not believe these

limitations will limit the Companys ability to use any federal NOLs before they expire Although the

Company has NOLs that may be available to offset future taxable income the Company may be subject

to Federal Alternative Minimum Tax

As of December 31 2009 the Companys valuation allowances against deferred tax assets were

$7.3 million mostly relating to uncertainties regarding the eventual realization of certain state NOLs
Determination of the amount of deferred tax assets considered realizable required significant judgment

and estimation Changes in these estimates in the future could materially affect the Companys financial

condition and results of operations

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2009 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB established the FASB

Accounting Standards Codification ASC as the source of authoritative accounting principles

recognized by the FASB to be applied in the preparation of financial statements in conformity with

generally accepted accounting principles GAAP This statement has been incorporated into

ASC 105 This guidance explicitly recognizes rules and interpretive releases of the SEC under federal

securities laws as authoritative GAAP for SEC registrants Such guidance is effective for financial

statements issued for interim and annual reporting periods ending after September 15 2009 the

quarter ending September 30 2009 for the Company and will not have an impact on the Companys
results of operations or financial condition but will change the referencing system for accounting

standards All public filings of the Company will now reference the ASC as the sole source of

authoritative literature

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 141R Business Combinations This statement

has been incorporated into ASC 805 Business Combinations ASC 805 This guidance requires the

acquiring entity in business combination to record all assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their

respective acquisition date fair values and changes other practices some of which could have material

impact on how the Company accounts for future business combinations This guidance also requires

additional disclosure of information surrounding business combination such that users of the entitys

financial statements can fully understand the nature and financial impact of the business combination

The Company adopted this guidance in the Companys year beginning January 2009 Prior to 2009

reversals of both valuation allowances and unrecognized tax benefits were in most instances recorded

as adjustments to goodwill As result of the adoption all such reversals except as discussed below

will now be recorded as reductions to income tax expense Accordingly the Companys income tax

expense for 2009 was reduced by $2.0 million related to those reversals occurring within the current

year Also as result of such adoption beginning in 2009 only those changes occurring during the

measurement period subsequent to an acquisition will be recorded to goodwill The adoption of this

guidance did not have material impact on the year ended December 31 2009 related to the

acquisition of First Health Services

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 160 Non-controlling Interests in Consolidated

Financial Statements This statement has been incorporated into ASC 810 Consolidation

ASC 810 This guidance requires entities to report non-controlling minority interests in

subsidiaries as equity in the consolidated financial statements The Company adopted this guidance in
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the Companys year beginning January 2009 The adoption of this guidance did not have material

impact on the consolidated financial statements

In April 2009 the FASB issued FASB Staff Position FSP SFAS 115-2 and SFAS 124-2

Recognition and Presentation of Other-Than-Temporary Impairments These statements have been

incorporated into ASC 320 Investments ASC 320 This guidance modifies the recognition

requirements for other-than-temporary impairments of debt securities and enhances existing disclosures

with respect to other-than-temporary impairments of debt and equity securities including the credit and

non-credit components of impaired debt securities expected to be sold Such guidance is effective for

interim and annual reporting periods ending after June 15 2009 the quarter ending June 30 2009 for

the Company The adoption of this guidance did not have material impact on the consolidated

financial statements

In April 2009 the FASB issued FSP No FAS 107-1 and Accounting Principles Board APB
Opinion No 28-1 Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments This guidance

amends SFAS No 107 Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments These statements have

been incorporated into ASC 825 Financial Instruments ASC 825 This guidance requires

disclosures in interim reporting periods and in financial statements for annual reporting periods

regarding the fair value of all financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate that value

whether recognized or not on the balance sheet and also amends prior guidance on interim financial

reporting to require entities to disclose the methods and significant assumptions used to estimate the

fair value of financial instruments and describe changes in methods and significant assumptions in both

interim and annual financial statements Such guidance is effective for interim reporting periods ending

after June 15 2009 the quarter ending June 30 2009 for the Company While the adoption of this

guidance impacted the Companys disclosures it did not have an impact on the Companys results of

operations or financial condition

In May 2009 the FASB issued SFAS No 165 Subsequent Events This statement has been

incorporated into ASC 855 Subsequent Events ASC 855 This guidance establishes general

standards of accounting for and disclosure of events that occur after the balance sheet date but before

financial statements are issued or are available to be issued and is effective for financial statements

issued for interim and annual reporting periods ending after June 15 2009 the quarter ending June 30
2009 for the Company Accordingly the Company evaluated subsequent events for recognition and

disclosure through the filing date of this Form 10-K The adoption of this guidance did not have an

impact on the Companys results of operations or financial condition

In June 2009 the FASB issued SFAS No 167 Amendments to FASB Interpretation No 46R
SFAS 167 SFAS 167 amends FASB Interpretation FIN No 46 revised December 2003
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities FIN 46R to require an analysis to determine whether

variable interest gives the entity controlling financial interest in variable interest entity This

statement requires an ongoing reassessment and eliminates the quantitative approach previously

required for determining whether an entity is the primary beneficiary This statement is effective for

fiscal years beginning after November 15 2009 Accordingly the Company will adopt SFAS 167 on

January 2010 The Company does not expect the adoption of this standard to have material impact

on the consolidated financial statements This statement has not yet been reflected in the ASC

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Changes in interest rates affect interest income earned on the Companys cash equivalents and

restricted cash and investments as well as interest expense on variable interest rate borrowings under

the 2009 Credit Facility Based on the Companys investment balances and the borrowing levels under

the 2009 Credit Facility as of December 31 2009 hypothetical 10 percent increase or decrease in the

interest rate associated with these instruments with all other variables held constant would not

materially affect the Companys future earnings and cash outflows
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Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Information with respect to this item is contained in the Companys consolidated financial

statements set forth elsewhere herein and financial statement schedule indicated in the Index on

Page F-i of this Report on Form 10-K and is included herein

Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Companys management evaluated with the participation of the Companys principal executive

and principal financial officers the effectiveness of the Companys disclosure controls and procedures

as defined in Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

the Exchange Act as of December 31 2009 Based on their evaluation management has

concluded that the Companys disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31

2009 Managements assessments of the effectiveness of the Companys disclosure controls and

procedures excludes the evaluation of the Companys internal controls over reporting of First Health

Services which was acquired by the Company on July 31 2009

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

In the fourth quarter ended December 31 2009 there have been no changes in the Companys
internal controls over financial reporting that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to

materially affect the Companys internal controls over financial reporting

MANAGEMENTS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Companys management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal

control over financial reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15f under the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 as amended The Companys internal control system was designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements Because of

its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the

risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate Under the supervision and with the

participation of management including the Companys Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial

Officer the Company assessed the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 2009 In making this assessment management used the criteria set forth by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO in its statement

Internal Control-Integrated Framework

Based on this assessment management has concluded that as of December 31 2009 internal

control over financial reporting is effective based on these criteria

Managements assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting excludes

the evaluation of the internal controls over reporting of First Health Services which was acquired by

the Company on July 31 2009 These operations represent percent
and 12 percent of total and net

assets of the Company respectively as of December 31 2009 and percent and percent of revenues

and Segment Profit respectively of the Company for the year
then ended

The Companys independent registered public accounting firm has issued an audit report on the

Companys internal control over financial reporting This report dated February 26 2010 appears on

page 63 of this Form 10-K
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Magellan Health Services Inc

We have audited Magellan Health Services Inc.s the Company internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2009 based on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission the
COSO criteria The Companys management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control

over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial

reporting included in Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based

on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained

in all material respects Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over

financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists testing and evaluating the design

and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk and performing such other

procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit provides

reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal

control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the

maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are

recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only

in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or

disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or

detect misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject

to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree

of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

As indicated in the accompanying Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial

Reporting managements assessment of and conclusion on the effectiveness of internal control over

financial reporting did not include the internal controls of First Health Services Corporation FHC Inc

and Provider Synergies LLC collectively First Health Services which are included in the 2009

consolidated financial statements of the Company and collectively constituted percent and 12 percent

of total and net assets respectively as of December 31 2009 and percent and percent of revenues

and segment profit respectively for the year then ended Our audit of internal control over financial

reporting of the Company did not include an evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting

of First Health Services

In our opinion the Company maintained in all material respects effective internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31 2009 based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States the consolidated balance sheets of Magellan Health Services Inc as

of December 31 2008 and 2009 and the related consolidated statements of income stockholders

equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2009 of Magellan

Health Services Inc and our report
dated February 26 2010 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

Is ERNST YOUNG LLP

Baltimore Maryland

February 26 2010
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Item 9B Other Information

None

PART III

The information required by Items 10 through 14 is incorporated by reference to the Registrants

definitive proxy statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 as amended within 120 days after December 31 2009 except for the following information

required by Item 12 of this Part III

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table sets forth certain information as of December 31 2009 with respect to the

Companys compensation plans under which equity securities are authorized for issuance

Number of securities

remaining available

for future issuance

Number of securities under equity

to be issued upon Weighted average compensation plans

exercise of exercise price of excluding securities

outstanding options outstanding options reflected in

Plan category warrants and rights warrants and rights columna

Equity compensation plans approved by

security holders 50659671 $38.08 25142552

Equity compensation plans not approved by

security holders
________ ______ ________

Total 50659671 $38.08 25142552

Excludes shares of restricted stock held by employees or awarded to employees and the Companys

directors Additionally excludes 119124 options issued to certain employees mainly related to

100000 options granted to employees that were previously employed by ICORE and 19124

options granted to employees previously employed by NIA

Consists of shares remaining available for issuance as of December 31 2009 under the Companys

equity compensation plans pursuant to which the Company may issue stock options restricted

stock awards stock bonuses stock purchase rights and other equity incentives after giving effect

to the shares issuable upon the exercise of outstanding options warrants and rights and the shares

of restricted stock issued as referred to in footnote above

For further discussion see Note 6Stockholders Equity to the consolidated financial statements

set forth elsewhere herein

PART 1Y

Item 15 Exhibits Financial Statement Schedule and Additional Information

Documents furnished as part of the Report

Financial Statements

Information with respect to this item is contained on Pages F-i to F-44 of this Report on

Form 10-K

Financial Statement Schedule

Information with respect to this item is contained on page S-i of this Report on Form 10-K
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Exhibits

Exhibit No Description of Exhibit

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated June 27 2006 among Magellan Health

Services Inc Green Spring Health Services Inc Magellan Sub Co II Inc and Icore

Healthcare LLC which was filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the Companys Quarterly report on

Form 10-0 for the quarterly period ended June 30 2006 which was filed on July 28 2006
and is incorporated herein by reference

2.2 Purchase Agreement dated June 2009 by and among Coventry Health Care Inc

Coventry Management Services Inc First Health Group Corp and Magellan Health

Services Inc which was filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the Companys Quarterly Report on

Form 10-0 for the quarterly period ended June 30 2009 which was filed on July 31 2009

and is incorporated herein by reference

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company which was filed as

Exhibit 3.2 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended

December 31 2004 which was filed on March 30 2004 and is incorporated herein by

reference

3.2 Bylaws of the Company which were filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Companys current report on

Form 8-K which was filed on November 2004 and is incorporated herein by reference

3.3 Amendments to Sections and of Article IV of the Companys Bylaws adopted

February 25 2008 which were filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Companys current report on

Form 8-K which was filed on February 25 2008 and is incorporated herein by reference

3.4 Bylaws of the company which were filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Companys Quarterly Report

on Form 10-0 for the quarterly period ended March 31 2008 which was filed on May
2008 and is incorporated herein by reference

4.1 Credit Agreement dated January 2004 among the Company various lenders listed

therein and Deutsche Bank AG New York Branch as administrative agent which was filed

as Exhibit 2.2 to the Companys current report on Form 8-K which was filed January

2004 and is incorporated herein by reference

4.2 Indenture dated as of January 2004 between the Company and HSBC Bank USA as

trustee relating to the 9/8% Series Senior Notes due 2008 and the 9/s% Series Senior

Notes due 2008 of the Company which was filed as Exhibit 2.3 to the Companys current

report on Form 8-K which was filed January 2004 and is incorporated herein by

reference

4.3 Warrant Agreement dated as of January 2004 between the Company and Wachovia

Bank National Association as Warrant Agent which was filed as Exhibit 2.5 to the

Companys current report on Form 8-K which was filed January 2004 and is

incorporated herein by reference

4.4 Amendment No to the Warrant Agreement dated as of January 2004 between the

Company and Wachovia Bank National Association as Warrant Agent which was filed as

Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys current report on Form 8-K which was filed January

2004 and is incorporated herein by reference

4.5 Amended and Restated Warrant Agreement dated as of January 2004 between the

Company and Wachovia Bank National Association as Warrant Agent which was filed as

Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys current report on Form 8-K which was filed January

2004 and is incorporated herein by reference
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Exhibit No Description of Exhibit

4.6 Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of October 22 2004 which was filed as

Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period

ended September 30 2004 which was filed on October 29 2004 and is incorporated herein

by reference

4.7 Credit Agreement dated April 30 2008 among the Company various lenders listed therein

and Deutsche Bank AG as administrative agent which was filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the

Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 for the quarterly period ended March 31 2008

which was filed on May 2008 and is incorporated herein by reference

4.8 Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of April 29 2009 among Magellan

Health Services Inc various lenders and Deutsche Bank AG New York Branch as

administrative agent which was filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Companys Quarterly Report on

Form 10-0 for the quarterly period ended March 31 2009 which was filed on April 30

2009 and is incorporated
herein by reference

10.1 Employment Agreement dated January 2004 between the Company and Steven

Shulman Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company which was filed as

Exhibit 2.11 to the Companys current report on Form 8-K/A which was filed January

2004 and is incorporated herein by reference

10.2 Amendment to the January 2004 Employment Agreement between the Company and

Steven Shulman Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company dated as of

January 2006 which was filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Companys current report on

Form 8-K which was filed on January 2006 and is incorporated herein by reference

10.3 Employment Agreement dated January 2004 between the Company and RenØ Lerer

M.D President and Chief Operating Officer of the Company which was filed as

Exhibit 2.12 to the Companys current report on Form 8-K/A which was filed January

2004 and is incorporated herein by reference

10.4 Amendment to the January 2004 Employment Agreement between the Company and

Rene Lerer M.D President and Chief Operating Officer of the Company dated as of

January 2006 which was filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the Companys current report on

Form 8-K which was filed on January 2006 and is incorporated herein by reference

10.5 Employment Agreement dated January 2004 between the Company and Mark

Demilio Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company which was

filed as Exhibit 2.13 to the Companys current report on Form 8-K/A which was filed

January 2004 and is incorporated herein by reference

10.6 Amendment to the January 2004 Employment Agreement between the Company and

Mark Demilio Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company
dated as of January 2006 which was filed as Exhibit 10.7 to the Companys current

report on Form 8-K which was filed on January 2006 and is incorporated herein by

reference

10.7 Employment Agreement dated January 17 2005 between the Company and Daniel

Gregoire Executive Vice President General Counsel and Secretary of the Company which

was filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the Companys current report on Form 8-K which was filed on

January 18 2005 and is incorporated herein by reference

10.8 Employment Agreement dated December 17 2003 between the Company and Eric

Reimer Chief Growth Officer which was filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the Companys current

report on Form 8-K which was filed on June 30 2005 and is incorporated herein by

reference
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Exhibit No Description of Exhibit

10.9 Amendment to Employment Agreement dated December 17 2003 between the Company
and Eric Reimer Chief Growth Officer which was filed as Exhibit 99.2 to the Companys
current report on Form 8-K which was filed on June 30 2005 and is incorporated herein

by reference

10.10 Letter Agreement dated June 22 2005 between the Company and Eric Reimer Chief

Growth Officer which was filed as Exhibit 99.3 to the Companys current report on

Form 8-K which was filed on June 30 2005 and is incorporated herein by reference

10.11 Magellan Health Services Inc.2003 Management Incentive Plan effective as of January

2004 which was filed as Exhibit 2.14 to the Companys current report on Form 8-K which

was filed January 2004 and is incorporated herein by reference

10.12 Magellan Health Services Inc.2005 Director Stock Compensation Plan effective as of

March 2005 which was filed as Appendix to the Companys definitive proxy statement

filed on April 18 2005 and is incorporated herein by reference

10.13 Form of Stock Option Agreement relating to options granted under the Companys 2003

Management Incentive Plan which was filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys current

report on Form 8-K which was filed on March 17 2005 and is incorporated herein by

reference

10.14 Form of First Amendment to Stock Option Agreement relating to options granted under

the Companys 2003 Management Incentive Plan which was filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the

Companys current report on Form 8-K which was filed on January 2006 and is

incorporated herein by reference

10.15 Form of Notice of March 2005 Stock Option Grant relating to options granted under the

Companys 2003 Management Incentive Plan which was filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the

Companys current report on Form 8-K which was filed on March 17 2005 and is

incorporated herein by reference

10.16 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement relating to restricted shares granted under the

Companys 2003 Management Incentive Plan which was filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the

Companys current report on Form 8-K which was filed on March 17 2005 and is

incorporated herein by reference

10.17 Form of Notice of March 2005 Restricted Stock Award relating to restricted shares granted

under the Companys 2003 Management Incentive Plan which was filed as Exhibit 10.4 to

the Companys current report on Form 8-K which was filed on March 17 2005 and is

incorporated herein by reference

10.18 First form of Notice of Stock Option Grant relating to options granted under the

Companys 2003 Management Incentive Plan and dated as of January 2004 between the

Company and Steven Shulman Chief Executive Officer of the Company Rene Lerer

Chief Operating Officer of the Company and Mark Demilio Chief Financial Officer of

the Company which was filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Companys current report on

Form 8-K which was filed on March 17 2005 and is incorporated herein by reference

10.19 First form of Notice of Amendment of Stock Option Grant relating to options granted

under the Companys 2003 Management Incentive Plan and dated as of January 2006
between the Company and Steven Shulman Chief Executive Officer of the Company
Rene Lerer Chief Operating Officer of the Company and Mark Demilio Chief

Financial Officer of the Company which was filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys current

report on Form 8-K which was filed on January 2006 and is incorporated herein by

reference
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10.20 Second form of Notice of Stock Option Grant relating to options granted under the

Companys 2003 Management Incentive Plan and dated as of January 2004 between the

Company and Steven Shulman Chief Executive Officer of the Company Rene Lerer

Chief Operating Officer of the Company and Mark Demilio Chief Financial Officer of

the Company which was filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the Companys current report on

Form 8-K which was filed on March 17 2005 and is incorporated herein by reference

10.21 Second form of Notice of Amendment of Stock Option Grant relating to options granted

under the Companys 2003 Management Incentive Plan and dated as of January 2006

between the Company and Steven Shulman Chief Executive Officer of the Company
Rene Lerer Chief Operating Officer of the Company and Mark Demilio Chief

Financial Officer of the Company which was filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys current

report on Form 8-K which was filed on January 2006 and is incorporated herein by

reference

10.22 Third form of Notice of Stock Option Grant relating to options granted under the

Companys 2003 Management Incentive Plan and dated as of January 2004 between the

Company and Steven Shulman Chief Executive Officer of the Company Rene Lerer

Chief Operating Officer of the Company and Mark Demilio Chief Financial Officer of

the Company which was filed as Exhibit 10.7 to the Companys current report on

Form 8-K which was filed on March 17 2005 and is incorporated herein by reference

10.23 Third form of Notice of Amendment of Stock Option Grant relating to options granted

under the Companys 2003 Management Incentive Plan and dated as of January 2006

between the Company and Steven Shulman Chief Executive Officer of the Company
Rene Lerer Chief Operating Officer of the Company and Mark Demilio Chief

Financial Officer of the Company which was filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Companys current

report on Form 8-K which was filed on January 2006 and is incorporated herein by

reference

10.24 Form of Notice of Restricted Stock Award relating to restricted shares granted under the

Companys 2003 Management Incentive Plan and dated as of January 2004 between the

Company and Steven Shulman Chief Executive Officer of the Company Rene Lerer

Chief Operating Officer of the Company and Mark Demilio Chief Financial Officer of

the Company which was filed as Exhibit 10.8 to the Companys current report on

Form 8-K which was filed on March 17 2005 and is incorporated herein by reference

10.25 Notice of Restricted Stock Award relating to restricted shares granted under the

Companys 2003 Management Incentive Plan and dated as of January 2004 between the

Company and Steven Shulman Chief Executive Officer of the Company which was filed

as Exhibit 10.9 to the Companys current report on Form 8-K which was filed on

March 17 2005 and is incorporated herein by reference

10.26 Supplemental Accumulation Plan adopted in 2002 which was filed as Exhibit 10.10 to the

Companys current report on Form 8-K which was filed on March 17 2005 and is

incorporated herein by reference

10.27 Form of Stock Option Agreement relating to the 2006 Management Incentive Plan which

was filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys current report on Form 8-K which was filed on

May 22 2006 and is incorporated herein by reference

10.28 Form of Notice of Stock Option Grant pursuant to the 2006 Management Incentive Plan

which was filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys current report on Form 8-K which was

filed on May 22 2006 and is incorporated herein by reference

10.29 Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement pursuant to the 2006 Management Incentive

Plan which was filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys current report on Form 8-K which

was filed on May 22 2006 and is incorporated herein by reference
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10.30 Form of Notice of Restricted Stock Unit Award pursuant to the 2006 Management
Incentive Plan which was filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Companys current report on

Form 8-K which was filed on May 22 2006 and is incorporated herein by reference

10.31 Form of Restricted Stock and Stock Option Award Agreement pursuant to the 2006

Director Equity Compensation Plan which was filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Companys

current report on Form 8-K which was filed on May 22 2006 and is incorporated herein

by reference

10.32 Magellan Health Services Inc.2006 Management Incentive Plan effective as of May 16

2006 which was filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Quarterly report on Form 10-0 for

the quarterly period ended June 30 2006 which was filed on July 28 2006 and is

incorporated herein by reference

10.33 Magellan Health Services Inc.2006 Director Equity Compensation Plan effective as of

May 16 2006 which was filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Quarterly report on

Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30 2006 which was filed on July 28 2006
and is incorporated herein by reference

10.34 Magellan Health Services Inc.2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan effective as of

May 16 2006 which was filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Quarterly report on

Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30 2006 which was filed on July 28 2006

and is incorporated herein by reference

10.35 Amended and Restated Supplemental Accumulation Plan effective as of January 2005
which was filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Quarterly report on Form 10-0 for the

quarter ended September 30 2006 which was filed on October 26 2006 and is

incorporated herein by reference

10.36 Amendment to Employment Agreement dated July 28 2006 between the Company and

Jeffrey West Senior Vice President and Controller of the Company which was filed as

Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Quarterly report on Form 10-0 for the quarter ended

September 30 2006 which was filed on October 26 2006 and is incorporated herein by

reference

10.37 Amendment to Employment Agreement dated July 28 2006 between the Company and

Eric Reimer Chief Growth Officer of the Company which was filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the

Companys Quarterly report on Form 10-0 for the quarter ended September 30 2006
which was filed on October 26 2006 and is incorporated herein by reference

10.38 Amendment to Employment Agreement dated July 28 2006 between the Company and

Daniel Gregoire Executive Vice President General Counsel and Secretary of the

Company which was filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Companys Quarterly report on Form 10-0

for the quarter ended September 30 2006 which was filed on October 26 2006 and is

incorporated herein by reference

10.39 Employment Agreement dated August 2004 between the Company and Caskie

Lewis-Clapper Chief Human Resources Officer which was filed as Exhibit 10.39 to the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K which was filed on February 29 2008 and is

incorporated herein by reference

10.40 Amendment to Employment Agreement dated July 28 2006 between the Company and

Caskie Lewis-Clapper Chief Human Resources Officer which was filed as Exhibit 10.40

to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K which was filed on February 29 2008 and

is incorporated herein by reference

10.41 Employment Agreement dated February 19 2008 between the Company and Rene Lerer

M.D which was filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys current report on Form 8-K which

was filed on February 25 2008 and is incorporated herein by reference

69



Exhibit No Description of Exhibit

10.42 Transition Agreement dated February 19 2008 between the Company and Steven

Shulman which was filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys current report on Form 8-K
which was filed on February 25 2008 and is incorporated herein by reference

10.43 Employment Agreement dated June 27 2006 between the Company and Raju Mantena

which was filed as Exhibit 10.43 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K which was

filed on February 29 2008 and is incorporated herein by reference

10.44 Employment Agreement dated October 2003 between the Company and Russell

Petrella which was filed as Exhibit 10.44 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K
which was filed on February 29 2008 and is incorporated herein by reference

10.45 Amendment to Employment Agreement Tier II dated July 28 2006 between the

Company and Russell Petrella which was filed as Exhibit 10.45 to the Companys Annual

Report on Form 10-K which was filed on February 29 2008 and is incorporated herein by

reference

10.46 Employment Agreement dated February 25 2008 between the Company and Tina Blasi

which was filed as Exhibit 10.46 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K which was

filed on February 29 2008 and is incorporated herein by reference

10.47 Amendment to Employment Agreement dated February 25 2008 between the Company
and Tina Blasi which was filed as Exhibit 10.47 to the Companys Annual Report on

Form 10-K which was filed on February 29 2008 and is incorporated herein by reference

10.48 Form of Stock Option Agreement relating to options granted under the Companys 2008

Management Incentive Plan which was filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys current

report on Form 8-K which was filed on May 27 2008 and is incorporated herein by

reference

10.49 Form of Notice of March 2008 Stock Option Grant relating to options granted under the

Companys 2008 Management Incentive Plan which was filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the

Companys current report on Form 8-K which was filed on May 27 2008 and is

incorporated herein by reference

10.50 Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement relating to restricted stock units granted under

the Companys 2008 Management Incentive Plan which was filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the

Companys current report on Form 8-K which was filed on May 27 2008 and is

incorporated herein by reference

10.51 Form of Notice of Restricted Stock Unit Award relating to restricted stock units granted

under the Companys 2008 Management Incentive Plan which was filed as Exhibit 10.4 to

the Companys current report on Form 8-K which was filed on May 27 2008 and is

incorporated herein by reference

10.52 Employment Agreement dated August 11 2008 between the Company and Jonathan

Rubin Chief Financial Officer which was filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys current

report on Form 8-K which was filed on August 13 2008 and is incorporated herein by

reference

10.53 Amendment to Employment Agreement dated August 11 2008 between the Company and

Jonathan Rubin Chief Financial Officer which was filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys
current report on Form 8-K which was filed on August 13 2008 and is incorporated herein

by reference

70



Exhibit No Description of Exhibit

10.54 Amendment to Employment Agreement dated May 2008 between the Company and

Mark Demilio Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer which was filed as

Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period

ended March 31 2008 which was filed on May 2008 and is incorporated herein by

reference

10.55 Magellan Health Services Inc.2008 Management Incentive Plan effective as of

February 27 2008 which was filed as Appendix to the Companys Definitive Proxy

Statement which was filed on April 11 2008 and is incorporated herein by reference

10.56 Amendment to Employment Agreement dated December 2008 between the Company
and Jeffrey West Senior Vice President and Controller which was filed as Exhibit 10.56 to

the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K which was filed on February 29 2008 and is

incorporated herein by reference

10.57 Amendment to Employment Agreement dated December 2008 between the Company

and Tina Blasi Chief Executive Officer of NIA which was filed as Exhibit 10.57 to the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K which was filed on February 29 2008 and is

incorporated herein by reference

10.58 Amendment to Employment Agreement dated December 2008 between the Company
and Daniel Gregoire Executive Vice President General Counsel and Secretary which

was filed as Exhibit 10.58 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K which was filed

on February 29 2008 and is incorporated herein by reference

10.59 Amendment to Employment Agreement dated December 2008 between the Company
and Caskie Lewis-Clapper Chief Human Resources Officer which was filed as

Exhibit 10.59 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K which was filed on

February 29 2008 and is incorporated herein by reference

10.60 Amendment to Employment Agreement dated December 2008 between the Company

and Raju Mantena which was filed as Exhibit 10.60 to the Companys Annual Report on

Form 10-K which was filed on February 29 2008 and is incorporated herein by reference

10.61 Amendment to Agreements and Documents Governing Restricted Stock Units dated

December 2008 between the Company and Caskie Lewis-Clapper Chief Human

Resources Officer which was filed as Exhibit 10.61 to the Companys Annual Report on

Form 10-K which was filed on February 29 2008 and is incorporated herein by reference

10.62 Amendment to Agreements and Documents Governing Restricted Stock Units dated

December 2008 between the Company and Tina Blasi Chief Executive Officer of NIA

which was filed as Exhibit 10.62 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K which was

filed on February 29 2008 and is incorporated herein by reference

10.63 Amendment to Agreements and Documents Governing Restricted Stock Units dated

December 2008 between the Company and Jeffrey West Senior Vice President and

Controller which was filed as Exhibit 10.63 to the Companys Annual Report on

Form 10-K which was filed on February 29 2008 and is incorporated herein by reference

10.64 Amendment to Agreements and Documents Governing Restricted Stock Units dated

December 2008 between the Company and Daniel Gregoire Executive Vice

President General Counsel and Secretary which was filed as Exhibit 10.64 to the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K which was filed on February 29 2008 and is

incorporated herein by reference

10.65 Amendment to Employment Agreement as amended and restated December 16 2008

between the Company and Rene Lerer M.D Chief Executive Officer which was filed as

Exhibit 10.65 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K which was filed on

February 29 2008 and is incorporated herein by reference
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10.66 Amendment to Agreements and Documents Governing Restricted Stock Units dated

December 2008 between the Company and Rene Lerer Chief Executive Officer which

was filed as Exhibit 10.66 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K which was filed

on February 29 2008 and is incorporated herein by reference

10.67 Form of Stock Option Agreement relating to options granted under the Companys 2008

Management Incentive Plan which was filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys current

report on Form 8-K which was filed on May 2009 and is incorporated herein by

reference

10.68 Form of Notice of March 2008 Stock Option Grant relating to options granted under the

Companys 2008 Management Incentive Plan which was filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the

Companys current report on Form 8-K which was filed on May 2009 and is

incorporated herein by reference

10.69 Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement relating to restricted stock units granted under

the Companys 2008 Management Incentive Plan which was filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the

Companys current report on Form 8-K which was filed on May 2009 and is

incorporated herein by reference

10.70 Form of Notice of Restricted Stock Unit Award relating to restricted stock units granted

under the Companys 2008 Management Incentive Plan which was filed as Exhibit 10.4 to

the Companys current report on Form 8-K which was filed on May 2009 and is

incorporated herein by reference

10.71 Employment Agreement dated July 28 2009 between Karen Rohan and Magellan

Health Services Inc which was filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30 2009 which was filed on July 31 2009

and is incorporated herein by reference

10.72 Amendment to Employment Agreement dated July 28 2009 between Magellan Health

Services Inc and Karen Rohan which was filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30 2009 which was

filed on July 31 2009 and is incorporated herein by reference

21 List of subsidiaries of the Company

23 Consent of Ernst Young LLP

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Odey Act

of 2002

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

of 2002

t32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

of 2002

t32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

of 2002

Constitutes management contract compensatory plan or arrangement

Filed herewith

Furnished herewith

Exhibits Required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K

Exhibits required to be filed by the Company pursuant to Item 601 of Regulation S-K are

contained in
separate volume
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Financial statements and schedules required by Regulation S-X Item 14d

Not applicable

Not applicable

Information with respect to this item is contained on page s-i of this Report on

Form 10-K

Additional Information

The Company will provide to any person without charge upon request copy of its annual Report

on Form 10-K without exhibits for the year ended December 31 2009 as filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission The Company will also provide to any person without charge upon request

copies of its Code of Ethics for Directors Code of Ethics for Covered Officers and Corporate

Compliance Handbook for all employees hereinafter referred to as the Codes of Ethics Any such

requests should be made in writing to the Investor Relations Department Magellan Health

Services Inc 55 Nod Road Avon Connecticut 06001 The documents referred to above and other

Securities and Exchange Commission filings of the Company are available on the Companys website at

wwwmagellanhealth.com The Company intends to disclose any future amendments to the provisions of

the Codes of Ethics and waivers from such Codes of Ethics if any made with respect to any of its

directors and executive officers on its internet site
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the

Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly

authorized

MAGELL HEALTH SERVICES INC

Registrant

Date February 26 2010 Is JONATHAN RuBIN

Jonathan Rubin

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial Officer

Date February 26 2010 Is JEFFREY WEsT

Jeffrey West

Senior Vice President and Controller

Principal Accounting Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the following persons on

behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated have signed this Report below

Signature Title Date

Is RENE LERER Chief Executive Officer and Chairman

of the Board of Directors February 26 2010
Rene Lerer

Principal Executive Officer

Is EIN BR0SHY
Director February 26 2010

Eran Broshy

Is MICHAEL DIAMENT
Director February 26 2010

Michael Diament

Is WILLIAM FoRREsT
Director February 26 2010

William Forrest

Is NANCY JoHNsoN
Director February 26 2010

Nancy Johnson

Is ROBERT LE BLANC
Director February 26 2010

Robert Le Blanc
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Title DateSignature

Is WILliAM MCBRIDE
Director February 26 2010

William McBride

Is MICHAEL RESSNER
Director February 26 2010

Michael Ressner

Executive Vice President and Chief
/s JoNATHAN RuBIN

Financial Officer February 26 2010

Jonathan Rubin
Principal Financial Officer

/s JEFFREY WEsT Senior Vice President and Controller

February 26 2010

Jeffrey West Principal Accounting Officer
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Magellan Health Services Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Magellan Health Services Inc

and subsidiaries the Company as of December 31 2008 and 2009 and the related consolidated

statements of income stockholders equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period

ended December 31 2009 Our audits also included the financial statement schedule of the Company
for the years ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009 as listed in the Index at Item 15a2 These

financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to

express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An
audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used ançl significant

estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We
believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above
present fairly in all material respects

the consolidated financial position of the Company at December 31 2008 and 2009 and the

consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three
years

in the period ended

December 31 2009 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

As discussed in Note to the consolidated financial statements in 2009 the Company adopted

ASC 805Business Combinations previously referred to as Statement of Financial Accounting

Standard No 141R Business Combinations

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 2009 based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by

the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated

February 26 2010 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

Is ERNST YOUNG LLP

Baltimore Maryland

February 26 2010
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MAGELLAN HEALTH SERVICES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AS OF DECEMBER 31

In thousands except per share amounts

2008 2009

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 211825 196507

Restricted cash 192395 159659

Accounts receivable less allowance for doubtful accounts of $1915 and $1358 at

December 31 2008 and 2009 respectively 82076 114434

Short-term investments restricted investments of $116112 and $102922 at

December 31 2008 and 2009 respectively 225372 162922

Deferred income taxes 58092 57329

Other current assets restricted deposits of $17769 and $15467 at December 31 2008

and 2009 respectively 52660 62737

Total Current Assets 822420 753588

Property and equipment net 88436 108219

Long-term investments restricted investments of $8527 and $60230 at December 31

2008 and 2009 respectively 8527 67523

Deferred income taxes 76769 17725

Other long-term assets 3472 2703

Goodwill 367325 426471

Other intangible assets net 50615 64812

Total Assets $1417564 $1441041

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable 21527 27086

Accrued liabilities 96541 93760

Medical claims payable 155860 143669

Other medical liabilities 99953 104649

Total Current Liabilities 373881 369164

Tax contingencies 132588 118859

Deferred credits and other long-term liabilities 3022 2526

Total Liabilities 509491 490549

Preferred stock par value $.01 per share

Authorized10000 sharesIssued and outstandingnone

Ordinary common stock par value $.01 per share

Authorized100000 shares at December 31 2008 and 2009Issued and

outstanding40873 shares and 37006 shares at December 31 2008 respectively

and 41044 shares and 34535 shares at December 31 2009 respectively
409 410

Multi-Vote common stock par value $.01 per share

Authorized40000 sharesIssued and outstandingnone

Other Stockholders Equity

Additional paid-in capital 589011 614483

Retained earnings 449252 555923

Warrants outstanding 5382 5382

Accumulated other comprehensive income 172 114

Ordinary common stock in treasury at cost 3867 shares and 6509 shares at

December 31 2008 and 2009 respectively 136153 225820

Total Stockholders Equity 908073 950492

Total Liabilities and Stockholders Equity $1417564 $1441041

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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MAGELLAN HEALTH SERVICES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31

In thousands except per share amounts

2007 2008 2009

Net revenue $2155953 $2625394 $2641814

Cost and expenses

Cost of care 1409103 1830542 1765313
Cost of goods sold 149585 181356 203336
Direct service costs and other operating expenses1 404003 426627 465710

Depreciation and amortization 57524 60810 47268
Interest expense 6386 2846 2424
Interest income 23836 17030 6245

2002765 2485151 2477806

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 153188 140243 164008

Provision for income taxes 59030 54038 57337

Net income 94158 86205 106671

Other comprehensive income loss2 31 147 58

Comprehensive income 94189 86352 106613

Weighted average number of common shares outstandingbasic

See Note 38942 39607 35248

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding
diluted See Note 39837 39999 35416

Net income per common sharebasic 2.42 2.18 3.03

Net income per common sharediluted 2.36 2.16 3.01

Includes stock compensation expense of $29994 $32763 and $19782 for the years ended

December 31 2007 2008 and 2009 respectively

Net of income tax provision benefit of $21 $94 and $37 for the years ended December 31

2007 2008 and 2009 respectively

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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MAGELLAN HEALTH SERVICES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

In thousands

Common
St

Accumulated
OC

Additional Other Total

ommon oc easur3 Paid in Retained Warrants Comprehensive Stockholders

Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Earnings Outstanding Loss Income Equity

Balance at

December 31 2006 37792 $378 $476645 $281166 5384 763567

Stock compensation

expense 29994 29994

Exercise of stock

options 2327 24 32379 32403

Tax benefit from

exercise of stock

options and vesting

of stock awards 570 570

Issuance of equity 38 214 214

Adoption of FIN 48 12277 12277

Net income 94158 94158

Other comprehensive
incomeother 31 31

Balance at

December 31 2007 40157 402 539374 363047 5384 25 908232

Stock compensation

expense 32763 32763

Exercise of stock

options 591 12883 12890

Tax benefit from

exercise of stock

options and vesting

of stock awards 5378 5378

Exercise of stock

warrants

Issuance of equity 125 1395 1395

Repurchase of stock 3867 136153 136153

Net income 86205 86205

Other comprehensive

income-other 147 147

Balance at

December 31 2008 40873 409 3867 136153 589011 449252 5382 172 908073

Stock compensation

expense 19782 19782

Exercise of stock

options 77 2578 2579

Tax benefit from

exercise of stock

options and vesting

of stock awards 2917 2917

Exercise of stock

warrants

Issuance of equity 94 194 194

Repurchase of stock 2642 89667 89667

Net income 106671 106671

Other comprehensive

lossother 58 58

Balance at

December 31 2009 41044 $410 6509 $225820 $614483 $555923 5382 $114 950492

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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MAGELLAN HEALTH SERVICES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31

In thousands

2007 2008 2009

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income 94158 86205 $106671

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by

operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 57524 60810 47268
Non-cash interest expense 2681 1423 899

Non-cash stock compensation expense 29994 32763 19782
Non-cash income tax expense 38677 42241 30033
Cash flows from changes in assets and liabilities net of effects

from acquisitions of businesses

Restricted cash 111731 60368 32736
Accounts receivable net 2707 15720 3328
Other assets 5233 9290 8936
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 15056 11519 2908
Medical claims payable and other medical liabilities 69824 426 7495
Other 906 1589 3851

Net cash provided by operating activities 194563 268304 218573

Cash flows from investing activities

Capital expenditures 47553 36314 33220
Acquisitions and investments in businesses net of cash acquired 17790 25425 115438
Purchase of investments 133643 404420 299357
Maturity of investments 134367 228392 298556

Net cash used in investing activities 64619 237767 149459

Cash flows from financing activities

Payments on long-term debt and capital lease obligations 27855 13981
Payments to acquire treasury stock 136153 89667
Proceeds from exercise of stock options and warrants 32403 12896 2580
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options and vesting of stock

awards 14357 7549 2917
Other 214 1395 259
Net cash provided by used in financing activities 18691 131084 84432
Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 148635 100547 15318
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 163737 312372 211825

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 312372 211825 $196507

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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MAGELLAN HEALTH SERVICES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31 2009

General

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of Magellan Health Services Inc Delaware corporation

Magellan include the accounts of Magellan its majority owned subsidiaries and all variable interest

entities VIEs for which Magellan is the primary beneficiary together with Magellan the

Company All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in

consolidation

Business Overview

The Company is engaged in the specialty managed healthcare business Through 2005 the

Company predominantly operated in the managed behavioral healthcare business During 2006 the

Company expanded into radiology benefits management and specialty pharmaceutical management as

result of certain acquisitions The Company recently expanded into Medicaid administration as result

of its July 31 2009 acquisition of certain equity interests and assets from Coventry Health Care Inc

Coventry as discussed in Note 3Acquisition of First Health Services The Company provides

services to health plans insurance companies employers labor unions and various governmental

agencies The Companys business is divided into the following six segments based on the services it

provides and/or the customers that it serves as described below

Managed Behavioral Healthcare

Two of the Companys segments are in the managed behavioral healthcare business This line of

business generally reflects the Companys coordination and management of the delivery of behavioral

healthcare treatment services that are provided through its contracted network of third-party treatment

providers which includes psychiatrists psychologists other behavioral health professionals psychiatric

hospitals general medical facilities with psychiatric beds residential treatment centers and other

treatment facilities The treatment services provided through the Companys provider network include

outpatient programs such as counseling or therapy intermediate care programs such as intensive

outpatient programs and partial hospitalization services inpatient treatment and crisis intervention

services The Company generally does not directly provide or own any provider of treatment services

except as related to the Companys contract to provide managed behavioral healthcare services to

Medicaid recipients and other beneficiaries of the Maricopa County Regional Behavioral Health

Authority the Maricopa Contract Under the Maricopa Contract effective August 31 2007 the

Company was required to assume the operations of twenty-four behavioral health direct care facilities

for transitional period and to divest itself of these facilities over two year period During March

2009 the Company began the operation of two additional behavioral health direct care facilities In

2008 and 2009 the Company entered into agreements to transition all behavioral health direct care

facilities over various dates All of the direct care facilities have been transitioned as of December 31

2009

The Company provides its management services primarily through risk-based products where

the Company assumes all or substantial portion of the responsibility for the cost of providing

treatment services in exchange for fixed per member per month fee ii administrative services only

ASO products where the Company provides services such as utilization review claims

administration and/or provider network management but does not assume responsibility for the cost of
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the treatment services and iii employee assistance programs EAPs where the Company provides

short-term outpatient behavioral counseling services

The managed behavioral healthcare business is managed based on the services provided and/or the

customers served through the following two segments

Commercial The Managed Behavioral Healthcare Commercial segment Commercial
generally reflects managed behavioral healthcare services and EAP services provided under contracts

with health plans and insurance companies for some or all of their commercial Medicaid and Medicare

members as well as with employers including corporations and governmental agencies and labor

unions Commercials contracts encompass risk-based ASO and EAP arrangements

Public Secto The Managed Behavioral Healthcare Public Sector segment Public Sector
generally reflects services provided to Medicaid recipients under contracts with state and local

governmental agencies Public Sector contracts encompass either risk-based or ASO arrangements

Radiology Benefits Management

The Radiology Benefits Management segment Radiology Benefits Management generally

reflects the management of the delivery of diagnostic imaging services to ensure that such services are

clinically appropriate and cost effective The Companys radiology benefits management services

currently are provided under contracts with health plans and insurance companies for some or all of

their commercial Medicaid and Medicare members The Company also contracts with state and local

governmental agencies for the provision of such services to Medicaid
recipients The Company offers its

radiology benefits management services through ASO contracts where the Company provides services

such as utilization review and claims administration but does not assume responsibility for the cost of

the imaging services and through risk-based contracts where the Company assumes all or substantial

portion of the
responsibility for the cost of providing diagnostic imaging services

Specialty Pharmaceutical Management

The Specialty Pharmaceutical Management segment Specialty Pharmaceutical Management
generally reflects the management of specialty drugs used in the treatment of cancer multiple sclerosis

hemophilia infertility rheumatoid arthritis chronic forms of hepatitis and other diseases Specialty

pharmaceutical drugs represent high-cost injectible infused oral or inhaled drugs often with sensitive

handling or storage needs Patients receiving these drugs require greater amounts of clinical and

financial support than those taking more traditional agents The Companys specialty pharmaceutical

management services are provided under contracts with health plans insurance companies and

governmental agencies for some or all of their commercial Medicare and Medicaid members The

Companys specialty pharmaceutical services include
contracting and formulary optimization on

behalf of health plans and pharmaceutical manufacturers ii dispensing specialty pharmaceutical drugs

on behalf of health plans iii providing strategic consulting services to health plans and

pharmaceutical manufacturers and iv providing oncology management services to health plans and

state Medicaid programs

F-8



MAGELLAN HEALTH SERVICES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

December 31 2009

General Continued

Medicaid Administration

The Medicaid Administration segment Medicaid Administration generally reflects integrated

clinical management services provided to the public sector to manage Medicaid pharmacy mental

health and long-term care programs The Companys Medicaid Administration services include the

management of pharmacy benefits administration PBA medical management information services

and fiscal agent services FAS and health care management services HCM Medicaid

Administration management services are provided under contracts with states to Medicaid and other

state sponsored program recipients Medicaid Administrations contracts encompass Fee-For-Service

FFS arrangements

Corporate and Other

This segment of the Company is comprised primarily of operational support functions such as sales

and marketing and information technology as well as corporate support functions such as executive

finance human resources and legal

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2009 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB established the FASB

Accounting Standards Codification ASC as the source of authoritative accounting principles

recognized by the FASB to be applied in the preparation
of financial statements in conformity with

generally accepted accounting principles GAAP This statement has been incorporated into

ASC 105 This guidance explicitly recognizes rules and interpretive releases of the Securities and

Exchange Commission SEC under federal securities laws as authoritative GAAP for SEC

registrants Such guidance is effective for financial statements issued for interim and annual reporting

periods ending after September 15 2009 the quarter ending September 30 2009 for the Company

and will not have an impact on the Companys results of operations or financial condition but will

change the referencing system
for accounting standards All public filings of the Company will now

reference the ASC as the sole source of authoritative literature

In December 2007 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS
No 141R Business Combinations This statement has been incorporated into ASC 805 Business

Combinations ASC 805 This guidance requires the acquiring entity in business combination to

record all assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their respective acquisition-date fair values and

changes other practices some of which could have material impact on how the Company accounts for

future business combinations This guidance also requires additional disclosure of information

surrounding business combination such that users of the entitys financial statements can fully

understand the nature and financial impact of the business combination The Company adopted this

guidance in the Companys year beginning January 2009 Prior to 2009 reversals of both valuation

allowances and unrecognized tax benefits were in most instances recorded as adjustments to goodwill

As result of the adoption all such reversals except as discussed below will now be recorded as

reductions to income tax expense Accordingly the Companys income tax expense for 2009 was

reduced by $2.0 million related to those reversals occurring within the current year Also as result of

such adoption beginning in 2009 only those changes occurring during the measurement period
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subsequent to an acquisition will be recorded to goodwill The adoption of this guidance did not have

material impact on the
year

ended December 31 2009 related to the acquisition of First Health

Services as discussed in Note 3Acquisitions

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 160 Non-controlling Interests in Consolidated

Financial Statements This statement has been incorporated into ASC 810 Consolidation

ASC 810 This guidance requires entities to report non-controlling minority interests in

subsidiaries as equity in the consolidated financial statements The Company adopted this guidance in

the Companys year beginning January 2009 The adoption of this guidance did not have material

impact on the consolidated financial statements

In April 2009 the FASB issued FASB Staff Position FSP SFAS 115-2 and SFAS 124-2

Recognition and Presentation of Other-Than-Temporary Impairments These statements have been

incorporated into ASC 320 Investments ASC 320 This guidance modifies the recognition

requirements for other-than-temporary impairments of debt securities and enhances existing disclosures

with respect to other-than-temporary impairments of debt and equity securities including the credit and

non-credit components of impaired debt securities expected to be sold Such guidance is effective for

interim and annual reporting periods ending after June 15 2009 the quarter ending June 30 2009 for

the Company The adoption of this guidance did not have material impact on the consolidated

financial statements

In April 2009 the FASB issued FSP No FAS 107-1 and Accounting Principles Board APB
Opinion No 28-1 Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments This guidance
amends SFAS No 107 Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments These statements have

been incorporated into ASC 825 Financial Instruments ASC 825 This guidance requires

disclosures in interim reporting periods and in financial statements for annual reporting periods

regarding the fair value of all financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate that value

whether recognized or not on the balance sheet and also amends prior guidance on interim financial

reporting to require entities to disclose the methods and significant assumptions used to estimate the

fair value of financial instruments and describe changes in methods and significant assumptions in both

interim and annual financial statements Such guidance is effective for interim reporting periods ending
after June 15 2009 the quarter ending June 30 2009 for the Company While the adoption of this

guidance impacted the Companys disclosures it did not have an impact on the Companys results of

operations or financial condition

In May 2009 the FASB issued SFAS No 165 Subsequent Events This statement has been

incorporated into ASC 855 Subsequent Events ASC 855 This guidance establishes general

standards of accounting for and disclosure of events that occur after the balance sheet date but before

financial statements are issued or are available to be issued and is effective for financial statements

issued for interim and annual reporting periods ending after June 15 2009 the quarter ending June 30
2009 for the Company Accordingly the Company evaluated subsequent events for recognition and

disclosure through the filing date of this Form 10-K The adoption of this guidance did not have an

impact on the Companys results of operations or financial condition

In June 2009 the FASB issued SFAS No 167 Amendments to FASB Interpretation No 46R
SFAS 167 SFAS 167 amends FASB Interpretation FIN No 46 revised December 2003
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities FIN 46R to require an analysis to determine whether
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variable interest gives the entity controlling financial interest in variable interest entity This

statement requires an ongoing reassessment and eliminates the quantitative approach previously

required for determining whether an entity is the primary beneficiary This statement is effective for

fiscal
years beginning after November 15 2009 Accordingly the Company will adopt SFAS 167 on

January 2010 The Company does not expect the adoption of this standard to have material impact

on the consolidated financial statements This statement has not yet been reflected in the ASC

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted

in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the

financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period

Significant estimates of the Company include among other things accounts receivable realization

valuation allowances for deferred tax assets valuation of goodwill and intangible assets medical claims

payable other medical liabilities stock compensation assumptions tax contingencies and legal liabilities

Actual results could differ from those estimates

Managed Care Revenue

Managed care revenue inclusive of revenue from the Companys risk EAP and ASO contracts is

recognized over the applicable coverage period on per member basis for covered members The

Company is paid per member fee for all enrolled members and this fee is recorded as revenue in the

month in which members are entitled to service The Company adjusts its revenue for retroactive

membership terminations additions and other changes when such adjustments are identified with the

exception of retroactivity that can be reasonably estimated Any fees paid prior to the month of service

are recorded as deferred revenue Managed care revenues approximated $1.9 billion $2.2 billion and

$2.1 billion for the years ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009 respectively

Fee-For-Service and Cost-Plus Contracts

The Company has certain FFS contracts including cost-plus contracts with customers under which

the Company recognizes revenue as services are performed and as costs are incurred Revenues from

these contracts approximated $33.3 million $36.1 million and $104.4 million for the years ended

December 31 2007 2008 and 2009 respectively

Block Grant Revenues

The Maricopa Contract is partially funded by federal state and county block grant money which

represents annual appropriations The Company recognizes revenue from block grant activity ratably

over the period to which the block grant funding applies Block grant revenues were approximately

$40.6 million $120.0 million and $106.6 million for the years ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009

respectively
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Dispensing Revenue

The Company recognizes dispensing revenue which includes the co-payments received from

members of the health plans the Company serves when the specialty pharmaceutical drugs are shipped

At the time of shipment the earnings process is complete the obligation of the Companys customer to

pay for the specialty pharmaceutical drugs is fixed and due to the nature of the product the member

may neither return the specialty pharmaceutical drugs nor receive refund Revenues from the

dispensing of specialty pharmaceutical drugs on behalf of health plans were $160.6 million

$195.6 million and $221.6 million for the years ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009 respectively

Performance-Based Revenue

The Company has the ability to earn performance-based revenue under certain risk and non-risk

contracts Performance-based revenue generally is based on either the ability of the Company to

manage care for its clients below specified targets or on other operating metrics For each such

contract the Company estimates and records performance-based revenue after considering the relevant

contractual terms and the data available for the performance-based revenue calculation Pro-rata

performance-based revenue is recognized on an interim basis pursuant to the rights and obligations of

each party upon termination of the contracts Performance-based revenues were $10.4 million

$13.4 million and $7.6 million for the years ended December 31 2007 2008 arid 2009 respectively

Significant Customers

Consolidated Conipany

The Companys contracts with the State of Tennessees TennCare program TennCare and with

subsidiaries of WeliPoint Inc WellPoint each generated net revenues that exceeded in the

aggregate ten percent of net revenues for the consolidated Company for the year ended December 31

2007 TennCare and the Companys Maricopa Contract generated net revenues that exceeded in the

aggregate ten percent of net revenues for the consolidated Company for the year
ended December 31

2008 The Maricopa Contract generated net revenues that exceeded in the aggregate ten percent of

net revenues for the consolidated Company for the year ended December 31 2009 The Company also

has significant concentration of business from contracts with subsidiaries of WeilPoint and with

various counties in the State of Pennsylvania the Pennsylvania Counties which are part of the

Pennsylvania Medicaid program

Pursuant to the Maricopa Contract the Company provides behavioral healthcare management and

other related services to approximately 714000 members in Maricopa County Arizona Under the

Maricopa Contract the Company is responsible for providing covered behavioral health services to

persons eligible under Title XIX Medicaid and Title XXI State Childrens Health Insurance

Program of the Social Security Act non-Title XIX and non-Title XIX eligible children and adults with

serious mental illness and to certain non-Title XIX and non-Title XXI adults with behavioral health

or substance abuse disorders The Maricopa Contract began on September 2007 and extends through

August 31 2011 unless sooner terminated by the parties The State of Arizona has the right to

terminate the Maricopa Contract for cause as defined upon ten days notice with an opportunity to

cure and without cause immediately upon notice from the State The Maricopa Contract generated net
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revenues of $196.1 million $621.6 million and $725.0 million for the years ended December 31 2007

2008 and 2009 respectively

The TennCare program is divided into three regions and through March 31 2007 the Companys
TennCare contracts encompassed all of the TennCare membership for all three regions As of April

2007 substantially all of the membership in the Middle Grand Region was re-assigned to managed care

companies in accordance with contract awards by TennCare pursuant to its request for proposals for

the management of the integrated delivery of behavioral and physical medical care to the region

Substantially all of the membership in the West Grand and East Grand Regions was similarly

re-assigned to managed care companies in accordance with contract awards by TennCare effective

November 2008 and January 2009 respectively The Company continued to manage behavioral

healthcare services for children enrolled in TennCare Select High statewide as well as for certain

out-of-state TennCare members pursuant to contracts that extended through August 31 2009 at which

time the contracts terminated The Company recorded net revenues of $316.9 million $282.4 million

and $36.8 million for the years ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009 respectively from its

TennCare contracts

Total net revenues from the Companys contracts with WellPoint were $218.9 million

$186.7 million and $170.4 million during the years ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009

respectively including radiology benefits management revenue of $77.8 million $162.5 million and

$155.9 million respectively One of the Companys managed behavioral healthcare contracts with

WeliPoint was terminated by WellPoint effective March 31 2007 and generated net revenues of

$26.0 million during 2007 second managed behavioral healthcare contract with WellPoint expired

December 31 2007 and generated net revenues of $85.7 million during the year ended December 31

2007

In July 2007 WellPoint acquired radiology benefits management company and has expressed its

intent to in-source all of its radiology benefits management contracts when such contracts expire The

Company had several radiology benefits management contracts with WellPoint including one that

converted from an ASO arrangement to risk arrangement effective July 2007 Such risk contract

has term through December 31 2010 and cannot be terminated early except for cause as defined in

the agreement The Companys other radiology benefits management ASO contracts with WellPoint had

$11.4 million of net revenues for the year ended December 31 2008 and these ASO contracts

terminated at various dates in 2008

Net revenues from the Pennsylvania Counties in the aggregate totaled $262.6 million

$288.1 million and $315.5 million for the years ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009 respectively

By Segment

WeilPoint generated greater than ten percent of net revenues for the Commercial segment for the

year ended December 31 2007 Two other customers generated greater than ten percent
of

Commercial net revenues for the
years

ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009 The first customer

has contract that extends through December 31 2012 and generated net revenues of $175.4 million

$217.0 million and $235.0 million for the
years

ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009 respectively

The second customer has contract that extends through June 30 2014 and generated net revenues of
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$89.3 million $90.8 million and $85.8 million for the years ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009

respectively

Net revenues from the Maricopa Contract and TennCare were each greater
than ten percent

of the

net revenues for the Public Sector segment for the years ended December 31 2007 and 2008 in

addition to the Maricopa Contract and TennCare for the year ended December 31 2007 and in

addition to the Maricopa Contract for the year ended December 31 2009 one additional customer

generated net revenues greater than ten percent of net revenues for the Public Sector segment for the

years
ended December 31 2007 and 2009 This customer generated net revenues of $124.7 million

$140.5 million and $147.7 million for the years ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009 respectively

This customer contract extends through June 30 2012 with options for the customer to extend the term

of the contract for three one year terms

In addition to WeilPoint one other customer generated greater than ten percent of the net

revenues for the Radiology Benefits Management segment for the years
ended December 31 2007

2008 and 2009 This customer has contract that extends through May 31 2011 and generated net

revenues of $61.3 million $96.4 million and $80.4 million for the years ended December 31 2007 2008

and 2009 respectively

Included in the Companys Specialty Pharmaceutical Management segment are four customers that

each exceeded ten percent of the net revenues for this segment for the year ended December 31 2007

The four customers generated $60.0 million $34.4 million $33.6 million and $24.9 million of net

revenues during the year ended December 31 2007 For the year ended December 31 2008 five

customers each exceeded ten percent of the net revenues for this segment Four of such customers

generated $71.9 million $49.5 million $28.0 million and $26.8 million of net revenues during the
year

ended December 31 2008 The other contract generated net revenues of $27.1 million for the year

ended December 31 2008 and this contract terminated December 31 2008 For the year ended

December 31 2009 four customers each exceeded ten percent of the net revenues for this segment

Such customers generated $85.7 million $49.7 million $43.9 million and $30.9 million of net revenues

during the year ended December 31 2009 The previously mentioned contract that terminated as of

December 31 2008 generated net revenues for run-off activity of $7.4 million for the year ended

December 31 2009

For the period from August 2009 through December 31 2009 four customers each exceeded ten

percent of the net revenues for the Medicaid Administration segment Three of such customers

generated $11.4 million $10.5 million and $9.0 million of net revenues for this segment The other

customer generated revenue of $8.8 million during this period and this contract is scheduled to

terminate June 30 2010 unless terminated earlier by the customer

Income Taxes

The Company files consolidated federal income tax return for the Company and its eighty

percent or more owned subsidiaries and the Company and its subsidiaries file income tax returns in

various state and local jurisdictions
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The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with ASC 740 Income Taxes The

Company estimates income taxes for each of the jurisdictions in which it operates This process involves

estimating current tax exposures together with assessing temporary differences resulting from differing

treatment of items for tax and book purposes Deferred tax assets and/or liabilities are determined by

multiplying the differences between the financial reporting and tax reporting bases for assets and

liabilities by the enacted tax rates expected to be in effect when such differences are recovered or

settled The Company then assesses the likelihood that the deferred tax assets will be recovered from

the reversal of temporary timing differences and future taxable income and to the extent the Company
cannot conclude that recovery is more likely than not it establishes valuation allowance The effect of

change in tax rates on deferred taxes is recognized in income in the period that includes the

enactment date

Prior to 2009 reversals of both valuation allowances and unrecognized tax benefits were in most

instances recorded as adjustments to goodwill Subsequent to January 2009 all such reversals will be

recorded as reductions to income tax expense and only those changes occurring during the

measurement period subsequent to an acquisition will be recorded to goodwill

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid interest-bearing investments with maturity dates of

three months or less when purchased consisting primarily of money market instruments At

December 31 2009 the Companys excess capital and undistributed earnings for the Companys

regulated subsidiaries of $46.6 million are included in cash and cash equivalents

Restricted Assets

The Company has certain assets which are considered restricted for the payment of claims

under the terms of certain managed care contracts ii regulatory purposes related to the payment of

claims in certain jurisdictions and iii the maintenance of minimum required tangible net equity levels

for certain of the Companys subsidiaries Significant restricted assets of the Company as of

December 31 2008 and 2009 were as follows in thousands

2008 2009

Restricted cash $192395 $159659

Restricted short-term investments 116112 102922

Restricted deposits included in other current assets 17769 15467

Restricted long-term investments 8527 60230

Total $334803 $338278

Investments

All of the Companys investments are classified as available-for-sale and are carried at fair value

based on quoted market prices The Companys policy is to classify all investments with contractual

maturities within one year as current Investment income is recognized when earned and reported net

of investment expenses Net unrealized holding gains or losses are excluded from earnings and are
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reported net of tax as accumulated other comprehensive income loss in the accompanying

consolidated balance sheets and consolidated statements of income until realized unless the losses are

deemed to be other-than-temporary Realized gains or losses including any provision for

other-than-temporary declines in value are included in the consolidated statements of income

ASC 320-10-65 applies to debt securities only and provides new guidance on the recognition and

presentation of other-than-temporary impairments In addition additional disclosures are required

related to other-than-temporary impairments Under this revised guidance if debt security is in an

unrealized loss position and the Company has the intent to sell the debt security or it is more likely

than not that the Company will have to sell the debt security before recovery of its amortized cost

basis the decline in value is deemed to be other-than-temporary and is recorded to

other-than-temporary impairment losses recognized in income in the consolidated statements of

income For impaired debt securities that the Company does not intend to sell or it is more likely than

not that the Company will not have to sell such securities but the Company expects that it will not

fully recover the amortized cost basis the credit component of the other-than-temporary impairment is

recognized in other-than-temporary impairment losses recognized in income in the consolidated

statements of income and the non-credit component of the other-than-temporary impairment is

recognized in other comprehensive income

The credit component of an other-than-temporary impairment is determined by comparing the net

present value of projected future cash flows with the amortized cost basis of the debt security The net

present value is calculated by discounting the best estimate of projected future cash flows at the

effective interest rate implicit in the debt security at the date of acquisition Cash flow estimates are

driven by assumptions regarding probability of default including changes in credit ratings and

estimates regarding timing and amount of recoveries associated with default Furthermore unrealized

losses entirely caused by non-credit related factors related to debt securities for which the Company

expects to fully recover the amortized cost basis continue to be recognized in accumulated other

comprehensive income

As of December 31 2008 and 2009 there were no unrealized losses that the Company believed to

be other-than-temporary No realized gains or losses were recorded for the years
ended December 31

F-16



MAGELLAN HEALTH SERVICES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

December 31 2009

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Continued

2007 2008 or 2009 The following is summary of short-term and long-term investments at

December 31 2008 and 2009 in thousands

U.S Government and agency securities

Obligations of government-sponsored enterprises1

Corporate debt securities

Certificates of deposit

Total investments at December 31 2008

December 31 2008

Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

683 $6 689

52479 584 53063

173184 307 172877

7270 7270

$233616 $590 $307 $233899

December
31_2009

Gross Gross

Unrealized Unrealized

Gains Losses

$1
39

458 302

Estimated

Fair

Value

379

11328

208988

9750

$498 $310 $230445

Includes investments in notes issued by the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation the

Federal National Mortgage Association the Federal Home Loan Bank and the Federal Farm

Credit Bank

The maturity dates of the Companys investments as of December 31 2009 are summarized below

in thousands

Amortized

Cost

2010 $162503

2011 67754 _______

Total investments at December 31 2009 $230257
________

U.S Government and agency securities

Obligations of government-sponsored enterprises1

Corporate debt securities

Certificates of deposit

Total investments at December 31 2009

Amortized

Cost

378

11297

208832

9750

$230257

Estimated

Fair Value

$162923

67522

$230445

Accounts Receivable

The Companys accounts receivable consists of amounts due from customers throughout the

United States Collateral is generally not required The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful

accounts based upon factors surrounding the credit risk of specific customers historical trends and

other information Management believes the allowance for doubtful accounts is adequate to provide for

normal credit losses
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Concentration of Credit Risk

Accounts receivable subjects the Company to concentration of credit risk with third party payors

that include health insurance companies managed healthcare organizations healthcare providers and

governmental entities

Long-lived Assets

Long-lived assets including property and equipment and intangible assets to be held and used are

currently reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the

carrying amount should be addressed pursuant to ASC 360-10-20 Pursuant to this guidance

impairment is determined by comparing the carrying value of these long-lived assets to managements
best estimate of the future undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use of the assets and

their eventual disposition The cash flow projections used to make this assessment are consistent with

the cash flow projections that management uses internally in making key decisions In the event an

impairment exists loss is recognized based on the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the

fair value of the asset which is generally determined by using quoted market prices or the discounted

present value of expected future cash flows

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost except for assets that have been impaired for which the

carrying amount has been reduced to estimated fair value Expenditures for renewals and

improvements are capitalized to the property accounts Replacements and maintenance and repairs that

do not improve or extend the life of the respective assets are expensed as incurred Internal-use

software is capitalized in accordance with ASC 350-40 Amortization of capital lease assets is included

in depreciation expense and is included in accumulated depreciation as reflected in the ttble below

Depreciation is provided on straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets which is

generally two to ten years
for buildings and improvements or the lease term if shorter three to

fifteen
years

for equipment and three to five
years

for capitalized internal-use software Depreciation

expense was $41.3 million $52.2 million and $37.8 million for the
years

ended December 31 2007 2008

and 2009 respectively

Property and equipment net consisted of the following at December 31 2008 and 2009

in thousands

_2008 2009

Buildings and improvements 6733 4597

Equipment 112277 123750

Capital leasesequipment 4883

Capitalized internal-use software 133803 172225

257696 300572

Accumulated depreciation 169260 192353

Property and equipment net 88436 $108219
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Goodwill

The Company is required to test its goodwill for impairment on at least an annual basis The

Company has selected October as the date of its annual impairment test The goodwill impairment

test is two-step process that requires management to make judgments in determining what

assumptions to use in the calculation The first step of the process consists of estimating the fair value

of each reporting unit that has been allocated goodwill based on various valuation techniques with the

primary technique being discounted cash flow analysis which requires the input of various

assumptions with respect to revenues operating margins growth rates and discount rates The

estimated fair value for each reporting unit is compared to the carrying value of the reporting unit

which includes the allocated goodwill If the estimated fair value is less than the carrying value

second step is performed to compute the amount of the impairment by determining an implied fair

value of goodwill The determination of reporting units implied fair value of goodwill requires the

Company to allocate the estimated fair value of the reporting unit to the assets and liabilities of the

reporting unit Any unallocated fair value represents the implied fair value of goodwill which is

compared to its corresponding carrying value

The fair value of the Health Plan reporting unit component of the Commercial segment was

determined using discounted cash flow method This method involves estimating the present value of

estimated future cash flows utilizing risk adjusted discount rate Key assumptions for this method

include cash flow projections terminal growth rates and discount rates

The fair value of the Radiology Benefits Management reporting unit was determined using

discounted cash flow merger and acquisition and public company methods Key assumptions for the

discounted cash flow method are consistent with those described above Key assumptions for the

merger and acquisition method include actual operating results and appropriate revenue and earnings

before interesl taxes depreciation and amortization EBITDA multiples Key assumptions for the

public company method include actual operating results projected operating results and appropriate

EBITDA earnings before interest and taxes EBIT and debt free net income multiples The

weighting applied to the fair values determined using the discounted cash flow merger and acquisition

and public company methods to determine an overall fair value for Radiology Benefits Management

was 60 percent 20 percent and 20 percent respectively

The fair value of the Specialty Pharmaceutical Management reporting unit was determined using

discounted cash flow merger and acquisition and public company methods Key assumptions for all of

these methods are consistent with those described above Equal weighting was applied to the fair values

determined using the discounted cash flow merger and acquisition and public company methods to

determine an overall fair value for Specialty Pharmaceutical Management

The fair value of the Medicaid Administration reporting unit was determined using discounted

cash flow method as of the Companys acquisition of First Health Services using assumptions consistent

with those described above Given that the acquisition of First Health Services occurred two months

prior to the date of the annual impairment test and since there have been no significant changes in the

business assumptions for First Health Services the Company did not obtain an additional valuation for

purposes of the goodwill impairment test
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As result of the first step of the 2009 annual goodwill impairment analysis the fair value of each

reporting unit with allocated goodwill exceeded its carrying value Therefore the second step was not

necessary However 65 percent decline in fair value of the Health Plan reporting unit 19 percent

decline in fair value of Radiology Benefits Management or 34 percent decline in fair value of

Specialty Pharmaceutical Management would have caused the carrying values for these reporting units

to be in excess of fair values which would require the second step to be performed The second step

could have resulted in an impairment loss for goodwill

The balance of goodwill has been allocated to the Companys reporting units as follows in

thousands

December 31

2008 2009

Health Plan $120485 $120485

Radiology Benefits Management 104549 104549

Specialty Pharmaceutical Management 142291 142291

Medicaid Administration 59146

Total $367325 $426471

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2009

are reflected in the table below in thousands

2008 2009

Balance as of beginning of period $367872 $367325

Adjustment due to changes in valuation allowances1 219

Adjustment for tax contingency reversals1 766
Acquisition of First Health Services 59146

Balance as of end of period $367325 $426471

Prior to 2009 reversals of both valuation allowances and unrecognized tax benefits were

in most instances recorded as adjustments to goodwill Subsequent to January 2009 all

such reversals will be recorded as reductions to income tax expense and only those

changes occurring during the measurement period subsequent to an acquisition will be

recorded to goodwill

See further discussion in Note 7Income Taxes
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Intangible Assets

Amortization expense was $16.2 million $8.6 million and $9.5 million for the years ended

December 31 2007 2008 and 2009 respectively The Company estimates amortization expense will be

$10.8 million $10.6 million $9.6 million $9.1 million and $9.0 million for the years ending

December 31 2010 2011 2012 2013 and 2014 respectively

Cost of Care Medical Claims Payable and Other Medical Liabilities

Cost of care is recognized in the period in which members receive managed healthcare services In

addition to actual benefits paid cost of care in period also includes the impact of accruals for

estimates of medical claims payable Medical claims payable represents the liability for healthcare

claims reported but not yet paid and claims incurred but not yet reported IBNR related to the

Companys managed healthcare businesses

Such liabilities are determined by employing actuarial methods that are commonly used by health

insurance actuaries and that meet actuarial standards of practice

The IBNR portion of medical claims payable is estimated based on past claims payment

experience for member groups enrollment data utilization statistics authorized healthcare services and

other factors This data is incorporated into contract-specific actuarial reserve models and is further

analyzed to create completion factors that represent the average percentage of total incurred claims

that have been paid through given date after being incurred Factors that affect estimated completion

factors include benefit changes enrollment changes shifts in product mix seasonality influences

provider reimbursement changes changes in claims inventory levels the speed of claims processing and

changes in paid claim levels Completion factors are applied to claims paid through the financial

statement date to estimate the ultimate claim expense incurred for the current period Actuarial

The following is summary of intangible assets at December 31

useful lives for such assets in thousands

2008 and 2009 and the estimated

Asset

Customer agreements and lists

Provider networks and other

Asset

Customer agreements and lists

Provider networks and other

December 31 2008

Gross Net

Estimated Carrying Accumulated Carrying

Useful Life Amount Amortization Amount

to 18 years 97790 $52031 $45759

to 16 years 7430 2574 4856

$105220 $54605 $50615

December 31 2009

Estimated

Useful Life

to 18 years

to 16 years

Gross Net

Carrying Accumulated Carrying

Amount Amortization Amount

$121490 $60942 $60548

7430 3166 4264

$128920 $64108 $64812
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estimates of claim liabilities are then determined by subtracting the actual paid claims from the

estimate of the ultimate incurred claims For the most recent incurred months generally the most

recent two months the percentage of claims paid for claims incurred in those months is generally low

This makes the completion factor methodology less reliable for such months Therefore incurred

claims for any month with completion factor that is less than 70 percent are generally not projected

from historical completion and payment patterns rather they are projected by estating claims

expense based on recent monthly estimated cost incurred per member per month times membership

taking into account seasonality influences benefit changes and health care trend levels collectively

considered to be trend factors

Medical claims payable balances are continually monitored and reviewed If it is determined that

the Companys assumptions in estimating such liabilities are significantly different than actual results

the Companys results of operations and financial position could be impacted in future periods

Adjustments of prior period estimates may result in additional cost of care or reduction of cost of

care in the period an adjustment is made Further due to the considerable variability of health care

costs adjustments to claim liabilities occur each period and are sometimes significant as compared to

the net income recorded in that period Prior period development is recognized immediately upon the

actuarys judgment that portion of the prior period liability is no longer needed or that additional

liability should have been accrued The following table presents the components of the change in

medical claims payable for the years ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009 in thousands

2007 2008 2009

Claims payable and IBNR beginning of

period 156079 185349 184422
Cost of care

Current year 1416700 1836425 1771213
Prior years 7597 5883 5900

Total cost of care 1409103 1830542 1765313

Claim payments and transfers to other

medical liabilities1

Current year 1248549 1676975 1624626
Prior years 131284 154494 156258

Total claim payments and transfers to

other medical liabilities 1379833 1831469 1780884

Claims payable and IBNR end of period 185349 184422 168851

Withhold receivables end of period2 22683 28562 25182
Medical claims payable end of period 162666 155860 143669

For any given period portion of unpaid medical claims payable could be covered by

reinvestment liability discussed below and may not impact the Companys results of

operations for such periods

Medical claims payable is offset by customer withholds from capitation payments in

situations in which the customer has the contractual requirement to pay providers for

care incurred

F-22



MAGELLAN HEALTH SERVICES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

December 31 2009

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Continued

Actuarial standards of practice require that the claim liabilities be adequate under moderately

adverse circumstances Adverse circumstances are situations in which the actual claims experience could

be higher than the otherwise estimated value of such claims In many situations the claims paid

amount experienced will be less than the estimate that satisfies the actuarial standards of practice

Due to the existence of risk sharing provisions in certain customer contracts principally in the

Public Sector segmeflfa change in the estimate for medical claims payable does not necessarily result

in an equivalent impact on cost of care

The Company believes that the amount of medical claims payable is adequate to cover its ultimate

liability for unpaid claims as of December 31 2009 however actual claims payments may differ from

established estimates

Other medical liabilities consist primarily of reinvestnient payables under certain managed

behavioral healthcare contracts with Medicaid customers and profit share payables under certain

risk-based contracts Under contract with reinvestment features if the cost of care is less than certain

minimum amounts specified in the contract usually as percentage of revenue the Company is

required to reinvest such difference in behavioral healthcare programs when and as specified by the

customer or to pay the difference to the customer for their use in funding such programs Under

contract with profit share provisions if the cost of care is below certain specified levels the Company

will share the cost savings with the customer at the percentages
set forth in the contract

Net Income per Common Share

Net income per common share is computed based on the weighted average
number of shares of

common stock and common stock equivalents outstanding during the period see Note

Stockholders Equity

Stock Compensation

The Company uses the Black-Scholes-Merton formula to estimate the fair value of substantially all

stock options granted to employees and recorded stock compensation expense of $30.0 million

$32.8 million and $19.8 million for the years
ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009 respectively As

stock compensation expense recognized in the consolidated statements of income for the
years

ended

December 31 2007 2008 and 2009 is based on awards ultimately expected to vest it has been reduced

for estimated forfeitures of two percent eight percent
and five percent respectively

If the actual

number of forfeitures differs from those estimated additional adjustments to compensation expense

may be required in future periods If vesting of an award is conditioned upon the achievement of

performance goals compensation expense during the performance period is estimated using the most

probable outcome of the performance goals and adjusted as the expected outcome changes The

Company recognizes substantially all of these compensation costs on straight-line basis over the

requisite service period which is generally the vesting term ranging from three to four years
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Fair Value Measurements

The Company currently does not have non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities that are

required to be measured at fair value on recurring basis Financial assets and liabilities are to be

measured using inputs from the three levels of the fair value hierarchy which are as follows

Level 1Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
sSets

or liabilities

that the Company has the ability to access at the measurement date

Level 2Inputs include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets quoted

prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active inputs other than

quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability i.e interest rates yield curves etc and

inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or

other means market corroborated inputs

Level 3Unobservable inputs that reflect the Companys assumptions about the assumptions that

market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability The Company develops these inputs

based on the best information available including the Companys data

In accordance with the fair value hierarchy described above the following table shows the fair

value of the Companys financial assets and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value as

of December 31 2009 in thousands

Fair Value Measurements

at December 31 2009

Level Level Level Total

Cash and Cash Equivalents1 953 953

Restricted Cash2 152580 152580

Investments

U.S Government and agency securities 379 379

Obligations of government-sponsored enterprises3 11328 11328

Corporate debt securities 208988 208988
Certificates of deposit 9750 9750

$379 $383599 $383978

Excludes $195.6 million of cash held in bank accounts by the Company

Excludes $7.1 million of restricted cash held in bank accounts by the Company

Includes investments in notes issued by the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation the

Federal National Mortgage Association the Federal Home Loan Bank and the Federal Farm

Credit Bank

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation
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Acquisition of National Imaging Associates

On January 31 2006 the Company acquired all of the outstanding stock of National Imaging

Associates Inc NIA privately held radiology benefits management RBM firm for

approximately $121 million in cash after giving effect to cash acquired in the transaction and NIA

became wholly-owned subsidiary The Company reports the results of operations of NIA in the

Radiology Benefits Management segment

Acquisition of ICORE Healthcare LLC

On July 31 2006 the Company acquired all of the outstanding units of membership interest of

ICORE Healthcare LLC ICORE specialty pharmaceutical management company and ICORE

became wholly-owned subsidiary The Company reports
the results of operations of ICORE in the

Specialty Pharmaceutical Management segment

The Company paid or agreed to pay to the previous unitholders of ICORE all of whom were

members of ICOREs management team $161 million of cash at closing ii $24 million of cash

that was used by the unitholders of ICORE to purchase Magellan restricted stock with such restricted

stock vesting over three years provided the unitholders did not earlier terminate their employment with

Magellan iii $25 million plus accrued interest the Deferred Payment subject to any indemnity

claims Magellan may have had under the purchase agreement iv the amount of positive working

capital that existed at ICORE on the closing date the Working Capital Payments which was

$18.2 million of which $17.8 million was paid during 2007 with the remainder paid in January 2008 and

potential earn-out of up to $75 million the Earn-Out provided the unitholders did not earlier

terminate their employment with the Company prior to the payment of the Earn-Out The $161 million

of cash paid at closing the $25 million Deferred Payment and $18.2 million of Working Capital

Payments were recorded as purchase price The $24 million of restricted stock was recognized as stock

compensation expense over the three year vesting period The $24 million in restricted stock was issued

in transaction pursuant to which the unitholders of ICORE at closing applied $24 million of the

purchase price as cash consideration for their purchase of restricted shares of the Companys common

stock The unitholders subscribed to an aggregate
of 543879 restricted shares of the Companys

common stock on basis proportional to each unitholders economic interest in ICORE at purchase

price of $44.13 per share which was the average of the closing prices of the Companys common stock

on NASDAQ for the twenty trading days immediately preceding the closing The Deferred Payment

was paid in December 2008 The Earn-Out included up to $25 million based on earnings for the

18 month period ended December 31 2007 and ii up to $50 million based on earnings in 2008 The

Earn-Out provisions were not met and as result the Company did not pay any additional purchase

consideration

Acquisition of First Health Services

Pursuant to the June 2009 Purchase Agreement the Purchase Agreement with Coventry on

July 31 2009 the Company acquired the Acquisition all of the outstanding equity interests of

Coventrys direct and indirect subsidiaries First Health Services Corporation FHS FHC Inc

FHC and Provider Synergies LLC together with FHS and FHC First Health Services and

certain assets of Coventry which are related to the operation of the business conducted by First Health
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Services First Health Services provides pharmacy benefits management and other services to Medicaid

programs As consideration for the Acquisition the Company paid $115.4 million in cash excluding

cash acquired and including payment of $7.4 million for excess working capital with such amount

being subject to final adjustments as provided in the Purchase Agreement The Company funded the

Acquisition with cash on hand The Company reports the results of operations of First Health Services

as separate segment entitled Medicaid Administration

The purchase price has been allocated based upon the estimated fair value of net assets acquired

at the date of acquisition portion of the excess purchase price over tangible net assets acquired has

been allocated to identified
intangible assets totaling $23.7 million consisting of customer contracts

which are being amortized over to years The Companys effective tax rate will not be impacted

by the tax deductible goodwill from the First Health Services transaction

The estimated fair values of First Health Services assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the

date of the acquisition are summarized as follows in thousands

Assets acquired

Current assets includes cash of $2036 27237

Property and equipment net 25227
Other assets 79

Goodwill 59146
Other identified intangible assets 23700

Total assets acquired 135389

Liabilities assumed

Current liabilities 9945
Deferred tax liabilities 12998

Total liabilities assumed 22943

Net assets acquired $112446

As of December 31 2009 the Company established working capital receivable of $5.0 million

that was reflected as reduction to goodwill In accordance with the terms of the purchase agreement

working capital will be settled in 2010 with any adjustment to the amount settled for working capital

impacting goodwill and the amount ultimately paid for the acquisition of First Health Services

As of December 31 2009 settlement of the working capital receivable and certain contractual

liabilities remain open and therefore subject to further estimation In addition the amount recognized

for deferred tax liabilities may be impacted by the determination of these items The Company will

make appropriate adjustments to the purchase price allocation prior to the completion of the

measurement period as required

In connection with this acquisition the Company incurred $1.4 million of acquisition related costs

that were expensed during the year ended December 31 2009 These costs are included within direct

service costs and other operating expenses in the accompanying consolidated statement of income
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Pro Forma Financial Information unaudited

The following unaudited supplemental pro forma information represents
the Companys

consolidated results of operations
for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2009 as if the acquisition

of First Health Services had occurred on January 2008 after giving effect to certain adjustments

including interest income depreciation
and amortization and stock compensation expense

Such pro forma information does not purport to be indicative of operating results that would have

been reported had the acquisition of First Health Services occurred on January 2008 in thousands

Year Ended

December 31

2008 2009

Net revenue $2802910 $2735602

Net income 96779 114193

Income per common sharebasicS 2.44 3.24

Income per common sharediluted 2.42 3.22

Benefit Plans

The Company has defined contribution retirement plan the 401k Plan Employee

participants can elect to contribute up to 75 percent of their compensation subject to Internal Revenue

Service IRS deferral limitations The Company makes contributions to the 401k Plan based on

employee compensation and contributions The Company matches 50 percent of each employees

contribution up to percent
of their annual compensation The Company recognized $4.2 million

$5.1 million and $5.1 million of expense for the years
ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009

respectively for matching contributions to the 401k Plan

Long-Term Debt and Capital Lease Obligations

Long Term Debt and Capital Lease Obligations

On April 30 2008 the Company entered into credit facility with Deutsche Bank AG and

Citigroup Global Markets Inc that provided for $100.0 million Revolving Loan Commitment for the

issuance of letters of credit for the account of the Company with sublimit of up to $30.0 million for

revolving loans the 2008 Credit Facility The 2008 Credit Facility was guaranteed by substantially all

of the subsidiaries of the Company and was secured by substantially all of the assets of the Company

and the subsidiary guarantors

Under the 2008 Credit Facility the annual interest rate on Revolving Loan borrowings bore

interest at rate equal to the sum of borrowing margin of 1.00 percent plus ii in the case of

U.S dollar denominated loans the higher of the prime rate or one-half of one percent in excess of the

overnight federal funds rate or in the case of Eurodollar denominated loans an interest rate

which is function of the Eurodollar rate for the selected interest period The Company had the

option to borrow in U.S dollar denominated loans or Eurodollar denominated loans at its discretion

Letters of Credit issued under the Revolving Loan Commitment bore interest at the rate of
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1.125 percent The commitment commission on the 2008 Credit
Facility was 0.375 percent of the

unused Revolving Loan Commitment

On April 29 2009 the Company entered into an amendment to the 2008 Credit Facility with

Deutsche Bank AG Citibank N.A and Bank of America N.A that provides for an $80.0 million

Revolving Loan Commitment for the issuance of letters of credit for the account of the Company with

sublimit of up to $30.0 million for revolving loans the 2009 Credit Facility jrrowings under the

2009 Credit Facility will mature on April 28 2010 The 2009 Credit Facility is guaranteed by

substantially all of the subsidiaries of the Company and is secured by substantially all of the assets of

the Company and the subsidiary guarantors

Under the 2009 Credit Facility the annual interest rate on Revolving Loan borrowings bear
interest at rate equal to in the case of U.S dollar denominated loans the sum of borrowing
margin of 2.25 percent plus the higher of the prime rate or one-half of one percent in excess of the

overnight federal funds rate or ii in the case of Eurodollar denominated loans the sum of

borrowing margin of 3.25 percent plus the Eurodollar rate for the selected interest period The
Company has the option to borrow in U.S dollar denominated loans or Eurodollar denominated loans

at its discretion Letters of Credit issued under the Revolving Loan Commitment bear interest at the

rate of 3.375 percent The commitment commission on the 2009 Credit Facility is 0.625 percent of the

unused Revolving Loan Commitment

The Companys capital lease obligations represent amounts due under leases for certain software

and computer equipment The recorded gross cost of other capital leased assets was $4.9 million at

December 31 2008

The Companys long-term debt and capital lease obligations at December 31 2008 and 2009
consisted of the following in thousands

2008 2009

2009 Credit Facility

Revolving Loan Commitment due through 2010

Capital Lease Obligations 28

28

Less current maturities of long-term debt and capital lease obligations

$20
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Stock Compensation

At December 31 2008 and 2009 the Company had equity-based employee incentive plans which

are described below

Stock Option Awards

On January 2tf4 the Company established the 2003 Management Incentive Plan 2003 MIP
which allowed for the issuance of up to 6373689 shares of common stock pursuant to stock options or

stock grants Other than the 2004 Options defined below and certain options granted under the 2006

MIP defined below options granted by the Company have exercise prices equal to the fair market

value on the date of grant

On February 24 2006 the board of directors of the Company approved three equity plans and

recommended they be submitted for approval by the Companys shareholders at the 2006 Annual

Meeting of Shareholders The board approved the 2006 Management Incentive Plan 2006 MIP the

2006 Director Equity Compensation Plan Director Plan and the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase

Plan ESPP All three of these plans were approved by the Companys shareholders at the 2006

Annual Meeting of Shareholders on May 16 2006

The 2006 MIP which was similar to the Companys 2003 MIP authorized the issuance of equity

awards covering total of 2750000 shares of the Companys common stock no more than 300000

shares of which could be restricted stock or restricted stock units restricted stock unit is notional

account representing the right to receive share of Ordinary Common Stock or at the Companys

option cash in lieu thereof at some future date The Director Plan covered 120000 shares of the

Companys common stock no more than 15000 of which could be restricted stock or restricted stock

units and provided for the issuance of options and restricted stock or restricted stock units to directors

immediately following each annual meeting of shareholders in 2006 and 2007 The ESPP is

noncompensatory plan and covers 100000 shares of the Companys common stock and permits

employees of the Company to purchase Common Stock at percent
discount

On February 27 2008 the board of directors of the Company approved the 2008 Management

Incentive Plan 2008 MIP and recommended it be submitted for approval by the Companys

shareholders at the 2008 Annual Meeting of shareholders The 2008 MIP was approved by the

Companys shareholders at the 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders on May 20 2008 The 2008 MIP

is similar to the 2006 MIP and the 2003 MIP The board of directors also authorized total of up to

4.5 million shares of the Companys Common Stock which amount will be increased by the amount of

any future forfeitures under the 2006 MIP the 2003 MIP and the Director Plan to be available for

issuance pursuant to the 2008 MIP Each restricted stock unit or share of restricted stock issued under

the 2008 MIP shall be counted as 1.9 option shares for the purpose of calculating shares awarded and

shares remaining available for grant pursuant to the 2008 MIP The 2008 MIP also provides that no

further awards are to be made under the 2006 MIP the 2003 MIP or the Director Plan and any equity

awards remaining available for issuance under such plans are no longer available for issuance except

for any forfeitures or other recapture of equity awards previously made under such plans which will be

available for grant
under the 2008 MIP The 2008 MIP unlike the 2006 MIP and the 2003 MIP also

permits the grant
of performance based cash bonus awards to eligible employees and the grant of

F-29



MAGELLAN HEALTH SERVICES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

December 31 2009

Stockholders Equity Continued

equity to directors of the Company Currently no such cash bonus awards have been issued under the

2008 MIP

The weighted average grant date fair value of substantially all stock options granted during the

years ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009 was $12.24 $8.52 and $8.69 respectively as estimated

using the Black- Scholes-Merton option pricing model based on the following weighted average

assumptions

2007 2008 2009

Risk-free interest rate 4.50% 2.76% 1.67%

Expected life
years years years

Expected volatility 28.40% 28.40% 30.20%

Expected dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

For the years ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009 expected volatility was based on the

historical
volatility of the Companys stock price

The benefits of tax deductions from exercises of stock options and vesting of stock awards are

reported as financing cash flow rather than as an operating cash flow In the years ended

December 31 2007 2008 and 2009 approximately $14.4 million $7.5 million and $2.9 million

respectively of benefits of such tax deductions related to stock compensation expense were realized and

as such were reported as financing cash flows Of these amounts $0.6 million $5.4 million and

$2.9 million respectively have been reflected as increases to additional paid in capital for the years

ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009 respectively Tax contingencies were recorded for the

remaining $13.8 million $2.1 million and $0.0 million respectively as of December 31 2007 2008 and

2009

Summarized information related to the Companys stock options for the
years ended December 31

2007 2008 and 2009 is as follows

2007 2008

Weighted Weighted
Average Average

Exercise Exercise

Options Price Options Price

Outstanding beginning of period 4990507 $24.64 4059096 $36.68

Granted 1594546 41.38 1643720 41.19

Cancelled 199019 38.12 443310 40.28

Exercised 2326938 13.93 591016 21.81

Outstanding end of period 4059096 $36.68 4668490 $39.82
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2009

Weighted

Average

Weighted Remaining Aggregate

Average Contractual Intrinsic

Exercise Term Value

Options Price in years in thousands

Outstanding beginning of period 4668490 $39.82

Granted 1326694 33.00

Cancelled 732846 39.68

Exercised 77247 33.38

Outstanding end of period
5185091 $38.19 7.61 $15602

Vested and expected to vest at end of period 5074865 $38.25 7.58 $14995

Exercisable end of period
2890854 $39.35 6.73 5705

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the total pre-tax
intrinsic value based

upon the difference between the Companys closing stock price on the last trading day of 2009 of

$40.73 and the exercise price for all in-the-money options as of December 31 2009 This amount

changes based on the fair market value of the Companys stock

The total pre-tax intrinsic value of options exercised based on the difference between the

Companys closing stock price on the day the option was exercised and the exercise price during the

years ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009 was $63.4 million $12.0 million and $0.4 million

respectively

As of December 31 2009 there was $14.5 million of total unrecognized compensation expense

related to nonvested stock options that is expected to be recognized over weighted average remaining

recognition period of 1.80 years The total fair value of options vested during the year ended

December 31 2009 was $13.2 million

Substantially all of the Companys options granted during the year
ended December 31 2005 vest

ratably on each anniversary date over the four years subsequent to grant and substantially all have

ten year life Substantially all of the Companys options granted during the
years

ended December 31

2006 2007 2008 and 2009 vest ratably on each anniversary date over the three years subsequent to

grant and substantially all have ten year life

At December 31 2009 2514255 shares of the Companys common stock remain available for

future grant under the Companys 2008 MIP

Option Modification

On January 2006 the Company amended certain stock options outstanding under the 2003 MIP

The amendments as further described below were intended primarily to bring the features of such

options into compliance with certain requirements established by Section 409A of the Internal Revenue

Code of 1986 as amended the Code which was added to the Code by the American Jobs Creation
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Act of 2004 and governs as general matter the federal income tax treatment of deferred

compensation The amended options were originally issued on January 2004 the 2004 Options
Because the exercise price of such 2004 Options may be considered to have been less than the fair

market value of the shares that may be acquired upon exercise of such options as determined by the

market trading in such shares such options might be subject to the provisions of Section 409A
including certain penalty tax provisions on the option holders

The amendments in each case reduced the period in which the 2004 Options once vested could

be exercised from the tenth anniversary of the date of grant to the end of the calendar year in which

each option first became exercisable The vesting schedule of the options was not changed and no

change was made in the exercise price or other material terms

In addition the 2004 Options issued to the Companys then Chief Executive Officer Chief

Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer the Senior Executives were also amended to defer

until January 2007 the exercisability of all but 137398 of their options that vested in January 2006
This deferral was agreed upon in connection with the waiver by the Company of the restriction on sale

before January 2007 of 413003 shares held by the Senior Executives that they had previously

acquired upon exercise of portion of their 2004 Options that vested in January 2005

In connection with these amendments the Company agreed to grant new options to option

holders other than the Senior Executives upon exercise of their 2004 Options The new options will be

in an amount equal to the number of options exercised will have exercise prices equal to the market

price on the date of grant and will vest ratably on each anniversary date over the three years

subsequent to grant In the
years ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009 options to purchase

233892 345956 and 14049 shares respectively were granted pursuant to these amendments upon
exercise of 2004 Options during these periods

Restricted Stock Awards

During the year ended December 31 2005 the Company granted shares of restricted stock which

vest ratably on each anniversary date over the four
years subsequent to grant During the

years ended

December 31 2006 2007 2008 and 2009 the Company granted shares of restricted stock which

generally vest ratably on each anniversary date over the three years subsequent to grant

Summarized information related to the Companys nonvested restricted stock awards for the years
ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009 is as follows

2007 2008 2009

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average

Grant Date Grant Date Grant Date
Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value

Outstanding beginning of period 629234 $42.80 601384 $43.25 321935 $42.92

Awarded 5250 44.49 41190 37.10 30385 30.36

Vested 31675 35.03 309494 43.16 319547 42.97

Forfeited 1425 33.13 11145 32.71 3863 36.66

Outstanding ending of period 601384 $43.25 321935 $42.92 28910 $30.27
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On July 31 2006 pursuant to the Companys purchase of ICORE the Company granted to the

unitholders of ICORE 543879 shares of restricted stock of the Company valued at $24.0 million

which stock vested over three years provided that the unitholders did not earlier terminate their

employment with the Company The $24 million in restricted stock paid at the closing was issued in

transaction pursuant to which the unitholders of ICORE at closing applied $24 million of the purchase

price as cash consideration for their purchase of restricted shares of the Companys common stock The

unitholders subscribed to an aggregate
of 543879 restricted shares of the Companys common stock on

basis proportional to each unitholders economic interest in ICORE at purchase price
of $44.13 per

share which was the average of the closing prices of the Companys common stock on NASDAQ for

the twenty trading days immediately preceding the closing

As of December 31 2009 there was $0.3 million of unrecognized stock compensation expense

related to nonvested restricted stock awards This cost is expected to be recognized over weighted-

average period of 0.38 years

Restricted Stock Units

During the
years

ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009 the Company granted restricted stock

units which vest ratably on each anniversary date over the three years subsequent to grant

Summarized information related to the Companys nonvested restricted stock units for the years

ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009 is as follows

2007 2008 2009

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Grant Date Grant Date Grant Date

Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value

Outstanding beginning of period 121032 $40.33 219736 $40.57 176112 $38.72

Awarded 146572 40.77 112874 37.14 121065 32.91

Vested 38754 40.21 125371 40.51 73465 39.16

Forfeited 9114 42.03 31127 38.85 39258 37.60

Outstanding ending of period 219736 $40.57 176112 $38.72 184454 $34.99

As of December 31 2009 there was $2.7 million of unrecognized stock compensation expense

related to nonvested restricted stock units This cost is expected to be recognized over weighted-

average period of 1.79 years

Common Stock Warrants

On January 2004 the Company issued 570825 warrants to purchase common stock of the

Company at purchase price of $30.46 per share at anytime until January 2011 and at an

approximate fair value per warrant of $9.44 2004 Warrants As of December 31 2009 570160 of

these 2004 Warrants remain outstanding
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The fair values of the common stock warrants were estimated on the date of their grant using the

Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing model based on the following weighted average assumptions

2004

Warrants

Risk-free interest rate 3.92%

Expected life
rt t- years

Expected volatility 39.5%

Expected dividend yield 0.0%

Income per Common Share

The following table reconciles income numerator and shares denominator used in the

Companys computations of net income per share for the years ended December 31 2007 2008 and

2009 in thousands except per share amounts

2007 2008 2009

Numerator

Net income $94158 $86205 $106671

Denominator

Weighted average number of common shares outstandingbasic 38942 39607 35248
Common stock equivalentsstock options 584 246 46

Common stock equivalentswarrants 168 128 52

Common stock equivalentsrestricted stock 104 29

Common stock equivalentsrestricted stock units 39 11 41

Weighted average number of common shares outstandingdiluted 39837 39999 35416

Net income per common sharebasic 2.42 2.18 3.03

Net income per common sharediluted 2.36 2.16 3.01

The weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the years ended December 31
2007 2008 and 2009 was calculated using outstanding shares of the Companys Ordinary Common
Stock Common stock equivalents included in the calculation of diluted weighted average common
shares outstanding for the

years ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009 represent stock options to

purchase shares of the Companys Ordinary Common Stock restricted stock awards and restricted

stock units stock purchased under the ESPP and shares of Ordinary Common Stock related to certain

warrants issued on January 2004

Stock Repurchase

On July 30 2008 the Companys board of directors approved stock repurchase plan which

authorized the Company to purchase up to $200 million of its outstanding common stock through

January 31 2010 Stock repurchases under the program could be executed through open market

repurchases privately negotiated transactions accelerated share repurchases or other means The board

F-34



MAGELLAN HEALTH SERVICES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

December 31 2009

Stockholders Equity Continued

of directors authorized management to execute stock repurchase transactions under the program from

time to time and in such amounts and via such methods as management deemed appropriate The

stock repurchase program could be limited or terminated at any time without prior notice From

August 2008 through December 31 2008 the Company repurchased 3866505 shares through the

stock repurchase plan at an average share price of $35.18 per share for an aggregate cost of

$136.0 million excluding broker commissions The Company made additional open market purchases

of 1859959 shares of the Companys common stock at an average share price of $34.39 per share for

an aggregate cost of $64.0 million excluding broker commissions during the period January 2009

through April 2009 which was the date that the repurchase program was completed the $200 million

authorization having been exhausted

On July 28 2009 the Companys board of directors approved stock repurchase plan which

authorizes the Company to purchase up to $100 million of its outstanding common stock through

July 28 2011 Stock repurchases under the program may be executed through open market repurchases

privately negotiated transactions accelerated share repurchases or other means The board of directors

authorized management to execute stock repurchase transactions under the program from time to time

and in such amounts and via such methods as management deems appropriate The stock repurchase

program may be limited or terminated at any time without prior notice Pursuant to this program the

Company made open market purchases of 782400 shares of the Companys common stock at an

average price of $32.75 per share for an aggregate cost of $25.6 million excluding broker commissions

during the period from August 17 2009 through December 31 2009

During the period from January 2010 through February 25 2010 the Company made additional

open market purchases of 16200 shares at an aggregate cost of $0.6 million excluding broker

commissions

Income Taxes

The provision
for income taxes related to continuing operations for the years

ended December 31

2007 2008 and 2009 consisted of the following in thousands

2007 2008 2009

Income taxes currently payable

Federal $1082 2365 $17485

State 803 1853 6837

1885 4218 24322

Deferred income taxes

Federal 52614 48451 39866

State 4170 1369 6851

56784 49820 33015

$58669 $54038 $57337
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reconciliation of the Companys income tax provision for continuing operations to that

computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rate for the
years ended December 31 2007

2008 and 2009 is as follows in thousands

2007 2008 2009

Income tax provision at federal statutory income tax

rate $53616 $49085 $57403

State income taxes net of federal income tax benefit 6070 6336 6805
Tax contingencies reversed due to statute closings 74 3326 5763
Net change in valuation allowances 1088 100 4342
Othernet 145 2043 3234

Income tax provision $58669 $54038 $57337

The Company estimates that it has reportable federal net operating loss carryforwards NOLs
as of December 31 2009 of approximately $54.9 million available to reduce future federal taxable

income These estimated NOLs expire in 2011 through 2020 and are subject to examination and

adjustment by the Internal Revenue Service IRS In addition the Companys utilization of such

NOLs is subject to limitation under Internal Revenue Code Section 382 which affects the timing of the

use of these NOLs At this time the Company does not believe these limitations will limit the

Companys ability to use any federal NOLs before they expire Although the Company has NOLs that

may be available to offset future taxable income the Company may be subject to Federal Alternative

Minimum Tax

The Companys valuation allowances against deferred tax assets were $9.4 million and $7.3 million

as of December 31 2008 and 2009 respectively mostly relating to uncertainties regarding the eventual

realization of certain state NOLs and other state deferred tax assets Determination of the amount of

deferred tax assets considered realizable required significant judgment and estimation Changes in these

estimates in the future could materially affect the Companys financial condition and results of

operations
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The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions
of the deferred tax

assets and liabilities at December 31 2008 and 2009 are as follows in thousands

2008 2009

Deferred tax assets

Goodwill
andjntangible

assets 29048 $11715

Net operatiig loss carryforwards 47891 31134

Stock compensation 15533 19996

Risk-share accruals 18070 7745

Non-deductible book accruals 18309 11185

Claims reserves 5630 6068

Refundable tax credits 15753 5041

Indirect tax benefits 11112 8637

Other 3020 8570

Total deferred tax assets 164366 110091

Valuation allowance 9408 7347

Deferred tax assets after valuation allowance 154958 102744

Deferred tax liabilities

Property and depreciation 20097 27690

Total deferred tax liabilities 20097 27690

Net deferred tax assets $134861 75054

The Company periodically performs comprehensive review of its tax positions
and accrues

amounts for tax contingencies Based upon these reviews the status of ongoing tax audits and the

expiration of applicable statutes of limitations accruals are adjusted as necessary The resolution of tax

audits is unpredictable and could result in tax liabilities that are significantly different than those which

have been estimated and accrued by the Company Such amounts are included in deferred credits and

other long-term liabilities within the accompanying consolidated balance sheets

reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits is as

follows

2007 2008 2009

Balance as of beginning of period $108323 $121040 $129157

Additions based on tax positions related to the

current year 18630 10765 4023

Additions for tax positions of prior years 2072 3258 4759

Reductions for tax positions of prior years 2126 214 17866

Reductions due to lapses of applicable statutes of

limitations 5859 5692 6822

Reductions due to settlements 151

Balance as of end of period
$121040 $129157 $113100

F-37



MAGELLAN HEALTH SERVICES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

December 31 2009

Income Taxes Continued

If these unrecognized tax benefits had been realized as of December 31 2008 and 2009 and had

ASC 805 been effective in 2008 $90.4 million and $88.3 million respectively would have impacted the

effective tax rate

Included in the balance of unrecognized tax benefits recorded at December 31 2008 and 2009

were liabilities of $14.1 million and $1.1 million respectively for tax positions for which the ultimate

deductibility is highly certain but for which there is uncertainty about the timing such deductibility

Because of the impact of deferred tax accounting other than interest and penalties the deferral of

these deductions to later years would not affect the annual effective tax rate but could result in the

acceleration of cash payments and/or reduction to the NOL carryforwards with
respect to the earlier

period

With few exceptions the Company is no longer subject to state or local income tax assessments by
tax authorities for years ended prior to December 31 2006 Further the statute of limitations regarding
the assessment of the federal and most state and local income taxes for the

year ended December 31
2006 will expire during 2010 The Company anticipates that up to $3.3 million of unrecognized tax

benefits excluding interest costs recorded as of December 31 2009 could be reversed during 2010 as

result of statute expirations All such reversals net of the related indirect tax benefits would be

reflected as discrete adjustments during the quarter in which the respective statute expiration occurs

As of December 31 2008 and 2009 the Company had accrued approximately $4.2 million and

$3.5 million respectively for the potential payment of interest and penalties net of indirect benefits
The Company accrues interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in its provision for

income taxes During the years ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009 the Company recorded

approximately $1.2 million $1.6 million and $0.7 million in interest and penalties excluding

$0.7 million recorded in 2007 as reduction in retained earnings as result of change in accounting
method

Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Supplemental cash flow information for the years ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009 is as

follows in thousands

2007 2008 2009

Income taxes paid net of refunds received $4973 $6003 $16599

Interest paid $3801 $3300 $1470

Assets acquired through capital leases 89 58

Commitments and Contingencies

Insurance

The Company maintains program of insurance coverage for broad range of risks in its business

The Company has renewed its general professional and managed care liability insurance policies with

unaffiliated insurers for one-year period from June 17 2009 to June 17 2010 The general liability
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policies are written on an occurrence basis subject to $0.05 million per claim un-aggregated

self-insured retention The professional liability and managed care errors and omissions liability policies

are written on claims-made basis subject to $1.0 million per claim $10.0 million per class action

claim un-aggregated self-insured retention for managed care liability and $0.05 million per claim

un-aggregated self-insured retention for professional liability

The Company mfltains separate general and professional liability insurance policies with an

unaffiliate.d insurer for its Specialty Pharmaceutical Management business The Specialty

Pharmaceutical Management insurance policies have one-year term for the period June 17 2009 to

June 17 2010 The general liability policies are written on an occurrence basis subject to

$0.05 million per claim un-aggregated self-insured retention The professional liability policy is written

on claims-made basis subject to $0.05 million per claim un-aggregated self-insured retention

The Company maintains separate professional liability insurance policies with unaffiliated insurers

for its Maricopa Contract business for the behavioral health direct care facilities The Maricopa

Contract professional liability insurance policies effective dates are from September 2008 to

September 2009 The Company purchased five-year extended reporting period for the professional

liability policies effective September 2009 for the period September 2009 to September 2014

subject to $0.5 million per claim un-aggregated self-insured retention The professional liability

policies are written on claims-made basis

The Company is responsible for claims within its self-insured retentions and for portions of claims

reported after the expiration date of the policies if they are not renewed or if policy limits are

exceeded The Company also purchases excess liability coverage in an amount that management

believes to be reasonable for the size and profile of the organization

Regulatory Issues

The specialty managed healthcare industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations The

subjects of such laws and regulations cover but are not limited to matters such as licensure

accreditation government healthcare program participation requfrements information privacy and

security reimbursement for patient services and Medicare and Medicaid fraud and abuse Over the

past several years government activity has increased with respect to investigations and/or allegations

concerning possible violations of fraud and abuse and false claims statutes and/or regulations by

healthcare organizations and insurers Entities that are found to have violated these laws and

regulations may be excluded from participating in government healthcare programs subjected to fines

or penalties or required to repay amounts received from the government for previously billed patient

services Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government review and

interpretation as well as regulatory actions unknown or unasserted at this time

In addition regulators of certain of the Companys subsidiaries may exercise certain discretionary

rights under regulations including increasing its supervision of such entities requiring additional

restricted cash or other security or seizing or otherwise taking cdhtrol of the assets and operations of

such subsidiaries

F-39



MAGELLAN HEALTH SERVICES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

December 31 2009

Commitments and Contingencies Continued

Legal

The management and administration of the delivery of specialty managed healthcare entails

significant risks of liability From time to time the Company is subject to various actions and claims

arising from the acts or omissions of its employees network providers or other parties In the normal

course of business the Company receives reports relating to deaths and other serious incidents

involving patients whose care is being managed by the Company Such incidentL give rise

to malpractice professional negligence and other related actions and claims against the Company or its

network providers Many of these actions and claims received by the Company seek substantial

damages and therefore require the Company to incur significant fees and costs related to their defense

The Company is also subject to or party to certain class actions litigation and claims relating to its

operations and business practices In the opinion of management the Company has recorded reserves

that are adequate to cover litigation claims or assessments that have been or may be asserted against

the Company and for which the outcome is probable and reasonably estimable Management believes

that the resolution of such litigation and claims will not have material adverse effect on the

Companys financial condition or results of operations however there can be no assurance in this

regard

Operating Leases

The Company leases certain of its operating facilities and equipment The leases which expire at

various dates through August 2015 generally require the Company to pay all niaintenance property tax

and insurance costs

At December 31 2009 aggregate amounts of future minimum payments under operating leases

were as follows 2010$21.4 million 2011$14.7 million 2012$10.3 million 2013$3.8 million

2014$0.8 million 2015 and beyond$0.3 million Operating lease obligations include estimated

future lease payments for both open and closed offices

At December 31 2009 aggregate amounts of future minimum rentals to be received under

operating subleases were as follows 2010$3.9 million 2011$1.4 million 2012$1.0 million

2013$0.8 million 2014$0.5 million 2015 and beyond$0.3 million Operating sublease rentals to

be received relate primarily to behavioral health direct care facilities transitioned to third parties

pursuant to the Maricopa Contract

Rent expense is recognized on straight-line basis over the terms of the leases Rent expense was

$19.3 million $24.3 million and $20.3 million for the years ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009

respectively

10 Certain Relationships and Related Party fransactions

Allen Wise former Director of the Company served as the Chairman of Coventry The

Company has behavioral health services agreement with subsidiary of Coventry under which the

Company derived revenues of approximately $2.4 million and $1.5 million during the years ended

December 31 2008 and 2009 respectively On February 25 2009 Mr Wise resigned from the board of

directors of the Company as result of his appointment as Chief Executive Officer of Coventry On

July 31 2009 the Company completed the acquisition of First Health Services as described in Note
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Mr Wise was no longer Director of the Company at the time that the Company negotiated and

closed on the acquisition of First Health Services from Coventry At the same time that the Company

acquired
First Health Services the Company also executed agreements to provide radiology and

oncology services for certain Coventry markets The Company derived revenues from such service

agreements of approximately $6.6 million during 2009

William McBride Director of the Company serves as member of the board of directors of

Amrrriiri Pr rifien Th mi-inhlQ rd 1ctn mriiempnt iarpemnt wtl

SUbry AmeriGroup under which the Company deri revenues of approximately $0.4 million

and $1.1 million in 2008 and 2009 respectively

11 Business Segment Information

The accounting policies of the Companys segments are the same as those described in Note

General The Company evaluates performance of its segments based on profit or loss from

continuing operations before stock compensation expense depreciation and amortization interest

expense interest income gain on sale of assets special charges or benefits and income taxes

Segment Profit Management uses Segment Profit information for internal reporting and control

purposes and considers it important in making decisions regarding the allocation of capital and other

resources risk assessment and employee compensation among other matters Intersegment sales and

transfers are not significant The following tables summarize for the periods indicated operating

results by business segment in thousands

Radiology Specialty Corporate

Public Benefits Pharmaceutical and

Commercial Sector Management Management Other Consolidated

Year Ended December 31 2007

Net revenue 784533 $1020839 $170240 $180341 2155953

Cost of care 392325 902594 114184 1409103
Cost of goods sold 149585 149585
Direct service costs 163800 51922 48841 21529 286092
Other operating expenses .- 117911 117911
Stock compensation

expense1 2277 1172 1708 8769 16068 29994

Segment profit loss 230685 67495 8923 17996 $101843 223256

Identifiable assets by business

segment2

Restricted cash 35838 213400 3525 252763

Net accounts receivable 19579 19384 3927 22888 578 66356

Investments 5309 7506 43760 56575

Goodwill 121032 104459 142291 367782
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Year Ended December ii 200$

Net revenue

Cost of care

Cost of goods sold

Direct service costs

Other operating expenses

Stock compensation

expensei

Segment profit loss

Identifiable assets by business

segment2

Restricted cash

Net accounts receivable

investments

Goodwill

228499 2625394

1830542
181356

303913
122714 122714

Radiology

Public Benefits

Commercial Sector Management

Specialty

Pharmaceutical

Management

Medicaid

Administration

Corporate
and

Other Consolidated

Year Ended December 31

2009

Net revenue

Cost of care

Cost of goods sold

Direct service costs

Other operating expenses

Stock compensation

expense1

Segment profit loss

Identifiable assets by

259745

203336

2490

64259 2641814

1765313
203336

54874 351622
114088 114088

Stock compensation expense
is included in direct service costs and other operating expenses however this amount is

excluded from the computation of segment profit since it is managed on consolidated basis

Identifiable assets by business segment are those assets that are used in the operations of each segment The

remainder of the Companys assets cannot be specifically identified by segment

Radiology

Public Benefits

Commercial Sector Management

649636 $1451923 295336

344761 1278316 207465

Specialty

Pharmaceutical

Management

Corporate
and

Other Consolidated

181356
154894 68914 54482 25623

1368 839 1472 8967 20117 32763

151349 $105532 $34861 30487 $102597 219632

13649 171513 3268 3965 192395

22544 19764 7226 31108 1434 82076

28990 88347 10413 106149 233899

120485 104549 142291 367325

650139 $1362420 305251

351270 1208451 205592

152.280 67835 51732

953

$147542

20398

23025

14337

120485

business segment2

Restricted cash

Net accounts receivable

Investments

Goodwill

690

86824

133123

16450

133392

1260

49187

2272

6085

12676

5383

36891

30371

27

9.412

31021

59146104549 142291

11469 19782

$102619 227237

3866 159659

7482 114434

70040 230445

426471
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The following table reconciles Segment Profit to consolidated income from continuing operations

before income taxes and minority interest for the years
ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009

in thousands

2007 2008 2009

Segment Profit $223256 $219632 $227237

Stock compensation expense 29994 32763 19782
Depreciation and amortization 57524 6U810 47268
Interest expense 6386 2846 2424
Interest income 23836 17030 6245

Income from continuing operations before income

taxes $153188 $140243 $164008

12 Selected Quarterly Financial Data Unaudited

The following is summary of the unaudited quarterly results of operations for the years
ended

December 31 2008 and 2009 in thousands except per share amounts

For the Quarter Ended

March 31 june 30 September 30 December 31
2008 2008 2008 2008

Fiscal Year Ended December 31 2008

Net revenue $650290 $656858 $656462 $661784

Cost and expenses

Cost of care 454074 458090 456584 461794
Cost of goods sold 46824 43413 44281 46838
Direct service costs and other operating expenses1 109748 106483 105879 104517

Depreciation and amortization 14374 14523 16086 15827

Interest expense 1215 1017 592 22

Interest income 5493 3716 4127 3694

620742 619810 619295 625304

Income from continuing operations before income

taxes 29548 37048 37167 36480
Provision for income taxes 12304 15160 13678 12896

Net income $17244 21888 23489 23584

Weighted average number of common shares

outstandingbasic 39736 39961 40272 38464

Weighted average number of common shares

outstandingdiluted 40340 40307 40722 38631

Net income per common sharebasicS 0.43 0.55 0.58 0.61

Net income per common sharediluted 0.43 0.54 0.58 0.61

F-43



MAGELLAN HEALTH SERVICES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

December 31 2009

12 Selected Quarterly Financial Data Unaudited Continued

For the Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
2009 2009 2009 2009

Fiscal Year Ended December 31 2009

Net revenue $619515 $635801 $667589 $718909

Cost and expenses

Cost of care 431718 443048 435007 455540

Cost of goods sold 52072 49286 50139 51839

Direct service costs and other operating expenses2 103064 102934 122034 137678

Depreciation and amortization 11043 10516 12154 13555

Interest expense 427 657 650 690

Interest income 2311 1734 1215 985

596013 604707 618769 658317

Income from continuing operations before income

taxes 23502 31094 48820 60592

Provision for income taxes 9942 12695 17833 16867

Net income $13560 $18399 30987 43725

Weighted average number of common shares

outstandingbasic 36208 34955 35128 34717

Weighted average number of common shares

outstandingdiluted 36386 34992 35331 34972

Net income per common sharebasicS 0.37 0.53 0.88 1.26

Net income per common sharedi1uted 0.37 0.53 0.88 1.25

Includes stock compensation expense of $12018 $6499 $7832 and $6414 for the quarters ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 and December 31 2008 respectively

Includes stock compensation expense of $6432 $6168 $4124 and $3058 for the quarters ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 and December 31 2009 respectively
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MAGELLAN HEALTH SERVICES INC

SCHEDULE Il--VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

In thousands

Balance at Charged to Charged to Balance

Beginning Costs and Other at End

Classification of Period Expenses Accounts Addition Deduction of Period

Year Ended December 31 2007

Allowance for doubtful accounts $1502 $2173 5881 $2614 752 $1317
Year Ended December 31 2008

Allowance for doubtful accounts 1317 8913 2731 202 1915

Year Ended Decembr 31 2009

Allowance for doühtful accounts 1915 1123 6501 1165 1352 1358

Recoveries of accounts receivable previously written off

Accounts written off

Bad debt expense

To establish reserve on pre-acquisition balances of ICORE Healthcare LLC

To establish reserve on pre-acquisition balances of First Health Services
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